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I am pleased lO pri;sent the; Comprehensive /\nnunl 17inancial Report (CAFR} for the City of Millbrae 
(City).The City Council has taken a proal.!Livc approach implementing dmslic l!ost savings measures 
Lo streamline operations whi le malntaining service levels within the community. Our number one 
priority is lo be efficient and effective in delivering city services to the people of Millbnie. The 
City's Pol ice Department has transitioned to contract services through the San Muteo County 
Sheriff's Office and our Fire Department administration and training have been consolidated with the 
Central County Fire and San Bruno Fire 01.:purlmcnts. Bond debts hnve been refinanced, staff have 
made compensation concessions including tiJrloughs. bent"tit reductions. and salary frerzes over the 
pnst several yc,1rs and staffing levels have been significantly rech1ced. Out of slate travel has been 
discontinued, consolidated purchasing has been imp lemented lo achi~ve volume discmun:;. and 
papcrles:; practices have been i111pleme1Jted where practical. 

The City Council's efforts are evident in this year's financial highlights, Fund balances arc increasing, 
and the City's Net Position is gaining, all of which betk:r positions the City to au dress a multitude or 
unfunded liabilities and capital needs. However, clespire current year guins. several Geneml Fund 
revenues have declined induding sales tax. foes for service. rranchise taxes. and fines and forteitul\."'S. 
which is an indication that the City should pion conservatively. Strategic financial planning contint1es 
as the City's linancial position improves with the ultimate gool being achievement of financial 
sllstainability for the Ci Ly of Millbrne lor years to come. 

This report presents the (immcial position, and the changes in tht! financial position. for the liscal 
year ending Jl111c JO. 2013. The basic financial staLcmcnts and supporting schi.:<lules have been 
prepared in compliance with Culil'omiu Government code Sections 25250 and 25253 and in 
accordance with Generally Acccp1ed Accounting Principles (GAAP) for local governments as 
established by the Governmental Accounting Stant.lards Board (GASB). 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability MHll thc i111brmation 
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making lhesc representations. 
management of the Cily has established an internal control framework that is designed both tn 
protect the City's assels from loss, theft, or mi!suse, to compile sufficient reliable informntion tor tht 
preparation of. the City's fiirnneial statt.:ml.!nts in conlbrmity wiU1 GAAP, and ro coinp ly with law!) 
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and regulations. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's 
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. To the best of our 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete, and accurate in all material respects, and is 
repo1ted in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and the results of operations of 
various funds and component units of the City. All material statements and disclosures necessary fo,· 
the reader to obtain a thorough understanding of the City's financial activities have been included. 

GASB Statement No. 34 (GASB 34) requires that management provide a narrative introduction, 
overview., and analysis to accompany the basis financial statements. The Management Discussion 
and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report. The MD&A provides 
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. This letter of 
transmittal is meant lo be read in combination with, and is designed to complement, the MD&A. 

Profile of the Government 

The City, incorporated in 1948, is located adjacent to the San Francisco International Airport (SFO) 
and is 15 miles south of San Francisco in the heart of San Mateo County. The City encompasses 3.3 
square miles, and serves a population of over 22,200. 

The City operates according to the Council-City Manager form of government, which vests authority 
in an elected City Council. The City Council is comprised offive members elected by City residents. 
The City Council is the City's legislative and policy-making body. The City Council appoints the 
City Manager who is responsible for overall administration of the City. In addition to the 
appointment of the City Manager, the City Council appoints the City Attorney and members of the 
City's boards and commissions. 

The City provides a full range of services including law enforcement, and fire protection; the 
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; community 
development; planning and inspections; manages recreational activities and cultural events; and 
provides water, and sewer utility services. 

Budget Process 

The City adopts an annual budget for all funds. The City uses the budget to establish its goals and 
program ptiorities, and identify the resources required to achieve the desired service levels for the 
upcoming fiscal period. The City maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these 
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget 
approved by the City Council, 

The Local Economy 

Property tax continues to be the largest revenue source for the City. Property values in the City have 
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continued to show year over year growth for each of the pasL five years. According the San Mateo 
County Assessor, as of January I, 20 13, Lhe City had 7,203 parcels with a combined value of$4.04 
billion. This is an increase in value of 6.03% when compared to the assessment rolls as of January I, 
2012. 

The City's second largest source of general fund revenue is transient occupancy taxes. The City has 
experienced a year over year increase in this tax of 27% due largely to the reopening of a major hotel. 

Sales Tax is also a major revenue source for the City. According to the Department of Finance, 
Sales Tax revenues are down Statewide due to the expiration of the payroll tax holiday, slow growth 
in wages and.continued reaction to the economic downturn in recent years. The City's Sales Tax 
revenues have had a modest single year decrease of 1.5%. The diversity of the City's economic 
community has helped to minimize the City's loss of Sales Tax revenues. The City includes a mix of 
retail, shopping, restaurants, service businesses, hotels and public services. The City also houses a 
BART Station which was the first regional rail system in the San Francisco Bay Area. This unique 
station, which is connected to and is adjacent to the San Francisco International Airport (SFO), 
allows BART, CalTrain and SamTrans to connect under one roof, thereby maximizing regional 
trnvel options for passengers in the San Francisco Bay Area. 

Independent Audit 

The City's financial statements have been audited by the independent audit firm of Maze & 
Associates, a cetiified public accounting firm. The objective of the independent audit is to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ending June 30. 
2013, are free ofn1aterial misstatements. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, 
that there was reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion on the City's financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,' 2013. The Independent Auditors' Repo11 is presented as 
the first item under the Financial Section of this report. 

Award 

The Government Finance Officer's Association of the United States of America and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. This was the nineteenth 
(19) consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a govermnent unit must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This repo11 must satisfy both GAAP 
and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our cunent 
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are 
submitting it to the GFOA to determine eligibility for another certificate. 
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City of Millbrae 
Our Values 

We are committed to the following values which are key to achievement of our Mission 

• Quality: 
We will produce nothing less than superior, high quality products and services. The public and our colleagues 
deserve nothing less. 

• Customer Service: 
Service to people is _what we're about. We will provide products and services which meet the changing needs 
of the community. We will always provide services with respect, courtesy, warmth and responsiveness 

• Integrity and Honesty: 
Honesty, openness, fair-dealing and the highest ethical behavior are the foundation for our work 

• Innovation: 
We encourage our colleagues and the public to suggest new ideas for improving our products and services, 
and for doing things more efficiently and effectively 

• Teamwork: 
Teamwork is each of us working together to reach a common goal. Teamwork is accomplished when each 
member contributes their unique abllltles, actively communicates and supports each other 

• Colleagues: 
We recognize, from managers to line workers, we are colleagues working toward a common goal, 
accomplishment of the City's overall mission. Each of us should share in the City's success which we make 
possible 

• Pride and Enjoyment In Our Work: 
We believe our work should be a source of personal enjoyment and satisfaction. We accept the challenge to 
promote a work place in which pride, personal enjoyment, and satisfaction can flourish 

• Action Orientation: 
We are an organization which is decisive. We will act without delay, after considering alternative and 
implications. We are proud of our ability to respond quickly and effectively to emergencies and changing 
priorities 

• Citizen Participation: 
We are committed to keeping the public informed by using a variety of communication networks. Effective 
public policy depends on achievement of community consensus 

• Cultural Diversity: 
The world in which we live is always changing. We recoghlze the need to adapt to meet all new challenges 
within our community and surrounding region. We will be sensitive to the differing cultural and personal needs 
of our community 

• Legal Responsibility: 
We accept the challenge to actively participate in legislative activities; supporting that with which we agree and 
opposing that with which we disagree. We will endeavor to know and comply with all Federal and State 
mandates 

• Regional Responsibility: 
Our City Is a part of a large; interdependent metropolitan area. We will actively participate In regional planning 
to serve the best interests of our City and the region 

• Planning: 
We are a forward-looking organization; continuously assessing trends and developments which will impact our 
Mission. We seek to satisfy current needs in a manner which helps obtain our long-range goals 
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City of Millbrae 
Our Purposes 

The purpose of the City of Millbrae municipal government is to provide the conditions necessary for a high quality of life 
and prosperity for MIiibrae residents, businesses and institutions. 

A high quality of life and community prosperity are based upon: 

• Democratic, Local, Self•government: 
Determination of needs, priorities, and policies by local residents through democratically electeci 
representatives 

• Pub/I,; Health and Safety: 
Providing an environment free from disease, pollutlon, crime, fire and conditions injurious to public health and 
well being 

• Physical, Cultural, and Social Well-Being: 

Providing facilities and programs for our residents to help meet their needs for socialization, recreation, and 
cultural and spiritual growth 

• Economic Prosperity: 
To create conditions which will promote strong sales and trade In our business sector, and a strong tax base to 
support local government services 

• Environmental Protection: 

To promote conversation of our natural environment and resources, and to promote an attractive, uncluttered, 
well maintained and landscaped urban environment 

• Public Facilities and Infrastructure: 

To provide, maintain and operate public facilities and infrastructure essential to serving and supporting the 
public and private sectors of the City 
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MAZ 
& ASSOCIATES 

INDEPENDENT AUJ)ITOR'S REPORT 

To the City Council 
Cily ofM illbrac, Califomia 

Report oil Fi11f111cial Slt1le111r!11/,,; 

We hnve uwJilc<l the accompanying financial statements of the governmental nctlvities, the business~type 
activities, oach major fund, a11d Ute aggregate remaining fund of the City of MiUbrne as of mul for the year ended 
June 30, 2013, and the relatetl notes to the fi11ancial statements, which collectively comprise tho City's basic 
fi.uaucfal statements as listed u1 the Table of Contents. 

Mm1agcme11t'~· Re.fpo,rslhiJ/fyfor tile Fi11anciitl Stateme11ts 

Managcmcmt is responsible for Lhe preparation nnd fair presentation of lht--sc financial statements in nccordauco 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the UnHed States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and muinte111mcc of ialea:m.J control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements that are free from material inisstntement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Amlitor 1s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on U1ese financial statements based on our audit. \Ve co11ductcd our 
audit in accordance with auditi11g standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
opplicablo lo fmnncial audits contained in Governme111 A1.1dfti11g Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards rcqLLire lb>1L we phm and perform 1fa, audit to obluiu reasonublo ussumucc about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

/\.n tiudit javolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 11bo11t lhe 11mounts nnd djsclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including lhe assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the tinnncial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making lhose risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant Lo the City's preparation tutd lair presentation of tho 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are aJ)proprfote in the circumslnuces, but not for the 
purpose of expressing en opiniou on Ute effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policjes used und the 
roasonubleness of signHicant accow1ti11g estimates made by management, as woll as evaluating lhe overall 
presentation of the Onnocinl statements. 

Wo believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient on<l nppropriare to provide a basis for our audit 
opiuious. 

Accountancy Corporotlon 

3478 8U$klrK Avonuo, Suilo 21 ~ 

PleAsant HIii, CA 94523 

T ll;J5.93Q.()gQ2 
, 925,930.0135 
" m,,1e~mazeassoc;latfla,r.om 
w muzoaaeoclales.co111 



Opi11io11s 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the businesi;:.type activities, each mi:\_jor fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund infonnation of the City as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matters 

Management adopted the provisions of the foUowing Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, 
which became effective during the year ended June 30, 2013 and had material effects on the financial statements: 

• OASB Statement No. 63 - Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resow·ces, Deferred Inflows of 
Resow·ces, and Net Position. 

The emphasis of these matters does not constitute a modification to our opinions. 

Otlier Matters 

Required Supplement my Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's Discussion 
and Analysis, and budgetary comparison information for the General Fund, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operationa~ economic or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the informati<;m and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic foiancial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express au opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Ieformation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City's basic financial statements as a whole. The Introductory Section, Supplemental Information, and 
Statistical Section as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are oot 
required parts of the basic financial statements. 

The Supplemental Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditi.ng procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciJing such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic fumncial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the Supplemental Information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedw·es applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
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Otlter Reporti1tg Req11ired by Governme11tAuditlt1g Standards 

fu accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 4, 2014, on 
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreement s and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provjde an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with_ Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
Febmmy4, 2014 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

This section of the City of Millbrae's (City) Comprehensive Annual Fi:nanciaJ Report (CAFR) presents a 
narrative overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the Fiscal-year ending June 30, 2013. 
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the additional 
information contained .in the City's Financial Statements, the related notes and our letter of transmittal 
that precedes this section. 

FINANCIAL illGIILIGHTS 

The global financial crisis has affected every corner of the world , and over the past decade the U.S. 
economy has suffered the largest economic downturn since the Great Depression. The City of Millbrae 
has not been shielded from this cr isis. As a result 1 the City has experienced declining revenues in the 
recent past, and despite slow economic growth revenues are projected to remain stagnant with modest 
recovery. 

The City has been faced with significant financial challenges in its quest for financial sustainability . Many 
factors have come into play including the loss of tax increment financing from the dissolution of 
Redevelopment, resulting in lost revenue docume!lted this year as $1.7 million; the Fire Assessment 
which is scheduled to sunset in Fiscal -Year 2013-20 14 could represent a cumulative revenue loss of 
$7.5 million over the next five years; retiree medical is estin1ated to increase $317 thousand per year; the 
City's Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability was estimated at $14.4 million in the 2012 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) Report of which only $2.2 lllillion has been assigned as of June 30, 
2013; the City's Pension Obligation Bond payments are scheduled to increase by $180 thousand over the 
next five years; and in addition, the City has documented a total of $6.7 million in unfunded upcoming 
capital needs . 

The City Council has taken a proactive approach implementing drastic cost savings measures to 
streamline operations while maintaining service levels within the community. Our number one priority is 
to be ef-ficient and effective in delivering city services to the people of Millbrae. The City's Police 
Department has transitioned to contract services through the San Mateo County Sheriff's Office and our 
Fire Department administration and training have been consolidated with the Central County Fire and San 
Bruno Fire Departments. Bond debts have been refinanced, staff have made compensation concessions 
including furloughs, benefit reductions, and salary freezes over the past several years and staffing levels 
have been significantly reduced and administration has been streamlined. Out of state travel has been 
discontinued, consolidated purchasing has been implemented to achieve volume discounts, and paperless 
practices have been implemented where practical. 

The City Council's efforts are evident in this year's financial highlights . Fund balances are increasing , and 
the City's Net Position is gaining, all of which better positions the City to address a multitude of 
unfunded liabilities and capital needs. However, despite current year gains, several General Fund 
revenues have declined including sales tax, fees for service, franchise taxes, and fines and forfeiture s 
which is an indication that the City should plan conservatively . Strategic financial planning continues as 
the City's financial position improves with the ultimate goal being achievement of fina,t1cial sustainability 
for the City of Millbrae for years to come. 

• The City's cumulative GovemmentaJ Fund Balances increased by $5.67 million (30.4%) to $24.3 
million compared to Sl 8.6 million for the prior fiscal year , 
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• The City's total net position a.'l of .Tune 30, 2013 is $98.2 million ns corupo.red to $90.6 miJlion at 
June 30, 2012. This represents an overall increase of $7.6 million (8.3%) consisting of an increase of 
$5 million (7.8%) in govommentnl activities ru1cl nn inorense of $2.6 million (9.7%) in business type 
aclivilies. 

• Tbis CAFR includes lhe first four months of savings achieved by contracliog police services with the 
Sun Mateo County Sher1·ift"s Office. Total saving this year are estimated atjust under $1.3 million. 

• The Water PoDution Control l?lnul Renovation prQject was completed in Febrnary of 2013. This 
project has resulted in wasto water treatment efficicnci-.,s Lhrough the replacement of antiquated 
equipment, the addition of a new ADA compliant office space, an lntluent structure with a 1 .2 
miJLion gallon flow equalizution tank, and illl effluent pump station. 

OV.ERVfilW OF THE FlNANCCAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and onnly.sis is intended to serve m; nn introduction to U1e City's basic financiaJ 
stuteruenw. 'r he City's basic limmciul statement!! consist of three components: (1) Govcr.nmenr-wide 
Financial Statements; (2) Fund financial Stutemenls; and (3) Notes to the Basic financinl Statements. 
The Go\'crnment-wide Financial Statements provide a long-form view of all the Citis activities, 
includiug all the capital ussets and long-lcnn liabi.Lities. The Fund Financinl Statements 1'0fJOrt lue City's 
operations in detail and the focus is primarily on tue short- term activities of the Cit.y~s General Fund and 
other M1uor Funds. The fund l!inancial Statements measure only current revenues, expemiitures., fund 
balance, and exclude capital assets, and long-term liabili(i~. l11e Notes to the Basic financial statoments 
provide more demiJs to the speclfic components of the City's operntions. Tltis report includes tile 
required; supplementary nnd statistical infonnalion. 

The dingrum below outlines the major features of b()th the Government-wide and Fund Finn11cial 
Statements. 

Govemment-wld& l=lnancJal Fund Financial Statements 
SIBtoments Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

Scope EntJre Entity The day to day operating activities of the The day lo day operating activities or 
the City, for Business-type City for Govemmenlal Services 

onterprlseG 
Basis of 

Accrual Modified Accrual Accrual Accounting 

Rovonue Is recorded When Ca$h ls 
Accounting All Re11011uas Elnd Expenses are recolvod, Expenditures ere recorded All Revenues and Ellpenses are 

reccrded, regardless of when U1e w11en services or supplies have been recorded, regardless of wl'teri the Method 
Cash transactlons occur received and the llebllily is due and Cash lransactlons occur 

payable 
Measutement All Economic Resources Curren! Flnaneial Resources All Economlo Resources Focus 

Type of Asset All Assets, Capllal, Short and Current Assets and Uablllties due during All Assets, oepttal, Short and Long-ahd Uabllity 
Long-term LleblllUes Ille year or soon thereafter term Uabilltie~ Information 

Government-wide Finnucial Slntcm_ents 

The Governmcnt~widc Fiuancinl Statements consist of the following two financial statements: 1) 
Statement of Net Position; and 2) S!ntomcnt of Activities, Both are designed to provido readers a bl'oad 
overview of the City,s finnncia.l activities and position , in a manner similm· to the financial stateinenls for 
a private-sector company. 

6 



Government-wide 
Financial Statements 

+ 
Statement ot 

Activities 

The St{lfeme11t of Net Position presents infonnaLion on all of 1hc City's assets 
and liabilities, with tl1c difference between the Lwo reported as net position. 
Over time, increases or decreuses in net position may serve as a usoful 
indicntor of un improving or detctiorating financial position. 

The Stflteme11i of Ac/111/ties pl'esents information on Ll1e changes to nel 
position tbnt occurred during the reporting period. All chru1ges to nel 
position nre reported as soon flS the underlying event occurs, regardless of the 
liming of the related cash flows. Therefo1•e, revenues and expenses aro 
reportc(I in this statement for items lbat may only result in ca,qh flows in 
future fiscal periods, such as revenues 11ertaining to uncollected taxes, ,md 
expenses perta.it1ing to e.1rued but unused vacation and sick lea,·e. 

Both of the Goverrunent-wido financial Statements distinguish fimctions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and i.ntergovcrnmcnlal revenues (Governmental Activilic1,) from other functions that 
ore intended to recover ult or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (Busimis1,­
type Activities). The Governmental Ac1i11ltles of the City include General Ooycrnment, Public Safety, 
Hi~hways and Streets, Recreation and Culture, Community and Economic Development, and Capital 
Improvements. The Business-type Activities of tho Ci Ly include Ii Municipal Water System, Waste Water 
Treatment Faoilily, nnd Storm Dmin Maintenance and Improvements, 

Fund Financial .Statements 

The Fund Financial Statements are designed to roport information about groups of related funds that are 
used lo majnlnia control owr resources that havo been se&rregatcd for specific activities or o~jectiws in 
accordance with special l'egulalions. rcstrictions1 or limitations. A fund is a separate accounting entity 
with a self-balancing set of accounts. The City, like other State and Local Governments, utilizes fund 
accounting to eosurc and dl}monstrate finance related legal complinnce. The Funds munaged by the City 
cnn be divided into the following three categories: Governmental Funds, Proprietary runds nnd Fiduciary 
Funds. 

Fund 
A separate acco'-'nting 

enllly with a self• 
balancing set of accounts 

Fund Categories 
Governmental Funds 

Proprietary Funds 
Fiduciary Funds 

Gov2rmnenlal Fwuls 

Govemmenlal funds arc used to account fol' r.:ssentinlly the same 
functions reported as Governmental Activities in the Government-wide 
Financial Statement-s. Mosl of the City's basic servicos ure reported iu 
Governmental Funds. However1 unlike the Government-wide Financial 
Statemenls, tl10 Govemmentnl Fund Financial Statements focus or\ tbe 
near-term inflow and outflows of resourcos, as well as ou the balances of 
resources availablo at tbe end of the fiscal year. This informn1ion may be 
useful in evaluating the City's near-term foiancing requirements. 

The Governmo11tal Fund Balance Sheet nnd the Govcmment,ll fund 
Statement of Revenues, E~penditurcs and Ch1111ges in .Fund Dalance, provide detailed information on 
Major .Funds. The concept and 1he determination or Major Funds were established by criteria set foith in 
llJe Govemmentnl Accounth,g Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, ''Basic Financial Statements 
- and Management's Discussion aod Analysis - for Srnte and LQcal Governments, (GASD 34)" and 
represent the mnjor activities of the City for the year. Major Funds include: the Gcnernl Fund, the Low 
and Moderate Jncotne Housing Asset Fund, Sp~ial Revenue Flmds, Capital Projects, and Debt Servjce. 
Major Funds are presented individually, while the activities of Non-Major funds are presented in 
summary, Nou-Mnjor Fund detuiled nctivlty is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere 
in this report. Major Funds may change from year Lo year as n result of changes in the City's activities. 
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The focus of tho Governme ntal Fund Financial Statements is narrower than that of the Government-wide 
Financial Statements; therefore it is useful to compare the information presented for Govcrrunental Funds 
with similar information presented for Governmental Activities in the Government -wide Financial 
Statements. By doing so, readers may better rn1derstand the long-te.rm impact of the City's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement 
of Revenues, Expendit ures, and Changes in Fund Balance, provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between Governmental Funds and Governmental Activities . 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget, and a budgetary comparison schedule has been provided 
in the required supplement-ary information to demonstrate compliance with the budget 

Proprietary FW1ds 

Proprietary Funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers, or 
internal departments or agencies of the City . The City maintains two types of Proprietary Funds: 
Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds . 

Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise Funds are utilized to report the same functions presented as Business-type Activities in the 
Government-wide Financia l Statements. Enterp rise Funds are supported by fees paid by users based on 
the amount of service received. The City utiJ.izes Enterprise Funds for the following: 

Municipal Water System 

Wastewater Treatment 

Storm Drains 

Internal Service Fundy 

To account for the administration, operation, and distribution of 
the City's Municipal Water System 

To account for the administration, collection, arid treatment of 
the City's Sanilatlon System 

To account for the administration, operation, maintenance and 
improvements of the City's Storm Drains 

Internal Service Funds are utilized to account for the financing of services and supplies provided by one 
department or agency, to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. These 
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than Business-type functions; therefore they are 
included within the Governmental Activitie s in the Government-wide Financial Statements. The Internal 
Service Funds are combined into a single, aggregate d presentatio111 in the Proprietary Fund Financial 
Statements . Internal Service Fund detailed activity is provided in the fonn of combining statements 
elsewhere is this report. The City utilizes Internal Service Funds for the following: 

Municipal Garage 

General Liability 

Worker's Compensation 

Unemployment Insurance 

Compensated Absences 

To account for the purchase and maintenance of all motor 
vehicles except fire engines 

To account for the resources, claims, and payment of Llabillty 
Insurance premiums · 

To account for the resources, claims, and payment of 
Workers' Compensation 

To account for the accumulation, claims and payment of 
Unemployment Insurance 

To account for the accumulation of earned compensation 
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Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for financial resol1rces held for the benefit of parties outside tho City 
government. The City holds these fonds in a custodial capacity or as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, or other governmental units such as the State of California or the United States. Fiduciacy 
funds are not reflected in the govomment-wide statements because the resources of these funds are not 
available to support the City's governmental activities. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provides additional information that is essential to fully 
understand the data presented in the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements. 

Rcguircd Supplemental Information 

This section contains the Budget versus Actual Statements for the General Fund. 

OtherJ11formation 

In addition to the Financial Statements and accompanying notes, this section presents the combining 
statement$ and schedules for Non-Major Governmental Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service 
Funds, and the Internal Service Funds. 

GOVERNMENT- WIDE FINANCJAL ANALYSIS 

Analysis of Net Position 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Gover1unent's financial 
position. 

As shown on the next table, the City's net position was $98.2 million as of June 30, 2013 compared to 
$90.6 million at June 30, 2012. This represents an 8.3% increase. Net position increased by 
approximately $5 million in governmental activities; while those from business-type activities increased 
by $2.6 million. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
NET POSITION 

June 30, 2013 

Governmental Business-type Total 
Activities Activities 

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 

ASSETS 
Current ancl ollter Aasels 43,602,100 48,784,229 20,092,952 19,342,921 63,695,052 68,127,150 
Capttal Assets _ 56J981.155 • 571113,264 49.048,209 51,5051801 106,029,364 108,619,065 

TOTAL ASSETS 100,683,256 105,897,493 69,141,181 70,848,722 169,724,418 176,748,215 

LIABILITIES 
Short-Term Liabilllles 2,636,176 2,336,781 1,855,486 1,508,374 4,491,B62 3,845,155 
Long~Tern, LlabllKles 31,468,008 32,022,294 39,026,957 38,766.813 70.494,965 70,789,107 
Olher Liabilities 214~91822 2.512,71B 1,647,496 11368,215 411171317 3,6B0

1
933 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 36,574,006 36,871,793 42,629,938 41,643,402 79,103,944 78,S1S,195 

NET POSITION 
Nat Investment in Capital 

44,510,155 47,198,264 10,248,996 12,995,390 54,759,150 60,193,654 Assets 
Restricted Net Assets: 

Debt Service 860,627 898,611 8&0,527 898,611 
AB 2928 Grant 1,435,006 1,552,946 1,436,006 1,552,946 
Gas Tax 574,907 654,129 574,907 654,129 
Developer fee - Oparating 2,572,167 3,194,653 2,572,167 3,194,653 
Housing Aotlv!Lies 1,228,639 1,228,639 
Other special programs 4,221,997 4,221,997 
Measure A 1,496,960 1.428,966 1,495,960 1.428,966 
Unrestricted 12,5ti0,527 8,647,495 16,3621228 16,2091930 28!922?55 24,857,425 

TOTAL NET POSITION 64,009,249 69,025,700 26,611,223 29,205,320 90,620,472 98,231,020 

The largest portion of the City's net posilion is lhe $60.2 million iuvcst.mcnt in capital assets (e.g. land, 
buildings, u.nd equipment); less a11y related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. This is an 
increase of $5.4 million over p1'io1· year end balance of $54.8 millio11 and reflects the completion of the 
Waler Pollution Control Plaut. The City ulilizos capitol nssets lo prov.idc services to citizen~; 
consequently, tl10se assets tll'e not available for future spending. Although, the City'& investment in 
capital assets is reported net of related deb~ it should be noled the resources needed to repay the debt 
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be liquidated to pay those 
liabilities. 

The restricted porliou of net position is $13.2 million (13.4%) and represents resources thnt nre subject to 
external restrictions 011 use. At the end or fiscal year 2012-2013, the City had positive baJances il1 all of 
Lhc categories used to cnlculn.to net posi1ion for both for the Governmenln.l nnd Business-type Activities. 
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City of Millbrae 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

June 30, 2013 

Governmental Business-type 
Total Activities Activities 

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 
REVENUES 

Program Revenue: 
Charges for Service 6,723,843 6,345 ,877 5 ,723 ,843 6,345,877 
Operating Contributions 

801 ,486 1,613,360 801,486 1,613 ,360 and Grants 
JIJ\mic:ipal Waler Syslem 6,170,821 6,740,002 6,170,821 6,740 ,002 
Was le water Trealrrenl 8,388,292 6,546 ,835 8,388 ,292 8,546,835 
Storm Drain 255,196 248,950 255 ,196 248 ,950 
General Revenue: 

A'operty Taxf/S 10,915,140 9,209,244 10,915 , 1-10 9,209 ;244 
Sales Tax 2 ,196,568 2,162,011 2,196,558 2,162,011 
Transient O;:cupancy Tax 3,928,097 4,985,527 3,928,097 4 ,986,5 27 
Franchise Tax 993,512 858,986 993,512 858 ,986 
other Taxes 690,768 664,015 880,768 664 ;015 
M.ltor Veh!ole In-Lieu 10,868 11,313 10,868 11,313 
lnvestm3nt Earnings 193,961 409 ,298 216,942 177,632 410,903 586,830 
MsceUaneous 185,636 829 ,82 1 8,089 114,689 193,705 944,510 

TOTAL REVENUES 25,639,869 27,0BB,462 16,039 ,320 15,828 ,008 40,679,189 42,917,460 

EXPBIISES 
General Govcrnimnt 4 ,093 ,521 3,206,947 4,093,621 3,206 ,947 
R.lblle Safety 12,144 ,238 10,848,192 12,144,238 10,848,192 
Hlghw ay and Streets 1,108 ,898 2,706 ,820 1,108,898 2,706,820 
Recreation & Culture 1,098,904 1,001,1 73 1,098,904 1,001,173 
Comrunlly Development 2,858,452 2,693,662 2,858,452 2.6~3,662 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,007,982 1,540,092 2 .007 ,962 1,540,092 
ft.tJnlclpal Water System 5,865,711 6,351,688 5,865.711 6,351,688 
Waste Water Trealnnnl 6,748.461 6,578,352 6,748 .461 6,578,352 
Storm Drain 489,042 379,986 489,04 .2 379,986 

TOTAL EXPENSES 23;311,975 21,996,886 13,103.214 13,310,026 36,415,189 35,306,912 

Bccess Before Transfers 2,327,894 5,092,566 1,936,106 2,517,982 4,264,000 7 ,610 ,548 
Other Fltl3nc:ing Sources 819 ,74 ?. 819,742 
Transfers (188A98) (76,1-15) 196,498 76,115 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION t.,949,138 5,016,451 2,134,604 2.,594,097 5,083,742 7,610,548 
Revised Net Position at 

61 ,060,111 64,009 ,249 24,476,619 26 ,611,223 85 ,536,730 90,620,472 Beginning of Year 

NET POSITION AT YEAR END 64,009,249 69,025,700 26,611,223 29,205 ,320 90,820,472 98,231,020 

Anal~sii. 2f the Changes in NctJ>osltion 

As shown in the table above the Cily's overall Change in Net 'Position wns $7,6 million in fiscal year 
2012-2013. The net position at year end for Governmental Activities of $69 million represents a 7.8% 
increase over the prior year total of$64 million. 

The City's Business~type Activities had a net position of $29.2 million al yi;:nr end which represents a 
9.7% or $2.6 million increase over the prior year total of $26.6 million. 
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REVENUES BY SOURCE 

Recreellon end Interest on Long-
Culture term Dobt 

Mlscollsneou9 3.06%---, 
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Governmental Activities jncreased the City's totaJ net position by $5 million to $69 miJJion during fiscal 
year 2012-2013, compared to the increase of $3 million during fiscal year 2011-20 12. Key factors 
contributing to the variance from the prior year are as follows: 

o Overall , Governmental Activities year over year revenue increased by approximately $1.45 
million. The following are the highlights of those increases; 

o Property Taxes decreased by $1.7 million (-15 .6%) due to the elimination of the prior 
Redevelopment Agency; 

o Sales Tax rema ined relatively constant, showing only a $34 thousand decrease (-l.6%) 
during this fiscal year; 

o Franchise Foes and Other Taxes decreased by $161 lhousand (-9.5%); 

o Transit Occupancy Tax increased by $1 million (26.9%) primarily resulting from the re­
opening of the ALOFT Hot el; 

o Investment Earnings from a restricted loan receivable increased by $215 thousand; 

o Charges for Services increased by $622 thousand (10.9%). These funds are restricted to 
support the programs they were charged for; 

o Miscellaneous Revenues increased by $644 thousand resulting from the transfer of land 
from the Redevelopment Agency to the City. 

• Despite the overall increase in Govern.mental Revenues, Genera .I Revenue Taxes decreased by 
$840 thousand in total. 

• Public Safety saw reduction in expen se of $1.3 million due to more cost effective del ivery of 
policing services through contracts with the San Mateo County's Sheriff's Office . 

• Accrued Leave balances wore recalculated and restllted in a one -time reduction liability expense 
reduction of $733 thousand . 

• Other program expense reductions are a result of the negotiated citywide employee concession 
agreements; unfilled position vacancies; and the continuing effort by each department to 
consolidate, reduce and control expenses. 

• Combined revenue increases, expenditure decreases resulted in a net position increase of $5.1 
million, before transfers at the end of fiscal year 2012-20 I 3. 

The charts shown previously illustrate the City's Governmental Expenses and Revenues by Program , and 
Revenues by Source . As shown, Public Safety has the largest program expenses at forty nine percent 
(49.3%); followed by General Government at fourteen percent (14.6%); Highways and Streets at 1:welve 
percent (12.3%); Community Development at twelve percent (12.2%); and Culture and Recreation at five 
percent (4.6%). 

General Revenues such as property tax, busine ss tax, and sales tax are not shown by Program, but are 
used to support program activities citywide. For Governmental Act ivities, Property Taxes were the 
largest single source of revenue at 34%; followed by Charges for Service with 23.4%; Transient 
Occupancy with 18.4%; Sales tax with 8%; and various Other Taxes with 5.7% in fiscal year 2012-2013. 
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Business-type Activities 

PROGRAM EXPENSES AND PROGRAM REVENUES 
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Business-type Activities increased the City's total net position by $2.6 million to $29.2 million during 
Jisc.11 yl;lar 2012-2013, compared to the increase of $2.l million during fiscal year 2011-2012. Key 
factors contributing to the increase from the prior year are ns follows: 

• Business-type Activities revenue increa!ied by $789 thousand, and expenses increased by $207 
thousand compared to those in prior year, overall the revouu1;1s exceeded the expenditures by $2.5 
million before transfers resulting in a net position increase. 

• Revenues from water sales increased by $569 thou:mnd (9.2%) due to the combination of a rate 
incroa~e and increased consumption. Expenses within the Municipal Wnter System had un overall 
increase of $486 d10,1sand (8.3%) duo lo un increase iD wholesale water costs. 

D Waste Water Treatment service fees increased by$ I 59 ihousnnd dollars (1.9%). Expenses within 
the Waste Water Treatment decreased by $170 thousand (2.5%), 

• Stonn Drain foes decreased by $6 thousand dollars (2.4%) and operating expenses decreased by 
$36 thousnnd (-7.8%). 

D $3.6 million was budgeted for Business-type Capital Expondin1res for the 2012-2013 Fiscal-year, 
bul the appropriations were not utilized. This resulted in a temporary increase in Net Position, bul 
will be utilized in future years for Cnpilal needs. 

• Excess revenues over expenses within the nusincss-typc Funds better position Ille City lo 
implernont deferred infrastruciure improvements in the future. 

Tho churl shown previously illustrates the Cily's llusiness-typc Activitie:,; Expenses ond Revenues by 
Program. As showu, Waste Water Treatment has the largos( progrnm expenses at forty-nine percent 
(49.4%), followed by the Municipal Water System at forty seven percent (47.7%) and Storm Drain with 
three pe1wnt (2.9%). Waste Wnter Treatment hnd the largest program revenue at fifty four percent 
(54%)1 followed by the Municipal Water System at fo1ty three percent(42.6o/o) nnd Storm Drain with two 
percent (l.6%). 

14 



General Revenues such as Investment Earnings and Miscellaneous Revenues (Expense) are not shown by 
Program, but are used to support Business -type activities. For Business-type Activities, Investment 
Earnings and Miscellaneous Revenues were $292 thousand which is an increase of $67 thousand (29.9%) 
from the prior fiscal year . The major factor for this variance is the additional cash invested due to the 
reduction in expenditures and the current economic investment environment. 

GOVERNMENTAL AND PROPRIETARY FUND ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, the City utilizes fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate legal compliance and to aid 
financial management by segregating transactions related to specific governmental activities, functions or 
objectives. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City's Governmental Funds Statement is to provide information on near-tenn inflows, 
outflows, and balance of resources available·. This type of information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In particular, Unassigned Fund Balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
Oovemmenes net resources available at the end of the fiscal year, The types of Governmental Funds 
repmted by the City include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fw1ds, and Capital 
Project Funds. 

At the end of fiscal year 2012-2013 the City's Governmental Funds repo1ted a combined ending Fund 
Balance of $24.3 milUon, an increase of $5.7 million (30.4%) over the prior year ending balanc.e of $18.6 
million. 

Comparative Analysis of Changes in Governmental Fund Balances 

The following table presents a summary of revenues and other financing source s, expenditures and other 
financing uses, and the net change in fund balance for Governmental Funds at fiscal year end 2013 and 
the previous fiscal yeat end, 2012. 

Governmental Funds 

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
June 30, 2013 

Rcvonuos and Other Expondlluras and Other Net Change In 1:.ndlng 
Financing Sources Financing Usos Fund Balances Fund Balances 

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 
General Fund 19;855,353 20,394,877 18,255,607 15,327,679 1,399,546 5,067,198 5,493,202 10,560,400 
Low and Moderate Income Housing 653,662 615,889 29,310 11,602 624,352 604,287 624,352 1,228,639 
Olher Governmental Funds 10,245.158 5,983,296 17,351,341 5,987,378 (7,105,583) (4,0821 12,528,686 12,622,604 

TOTAL 30,664,773 26,994,062 36,836,458 21,326,669 (5,081,685) 6,687,403 18,644,240 24,311,843 

The General Fund had an ending Fund Balance of $10.6 million, an increase of $5.1 mil1ion over the prior 
year end balance. Key factors contributing are increases in revenues and decreases in expenses. The prior 
Redevelopment Agency Low and Moderate Income Housing fund is now the City of Millbrae Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund and had an ending Fund Balance of $1.2 million. Other 
Governmental Funds have a combined ending Fund Balance of $12.5 million, a decrease of $4 thousand 
over the prior year ending balance. 
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The following table provides a comparison of the General Fund Revenues and Expenditures for fiscal 
year 2012-2013 versus fiscal year 2011-2012 . 

Comparative Analysis of Changes in the General Fund Balance 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City and the following table presents the detailed 
revenues , program expenditures, other financing sources and uses, and the net change in Fund Balance at 
fiscal year end 2013 and the previous fiscal year end, 2012. 

GENERAL FUND 
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE COMPARISON 

June 30, 2013 
G0n0ral Dollar Percentage 

Fund Variance Variance 

2012 2013 
REVENUES 

Property Taxes 8,072 ,016 8,538,919 466,903 5.78% 
Sales Tax 2,196,558 2,162,011 (34,547) -1.57% 
Transient Occupancy Tax 3,928,097 4,985,527 1,057,430 26,92% 
Franchise Taxes 993,512 858,986 (134,526) -13,54% 
Other Taxes 204,840 194,493 (10,347) -5.05% 
Licenses and Permits 943,283 865,298 (77,985) -8,27% 
Charges for Service 932,996 793,515 (139,481) -14,95% 
Fines and Forfeitures 1,223,109 1,165,881 (57,228) -4.68% 
Use of Money and Property 461 ,735 439,237 (22,498) -4.87% 
Grants and Intergovernmental 36,423 101,724 65,301 179.29% 
Miscellaneous 630?93 424,012 {206,781) ·32.78% 

TOTAL REVENUES 19,623,362 20,529,603 906,241 4.62% 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government 2,147,972 2,614,256 466,284 21.71% 
Public Safety 11,351,300 9,893,930 (1,457,370) -12.84% 
Highway and Streets 1,026,319 913,244 (113,075) -11.02% 
Culture and Recreation 2,084 3,283 1,199 57 .53% 
Community Development 1,734,728 1,861,261 126,533 7.29% 
Capital Outlay n,069 41,705 (35,364) -45.89% 
Debt Service: 

Principal 860,000 (860,000) -100.00% 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 4 723 (4?23) -100.00% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,204,195 16,327,679 (1,876,516) -10.91% 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds Sale of Capital Assets 25.221 {25,221) 
Transfers In 6,770 397,301 390,531 
Transfers Out !1,051,612) (532,027~ 519,585 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
(1,019,621) (134,726) 884,896 SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE/ FUND BALANCE 1,399,546 5,067,198 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,093,656 5,493,202 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 5,493,202 10,560,400 

As shown on the table above tl1e General Fund had an ending Fund Balance of $10.6 milliou , which 
reflects an increase of $5.1 million itl comparison to the prior year. The increase is attributable to the 
growth in revenue and reduction in expenditures. 
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As a measuro of the General Fund 's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the Total Fund Balance 
and the Unassigned Fund Balance to Total Fund Expenditures (total expenditures plus other financing 
uses). 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
FUND BALANCE COMPARISON 

2012 2013 

Fund Balance Classification 
Nonspendable; Pre Paid Expense 

Assigned: OPEB 
Assigned: Encumbrances 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balance 

Expenses 
Total Fund Balance 

PERCENTAGE 

Expenses 
Unassigned Fund Balance 

PERCENTAGE 

29,860 
1,532.462 

638,992 
3,291,888 

5,493,202 

18,255,807 
5,493,202 

30.09% 

18,255,807 
3,291,888 

18,03% 

298,057 
2,184,462 

203,355 
7,874,526 

10,560.400 

15,859,706 
10,560,400 

66.59% 

15,859,706 
7,874,526 

49.65% 

On June 30, 2013, the General Fund Assigned Fund Balance was $2.4 million which includes $203 
thousand for encumbrances and $2.2 million reserved for OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefits). 
Additional information on OPEB can be found in Note 11 of this report . An additional $298 thousand 
was attributed to pre-paid expenditures and the GeneraJ Fund had an Unassigned Fund Balance of $7 .9 
million. 

Gcme,ral Furtd Bpdgetnry Revenue and Expenditure Changes 

Actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $1.9 million , and actual expend itures were $2.5 miJlion 
less than budget. This lower than budgeted expenditures is a result of several cost saving measures as 
well as an adjustment to the method used to calculate the liability associated with leave accrual balance s. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City's Proprietary Fund Statements provide the same type of information found in the Government­
wide Financial Statements under Business-type Activities column, but includ e more detail. 
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The following tublc shows .ichml revenues, expenses and results of' operations for the fiscal year 2012-
2013. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30, 2013 

Operating Operating Operating Non-Operating Transfers Change 

Revenues Elcpensus lncomo R8V8nl.Jel!il In In 
(Loss) (Expenses) (Out) Net Assets 

Municipal Water Syslem 6,745 ,012 6,305,076 438,9J8 (13,355) 425,581 
Waste Water Treatment 8,1307,764 5,643,934 2 ,963,830 (724,482) 78,115 2,315,463 
Storm □rains 297,700 420,429 (122,729) 1,039 (121,690) 
Internal Service Funds 2,104,189 2,509,875 (405,686) {9,442} .. (136,320) !553,44B) 

TOTAL 17,754,&GS 14,880,314 2,01-1,m [746,240) {62,205) 2,0G5,906 

At tho end of fiscal yeur 2012-2013, the total ncL position for Ute Municipal Water Syslom WM $13.5 
million, an increase of S426 thousand (3.3%) over the prior year balance of $J3 million; Waste Wutcr 
Trca.trneut totnl net position was $15.3 million, an increase of $2.3 million (17.8%) over the prior year 
balance of $13 millio1J; Storm Drains totn.l net position ',V;'IS $383 thousand, u decrease of $122 thousand 
(24%) over the prior year balance of $505 thousand; and the [ntomt1l Service Funds total net position was 
$1.2 millio11 a decrease of$S53 thousand (31 %) over the prior your balance of $1.8 million. 

CAPITAL ASSET Al"'ID DEBT ADIVDNISTRATlON 

CnpitnJ Assets 

Capital Assets include Innd, buildings and improvements, fumiture, fixtures and equipment, autombbile-S 
and trucks, and infrnstrncttlre·. Capital Assets for Governmental and Business-type Activities are 
presented below. 

CAPITAL ASSE'J'S, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
June 30, 2013 

Governmental Business-Type 
Total ActlvHies Activities 

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 
Land 15,:134,335 15,334 ,336 1,785,218 1,601,270 17,119,553 16,935,605 
Construction In Progress 13,156 31,504,158 24,489 31 ,604 ,158 37,645 
Building and lmprovainenls 15,644,777 15,733 ,754 2;695,655 36,113 ,249 18 ,4110,432 51,84 7,003 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1,310,266 2,066,444 5,826,527 5,258,605 7,136,793 7,325 ,049 
Automobiles and Trucks 448,857 318,338 10,4031 7,864 459,280 326,202 
Infrastructure 24,042,920 23,647,237 7.~26.247 8,500,324 31 269.167 32 ,147,56'1 

TOTAL 56,981,166 67,113,264 4.9,048,208 61,605,801 1 oe102s,ses1 108,819,086 

The investment in total capital assets for both the Governmental and Busiuess-ly pe ActiviUes as of June 
30, 2013, increased by $2.6 million (2.4%) to $108.6 million (net of accumulated depreciation) . The 
reduction i11 Construction in J>l'Ogrcss lUld increase in Building and Improvements reflects the completion 
of the renovation and moderniwtion of the Cily's Waste Water Treatment facflitie.s. 
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Tho City depreciates Capital Assets utilizing d1e straight-line depreciation motbod. Tho cost of lhe ussul 
is divided by its oxpoctcd ust:lful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until tho asset 
is fully depreciated. 

Majo1· outlays for Capital Assets and improvements a1·e capitalized as projects are constrncted. Interest 
incurred during the construolion phase is mflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of 
.interest canted on the i1wcsted proceeds over the same perlocL 

Additional .i.11fonnatio11 on the City's Capital Assets can be founcl ir1 Note 6 of this report. 

Dchf Administr:tlio11 

The City obligotions uro in tho form of Ccrtific,ntcs of Participation (COP), General Obligation Bonds 
(GOB), Capital Appreciation Bonds, and Loans. 

Tlie following tuble summari1.es the outslandiug long-term debt at June JO, 2013, for tho City. 

LONG-TER.l'1. LlAilJLITIES 
Governmental 

Activities 

2001 General Obligation Bonds: Public Library 
2004 Pension Obllgallon Bonds 
2011 Loan• Refinance 1999 Ce.11ficates of Pertlclpatlon 

2009 A Certificate of Pertlcipatlon: Was1ewater Plant 
200!1 B Certiflcale of Participation: Waslewaler Plan! 
2009 Slate Water Resource Board: Wastewater Plant 

TOTAL 

2012 2013 

10,046.0001 9,915,000 
14,869,318 14,934,475 
2.426,000 2,263,000 

27,360,318 27,11.2,475 

Business -Type 
Activities 

2012 2013 

5,5ao,oool o,6eo,ooa 
7,130,9841 6,976,033 

27,405,675 27,294,385 

40,096,659 39,830,418 

Total 

2012 2013 

10,045,0001 9,916,000 
14,889,318 14,934,475 
2,426,000 2,263,000 
5,560,0001 5,560,000 

7,130,984 6,976,033 
27,405,875 27,294,385 

67 ,456,91? 66,942,893 

As of June 30, 2013, Governmental Activities outstanding long-term debt was $27.1 million and 
Business-type Activities hnd $39,8 million of long-term debl, for combined total of $66.9 million. 
Additional information about the City's long-term obligations can be found in Note 8 oflhis report, 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

Tho City's finnnciaJ status and budget outlook ftre conlimmusly monitored, as thCal Cily faces significEtnl 
fiscal challenges including; 

rusi11g Labor, HeaJth Core, and Pension costs; 

Stagnant and/or declining revenues; 

Aging infruslruchire nnd unfunded c-0pital needs; and 

r-unding oulslanding Other Post Employment 8 6oefil (OPEB) liabilitios. 

The economy oftbe City is discussed in detail in the accompanying Transmittal Letter. 
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REQUES'rS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the City's finances. We hope the proceeding information has provided a 
general overview of the City's overall financial status . · 

Requests for additional iJ1formation, and questions or comments regarding this repmt should be addressed 
to : 

City of Millbrae 
Finance Department 
Attn: Stephanie Beauchaine 
621 Magnolia Avenue 
Millbrae, CA 94030 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

] 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities summarize the entire City's financial 
activities and financial position. They are p,repared on the same basis as is used by most businesses, 
which means they include all the City's assets and all its liabilities , as well as all its revenues and 
expenses, This is !mown as the full accrual basis- the effect of all the City's transactions is taken into 
account, regardless of whether or when cash changes hands, but all material internal transactions between 
City funds have been eliminated. 

The Statement of Net Position reports the difference between the City's total assets and deferred 
outflows of resources over the City's total liabilities and deferred inilows of resources, including all the 
City's capital assets and all its long-term debt The Statement of Net Position focuses the reader on the 
composition of the City's net position, by subtracting total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
from total assets and defeffed outflows of resources. 

The Statement of Net Position summarizes the fmancial position of all the City's Governmental 
Activities in a single column, and the financial position of all the City's Business-Typ e Activities in a 
single column; these columns are followed by a Total column that presents the financial position of the 
entire City. 

The City's Governmental Activities include the activitie s of its General Fund, along with all its Special 
Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds. Since the City's Internal Service Funds service these 
Funds, their activities are consolidated with Governmental Activities, after eliminating inter~fund 
transactions and balances, The City's Business-Type Activities include all its Enterprise Fund activities. 

The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the City's net position. It is also prepared 
on the full accrual basis, whicl1 means it includes all the City's revenues and all its expenses, regardless 
of when cash changes hands . This differs from the "modified accrual" basis used in the Fund financial 
statements, which reflect only current assets , current liabilities, available revenues and measurable 
expenditures. 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments available for operations (Note 3) 
Cnsh with fiscal agent (Note 3) 
Receivables: 

True.es 
Accounts - net 
Accrued interest 
Due from other governmental agencies 
Loans (Note 5) 

Internal balances (Noto 4B) 
Prepuid pension obligations (Note 8B) 
Prepaid items 
Lund held for resale 
Capital assets (Note 6): 

Non..<Jepreciable capital ll.$Sets 
Depreciable capital assets, net 

Total Assets 

LTABJLITIBS 
Accounts payable ond accrued payroll 
Interest payable 
Deposits 
Unearned revenue 
Compensated absences (Note lF): 

Due within one year 
Pue in more than one year 

Accrued self-insunmce (Note 12) 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Long-term debt (Note 8): 
Portion due within one year 
Portion due in more than one yea!' 

Net other postemployment \:,enefit obligation (Note 11) 
Duo in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION (Note 9) 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted for: 
Debi service 
AB 2928 grant 
Gas tax 
Developer foe • operating 
Housing activities 
Other special programs 
Measure A 

Total Restricted Net Position 

Unrestricted 

Tot11l Net Position 

Governmental 
Activities 

$27,858,593 
472 

852,385 
96,742 

392,120 
549,459 

11,587,348 
(61,657) 

6,623,487 
298,057 
587,223 

15,347,491 
41,765,773 

105,897,493 

1,503,154 
239,475 
333,859 
436,230 

437,396 
708,916 

663,385 
1,843,233 

1,236,000 
25,876,475 

3,593,670 

36,871,793 

47,198,264 

898,611 
1,552,946 

654,129 
3,194,653 
1,228,639 
4,221,997 
1,428,966 

13,179,941 

8,647,495 

$69,025,700 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Business.Type 
Activities 

$14,006,022 
1,320,007 

3,670,322 
16,456 
7,251 

61,657 

261,206 

1,625,759 
49,880,042 

70,848,722 

707,545 
221,3S9 
439,311 

41,460 
376,08) 

27,228 

1,466,914 
38,363,504 

41,643,402 

12,995,390 

16,209,930 

$29,205,320 

Total 

$41,864,615 
1,320,479 

852,385 
3,767,064 

408,S76 
556,710 

11,587,348 

6,623,487 
559,263 
587,223 

16,973,250 
91,645,815 

176,746,215 

2,210,699 
460,834 
773,170 
436,230 

478,856 
1,084,997 

663,385 
1,870,461 

2,702,914 
64,239,979 

3,593,670 

78,515,195 

60,193,654 

898,611 
1,552,946 

654,129 
3,194,653 
1,228,639 
4,221,997 
1,428,966 . 

13,179,941 

24,857,425 . 

$98,231,020 . 



Fw1ctions/Program~ 
Governmental Activities: 

Oel)eral government 
Public safety 
Highways ru,d streets 
Culture and recreoUon 
Commw1ity development 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total Oovernmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Municipal water system 
Municipal wnste water treatment facility 
Storm drain 

Total BusincsHypc Activities 

Total 

General revenues: 
Tillccs: 

Property truces 
Sales taxes 
Transient occupancy tax 
Franchise tax 
Other truces 

Motor vehicle in-lieu, unrestricted 
Investment earnings 
Miscellnneous 

Transfers (Note 4A) 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position-Beginning 

Nel Position-Ending 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATEMENT OF ACT.lYlTIBS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Proll:!:am Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and 
Expenses Services Contributions 

$3,206,947 $2,446,854 
10,848,192 819,143 $700,459 
2,706,820 1,093,207 912,901 
1,001,173 1,023,083 
2,693,662 963,590 
1,540,092 

21,996,886 6,345,877 11613,360 

6,351,688 6,740,002 
6,578,352 8,546,835 

379,986 248,950 

13,310,026 15,535,787 

$35,306,912 $21,881.664 $1,613!360 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Chanaes in Net Position 

Governmental 
Activities 

($760,093) 
(9,328,590) 

(700,712) 
21,910 

(I, 730,072) 
{1,540,092} 

(14,037,6491 

(14,037,649) 

9,209,244 
2,162,011 
4,985,527 

858,986 
664,015 

11,313 

Business-type 
Activities 

$388,314 
1,968,483 
(131,03§2 

2,225,761 

2,225,761 

409,298 177,532 
829,821 114,689 
(76,115) __ 7_6_,1_15_ 

19,054,100 368,336 

5,016,451 

64,009,249 

$69,025,700 

2,594,097 

26,611.223 

$29,205,320 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Total 

($760,093) 
(9,328,590) 

(700,712) 
21,910 

(1.130,on) 
{l,540,092l 

. {l4,037,649l 

388,3 l4 
1,968,483 
03I.036l 

212251761 

(11,811,888) 

9,209,244 
2,162,011 
4,985,527 

858,986 
664,015 

l l,313 
586,830 
944,510 

19,422,436 

7,610,548 

901620,472 

$98,231,020 



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Major funds are defined generally as having significant activities or balances in the current year. No 
distinction is made between Fund types. 

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City in fiscal year 2013. 
Individual non~major funds may be found in tho Supplemental section. 

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fulld is established to account for the revenues and expenditures to carry out basic 
governmental activities of the City such as general government, public safety, highway and street, culture 
and recreation, and community development This fund accounts for all financial transactions not 
accounted for in the other funds. 

LOW AND MODERATE INCOME HOUSING ASSET SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Thjs fund accounts for the activities related to the housing assets assumed by the City as Housing 
Successor to the former Redevelopment Agency. The activities are governed by California 
redevelopment law and must be used to provide housing for people with low ancl moderate incomes. The 
ma.in source of revenues for this fund is the repayment of restricted housing loans. 
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ASSETS 

Cash ll1!d investments (Note 3) 
Cosh with fiscal ogeat (Note 3) 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
AccowllS • net 
Accrued interest 
Due from other governmental agencies 
Lonns (Note 5) 

Prepaid items 
Land held for resale 

Total Assets 

LIABilJ11BS 

Accounts payable and accrued payroU 
Deposits 
Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

UonvaiJnble revenue 

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Fund bahmce (Note 9) 
Nonspendnble 
Restricted 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Toto! Fund J3alaoces 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2013 

General 

$10;871,176 

806,102 
45,900 

112,707 
179,569 

298,0S7 

$12,313,511 

$1,292,376 
193,320 
267,415 

1,753,111 

298,057 

5,205,122 
5,057,221 

10,56QAOO 

Low and 
Moderate 

Income Housing 
Asset 

Speolnl Revenue 
Fund 

$145,626 

279,413 

11,587,348 

587,223 

$12,599,610 

$1,342 

1,342 

111369!629 

111369.629 

1,228,639 

1,228!639 

Totnl Lin bill ties, Deferred Inflows of Resources a.nd Fund Balances $12,313,511 s 12,S!.19,6 to 

See 11ccornpaeyi.cg notes to fr.pill)ciel statements 
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Other 
Goverruneatel 

Ftmds 

SI 2,584,684 
472 

46,283 
23,545 

367,422 

St:,
1
0221406 

$190,448 
140,539 
168,815 

499,802 

12,522,604 

121522,60~ 

$13,022,406 

Total 
Governmentnl 

FIJndq 

$23,601,486 
472 

852,385 
69,445 

392,120 
546,991 

11,587,348 
298,057 
5871223 

$37,9351527 

$1,484,166 
333,859 
436,230 

~2541255 

11,3691629 

11,369,629 

298,057 
13,751,243 
5,205,122 
s1os1,221 

2413111643 

$37,935,527 



CITY OF MJLLBRAE 
Reconciliation of the 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS-BALANCE SHEET 
with the 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Total fund balances reported on the Governmental Funds Dahmcc Sheet 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement ofNct Position 
arc different from those reported in the Govenm1ental Funds above because of the following: 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets or financial resources and 

therefore arc not reported in the Governmental Funds 

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET l'OSITION 
Internal service fonds are not governmental funds. However, they arc used by management to 

charge the costs of certain activitiei;, such !IS irn;urunce and central services and maintenance 
lo individual governmental funds. The net current assets ofthc Internal Service Funds are therefore 
included in Governmental Activities in the following line items in the Statement of Net Position. 

Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other govemmental agencies 
Internal balances 
Capital assets 
Accounts payable 
Compensated absences 
Accrued self-Insure.nee 

AOCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Revenues which are deferred on the Fund Balance Sheets because they are nol available currently 

are token into revenue in the Statement of Activities, 

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
The assets and llabillties below are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 

reported in the Funds: 
Prepaid pension obligation 
Long-term debt 
Net OPEB Obligation 
Interest payable 

NET POSillON OF GOVERNMENT AL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying nolcs to financial statements 
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$24,311,643 

56,491,172 

4,257,107 
27,297 
2,468 

(61,657) 
622,092 
(18,988) 

(1,146,312) 
(2,506,618) 

11,369,629 

6,623,487 
(27, I 12,475) 
(3,593,670) 

(239,475) 

$69,025,700 



REVENUES 

Properly tax 
Sales tax 
Transient occupancy tax 
Franchise tux 
Other taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Charges for services 
Fines and fbrfeill1res 
Use of money and property 
Grants and intergovernmental 
Mlscelhmeous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Highways and so:eels 
Culture and recreation 
Community development 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 

CTIY OF MILLBRAE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENOlTVRES 
AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Low and 
Moderate 

Income Housing 
Asset 

Special Revenue 
General Fund 

$8,538,919 
2, 162,0ll 
4,985,527 

858,986 
194,493 
865,298 
793,515 

1,165,881 
439,:237 $2,422 
101,724 
4:24,012 6131467 

20,529,603 6151889 

2,614,256 
9,893,930 

913,244 
3,283 

1,861,261 11,602 
41,705 

15,327,679 11.602 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 5,201,924 6041287 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USRS) 
Transfers in (Note 4A) 397,301 
Transfers (out) (Note 4A) (532!02Z) 

Totnl Other Financing Sources (Uses) (134,726) 

NET CliANOE IN FUND BALANCES 5,067,198 604,287 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 5,493,202 624,352 

ENDING FUND BALANCES $10,560,400 $1,228,639 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Other Total 
Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$670,325 $9,209,244 
2,162,011 
4,985,527 

858,986 
469,522 664,015 
768,165 1,633,463 

1,639,424 2,432,939 
1,165,881 

345,562 787,221 
1,866,964 1,968,688 

26,403 1,063,882 

5,786,365 26,931,857 

576 2,614,832 
92,908 9,986,838 

1,041,251 1,954,495 
930,915 934,198 
446,184 2,319,047 

1,681,237 1,722,942 

1,183,000 1,183,000 
6111307 611,307 

519871378 21_!326,659 

(201,013) 5,605,198 

581,031 978,332 
(384, 10ol (9161127) 

196,931 621205 

(4,082) 5,667,403 

121526,686 18,644,240 

$12,522,604 $241311,643 



CITY OF Mll..LBRAE 
Reconciliation of the 

NET CHANGE IN fUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
with the Statement of Act I vi.lies 

FOR TI-IE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The schedule below reconciles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Chnnges in Fund Balance, which measures only change.<: in current assets and current 
liabilities on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities reported in the 
Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual bnsls. 

NEl' CHANGE lN FUND BALANCES -TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental acllviUes in the Statement of Activities 
are different because of the following: 

CAPIT AI. ASSETS TRANSACTIONS 

Governmental Funds report ca.pital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activitie.~ the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over 
their estimated useful lives nnd reported as depreciation expense. 

Tho capital outlay and other capitalized expenditure,<: nre therefore added back to fund balance 
Retirement of cnpital assets 
Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balnncc 

LONG-TERM DEBT PROCEEDS AND PAYMENTS 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but 
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement ofNet Position. 
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but 
in the Statement ofNct Position the repayment reduces long-term liabilities. 

Repayment of debt principal are added back to fund balance 

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS 

Tile amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in 
governmental funds (net change): 

Internal balances 
Change in interest accrued 
Unpaid interest added to long-term debt 
Unavailable revenue 
Amortizatiol'\ of prepaid pension obligation 
NetOPEB 

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTlVITY 

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, 
such as equipment acquisition, maintenance, and insurance to individual funds. 
The portion of tho net revenue (expense) of these Internal Service Funds arising out 
of their transactions with governmental funds is reported whh governmental activities, 
because they service those activities. 

Change in Net Position - All Internal Service Fw1ds 

CI-IANGE IN NET POSIT£ON OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTMflES 

See aocompanying notes to tinanclnl statements 
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$5,667,403 

1,690,585 
(45,636) 

(l ,342,304) 

1,183,000 

86,914 
6,372 

(935,157) 
156,908 

(490,892) 
(345,637) 

(615,105) 

$5,016,451 



MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Proprietary funds account for City operations financed and operated in a manner similar to a private 
business enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed 
primarily tluough user charges . 

The City has identified the funds below as major proprietary funds in fiscal year 2013. 

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM FUND 

To account for activities related to providing water service to the Millbrae residents. 

MUNICIPAL WASTE WATER TREATMENT FACILITY FUND 

To account for services of the collection, treatment and administration of the City's sanitation system. 

STORM DRAIN FUND 

To account for the resources and costs of maintenance and improvements of the City's storm drains. 
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CITY OF MJLLDRAE 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 20)3 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and investments (Note 3) 
CPSh with fiscal agent (Note 3) 
Receivables: 

Accounts • net 
Accrued interest 
Due from other governmental agencies 

Prepaid items 

Total Current Assets 

• Nonc~rrentAssets: 
Capital assets (Note 6) 

Non-depreciable capital assets 
Depreciable capital assets, net 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABll,ITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable nod accrued payroll 
Interest payable 
Deposits 
Compensated absences (Note IF) 
Accrued self insurance 
Long-tern1 debt- due within one year (Note 8) 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurront Liabilities: 
Compensated absences (Note IF) 
Accrued self-Insurance (Noto 12) 
Long-term debt (Note 8) 

Duo in more than one year 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION (Note 9) 

Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Municipal 
Wnter 
Systern 

$4,890,267 

1,686,525 

1,565 

6,578,357 

102,763 
7,6.29,511 

1,732,274 

141J10l631 

382,200 

320,099 
14,095 

7161394 

126,853 

1261853 . 

8431247 

7,732,274 
5,735,110 

$131467,384 

Municipal Waste 
Water Treatment 

Facility 

$9,055,821 
1,320,007 

1,983,797 
16,456 

259,641 

12,635,722 

1,522,996 
41,810,870 

43,333,866 

55,9691588 

320,267 
221,359 

19,212 
25,829 

1.466,914 

2,053,581 

232,461 
27,228 

38,363,504 

38,6231193 

40,6761774 

4,823,455 
10,469,359 

$15,292,814 

Stonn 
Drain 

$59,934 

7,251 

67,185 

439,66! 

4391661 

506,846 

5,078 

100,000 
1,536 

106,614 

16,767 

16,767 

123,381 

439,661 
(561196) 

$3831465 

Some amounts reported for business-type activities In the Statement ofNeL Position are different 
because certain intem1ll service fund assets and linbJllties are included witl1 business-type activities. 

Net position business-type .iotivities 

See accompanying notes to financial stntements 
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$14,006,022 
l,320,007 

3,670,322 
16,456 
7,251 

261,206 

1912811264 

1,625,759 
49,8801042 

5).505,801 

70,787,065 

707,545 
221,359 
439,311 
41,460 

11466,914 

21876,589 

376,081 
27,228 

3813631504 

381766,813 

41,643,402 

12,995,390 
16,148,273 

29,143,663 

611657 

$29,205,320 

Governmental 
Activities­

Internal Service 
Funds 

$4,257,107 

27,297 

2,468 

4,286,872 

622,092 

622,092 

4!908,964 

18,988 

437,396 
663,385 

11119,769 

708,916 
1,843,233 

215521149 

31671,918 

622,092 
614,954 

$1,237,046 



0PERATINO REVENUES 
Water sales 
Sewer service fees 
Equipment rental 
Interdepartmental charges 
Storm drain fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personnel services 
Contractual services 
Materials, suppllr;:s and other services 
Wnter purchases 
Depreciation 
Utilities 
InsunU\ce premiums and claims 

Total Opcr-al:ing Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

N0N0PERATING REVENUES (EXPENSllS) 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Jnterest revenue 
Interest expense and fiscal cb11rges 

Totnl Noooperaling Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 

Transfers in (Nole 4A) 
Trllllsfers out (Note 4A) 

Net transfers 

Change in net position 

BEGlNNING NET P0SlTI0N 

ENDING NET POSITION 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEM_ENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Business•tyPe Activities-Enterprise Funds 

Municipal 
Water 
System 

$6,740,002 

5,010 

6,745,012 

1,527,781 
641,312 
341,970 

3,362,707 
318,267 
43,683 
70,356 

6,306,076 

438,936 

(66,133) 
52,778 

(13,355) 

425,581 

425,581 

13,041,803 

$13,467,384 

Municipal Waste 
WnterTrentmenl Storm 

Facility Dmln 

$8,546,835 

60,929 

8,607,764 

2,922,225 
1,107,253 

460,959 

869,412 
184,322 
99,763 

5,643,934 

2,963,830 

(12,324) 
122,674 

(834,832) 

(724,482) 

2,239,348 

76,115 

76,115 

2,315,463 

12,977,351 

$l5,29:l,8J4 

$248,950 
48,750 

297,700 

194,028 
165,155 

3,033 

42,973 
7,129 
8,111 

420,429 

(122,729) 

(1,041) 
2,080 

1,039 

(121,690) 

(121,690) 

505,155 

$383,465 

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Activities are different because 11 
portion of the net inoome of certain internal service funds is reported wiU1 the business-type activities 
which those funds service 

Change In net position of business-type activities 

See accompanying notes to financial st;J.tements 
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Totals 

$6,740,002 
8,546,835 

248,950 
114,689 

15,650,476 

4,644,034 
1,913,720 

805,962 
3,362,707 
1,230,652 

235,134 
178,230 

12,370,439 

3,280,037 

(79,498) 
177,532 

(834,832) 

p36,798) 

2,543,239 

76,115 

76,115 

2,619,354 

(25,257) 

$2,594,097 

Governmental 
Activities• 

Internal Service 
F\lnds 

$646,921 
1,364,693 

92,575 

2,104,189 

214,753 
257,480 
147,150 

160,406 

1,730,086 

2,509,875 

(405,686) 

(10,129) 
687 

(9,442) 

(415,128) 

(138,320) 

(138,320) 

{553,448) 

1,790,494 

$1,237,046 



ClTY OF MILLBRAE 

PROPRJETARY PUNDS 

STA'f.BME!NT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Bi1$iness-t:ypc Activities-Enterprise Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AC'l'fV1TIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Claims paid 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPIT AL 
FINANCING ACTM'l'IES 

TransfcrS in 
Transfers (out) 

Cnsh Flows from Noncapital Finoucing Aclivilics 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTMTIES 

Acquisition of capital assets, net 
Proceeds from long tenn debt 
Principal payments on capita.I debt 
Interest paid 

Cash Flows from Capital and 
Related Finuncing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of investment wilh fiscal agent 
Interest 

Cash Flows from InvcsHng Activities 

Net Cash Flows 

Cash aod investments at beginning of period 

Cash and investments at end of period 

Reconcilintiort of Operat.i_11g Income (Loss) to Cnsh Flows 
from Operating Aollvitics: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcll~ operating income (loss) 

lo cash flows from operating oclivitio:is: 
Depreciation 

Change in assets !llld liabillties: 
Receivables, net 
Due from other govGrnmental agencies 
Accounts payable 
Compel)sntcd absences 
Prepaid items 
Refundable deposits 
Accrued self insurance 

Cash Flows from Operating Aclivilics 

NONCASH TRANSACTION 
Retirement of premium 

Mt.in!cip~I 
Water 
System 

$6,577,061 
(4,418,221) 
(1,643,995) 

514 845 

(511,990) 

(511,990) 

5').,778 

:52,778 

:SS,633 

$4,834,634 

$4,890,267 

$438,936 

318,267 

(179,401) 

43,372 
(116,214) 

(1,565) 
U ,450 

$514,845 

Municipal Waste 
Water Treatment 

Focllily 

$8,591,302 
(2,366,743) 
(3,065,407) 

3,159,152 

76,115 

76,115 

(3,206,944) 
1,196,751 

(1,462,992) 
(817,144) 

(4,290,329) 

(22,562) 
106 218 

83,656 

(971,406) 

$10,027,227 

$9,055,821 

$2,963,830 

869,412 

(22,114) 

(452,920) 
(143,182) 

11,246 
5,6S2 

(72,772) 

$3,1593152 

$4,951 

See accoruponylng notes to financial statements 
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Storm 
Drain 

$397,700 
(192,939) 
(202,875) 

. 1,886 

(48,7SO) 

(48,750) 

2,080 

2,080 

(44,7S4) 

$104,718 

$59,934 

($122,729) 

42,973 

(4,931) 
(4,580) 
(8,847) 

100,000 

$1,886 

Totals 

$15,S-66,063 
(6,977,903) 
(4,912,277) 

3,675.883 

76,115 

76,115 

(3,767,684) 
1,196,751 

(1,462,992) 
(817,144) 

(4,851,069) 

(22,552) 
161,076 

138,514 

(960,557) 

14,966,579 

$14,006,022 

$3,280,037 

1,230,652 

(201,515) 
(4,931) 

(414,128) 
(268,243) 

9,681 
117,102 
(7~772) 

$3,675,883 

Governmental 
Activities­

lntemal Service 
Funds 

$1,359,479 
(425,191) 
(235,447) 
(801,426) 

(102,585) 

(138,320) 

(138,320) 

688 

688 

(240,217) 

4,497.324 

$4,257,107 

($405,686) 

160,406 

(20,951) 
16,483 
(9,934) 

(760,936) 

918,033 

($102,5851 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

These funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, and other governments. The financial activities of these funds are excluded from the City­
wide financial statements, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial statements. 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO nm REDEVELOl-,MENT AGENCY PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST 
FUND 

The Fund is used to account for the activities of the Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Millbrae. 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Cash nnd investments (Note 3) 
Cash with fiscal agents (Note 3) 
Receivables: 

Accounts - net 
Accrued interest 

Land held for resale (Note 1513) 
Capital assets (Note 15): 

Depreciable capital assets, net 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIBS 
Accounts payable 
Interest payable 
Deposits 
Long-term debt (Note 15): 

Portion due with.in one year 
Portion due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 

Held in trust for other purposes 

Successor 
Agency to the 
Redevelopment 

Agency 
Private-Purpose 

Trust Fund 

$3,227,935 
551,463 

4,280 
1,292 

1,324,591 

428,447 

$5,538,008 

$2,337,808 
140,479 

8,560 

200,000 
7,410 000 

10 096 847 

($4,558,839) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

ADDITIONS 
Property tax 
Use of money and property 

Total additions 

DEDtJCTIONS 
Community Development 
Depreciation 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total deductions 

Net change in net position before 
extraordinary item 

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM (NOTE 15) 
Redevelopment dissolution payments 

NET POSITION 

Beginning of year 

Endofyear 

Successor 
Agency to the 
Redevelopment 

Agency 
Private-Purpose 

Trust Fund 

$1,123,606 
68 347 

1,191,953 

1,110,560 
14,522 

339,704 

1,464,786 

(272,833) 

(2,331,079) 

(1,954,927) 

($4,558,839) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF MJLLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS 
Fot· the Fiscal Y car Ended ,June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC:IES 

The City of Millbrae was incorporated as a general law city in 1948. The City operates under the 
Council-City Manager, fonn of government and provides the following services: public safety 
(fire), highways and streets, sewer, water, recreation, publio improvements, planning and zoning, 
building inspections, and general administration services. 

The financial statements and accounting policies of the City conform with generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable to governments. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. Significant acco1mting policies are summarized below: 

A. Basis of Prese11tati.01z 

The City's Basic Financial Statements are prepared in confonn.ity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America . The Government Accounting Standards 
Board is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial 
reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the U.S.A. 

These Statements require that the financial statement s described below be presented. 

Govemme,it -wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
display infonnation about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These 
statements include the financial activities of the overall City government. Eliminations have been 
made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish 
between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes, intergovero.menta] revenues, and other nonexchange 
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in pwt by fees charged to extemal 
parties, Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each segme nt of the business-type activities of the City and for each fonction of the 
City's govemment.11 activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable lo a particular function. Program 
revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the prograrns, 
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular 
program and ( c) fees, grants and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or 
construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all 
taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

F1111d Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City;s 
funds, including blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category­
governmental and proprietary - are presented . The emphasis of fund financial statements is on 
major individual governmental and enterprise funds, each of which is displayed U.l a separate 
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reporte d as 
nonmajor funds. 
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CITY OF MlLLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN'rING POLICIES (Continued) 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in 
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as 
subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities . 

B. Major F1mds 

The City's major governmental and business-type funds are identified and presented separately 
in the fund financial statements . AIJ other funds, called non-major funds, are combined and 
i:eported in a single column. regardless of their fund-type . 

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses equal to ten percent of their fund -type total and five pel'cent of the grand 
total. The General Fund is always a major fund. The City may also select other funds it believes 
should be presented as major funds . 

The City reported the following major governmental funds 111 the accompanying financial 
statements: 

GENERAL FUND - The General Fund is established to account for the revenues and 
expenditures to carry out basic governmental activities of the City such as general government, 
public safety, highway and street, culture and recreation, and community development. This 
fund accounts for all financial transactions not accounted for in the other funds. 

LOW AND MODERATE INCOME HOUSING ASSET SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
This fund accounts for the activities related to the housing assets assumed by the City as Housing 
Successor to the former Redevelopment Agency . Tho activities are governed by California 
redevelopment law and must be used to provide housing for people with low and moderate 
incomes. The main source of new revenues for this fund is the repayment of restricted housing 
loans. 

The City reported all its enterprise funds as major funds 111 the accompanying financial 
statements: 

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM FUND - To account for activities related to providing water 
service to the Millbrae residents. 

MUNICIPAL WASTE WATER TREATMENT FACILITY FUND - To account for services 
of the collection, treatment and administration of the City's sanitation system 

STORM DRAIN FUND - To account for the resources and costs of maintenance and 
improvements of the City's storm drains 

40 



CITY OF Mll,LBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
)for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The City also reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds. These funds account for garage services, workers' compensation, 
general liability, unemployment insurance, and compensated absences; all of which are provided 
to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Private Purpose Trust Fmtd. The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency Private­
Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for payments at 
appropriate amounts and times in the future. The financial activities of the funds are excluded 
from the Government-wide financial statements, but are presented in the separate Fiduciary Fund 
financial statements . 

C Bm>'is of Acco1111ting 

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focu s and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incul'l'eci; regardless of when 
the related cash flows take place. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when 
measurable and uvailable. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to 
be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Expenditures are 
recorded when 1he related fund liabHity is incurred, except for principal and interest on general 
long-term debt, claims and judgment s, and compensated absences, which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured. Governmental capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of governmental longaterm debt and 
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources . 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property, sales, transient occupancy and franchise 
taxes, special assessments, licenses for senrices and interest revenue, and any fmes, permits, or 
charges for services that are measurable and available. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or 
giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the accrual 
basis, revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied or assessed. 
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the ftsc11l year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

The City may fund programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block 
grants, and general revenues. Th'us, both restricted and unrestricted net position may be available to 
finance program expenditures. The City's policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such 
programs, followed by general revenues if necessary. 

Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual function s and 
activities. 
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CITY OF MlLLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Y car Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTJNG POLICIES (Continued) ! 
D. Reve11ue Recognition/or Water w,d Sewer Enterprise F1111<fs 

Revenues are recognized based on cycle billings rendered to customers. Revenues for services 
provided but not biUed at the end of a fiscal period are accrued. 

E. Property Tax 

State Constitution Article 13 provides for a maximum general properly tax rate statewide of $1.00 
per $100 of assessed value. At the time of transfer of ownership, assessed value is calculated at 
100% of market value as defined by the above-reforonced Article 13; with limited exceptions, 
otherwise assessed value is calculated as the lesser of full cash value at the time of acquisition or 
2% over the prior year assessed value. The State Legislature has determined the method of 
distribution ofreceipts from a $1.00 tax levy among the counties, cities, school districts and other 
districts. Counties, cities and school districts may levy such additional tax rate as is necessary to 
repay voter-approved debt 

F. Co111.pe11s"tedAbsences 

Comp0nsated absences comprise unpaid vacation and the vested portion of sick leave wl1ich are 
accrued as earned, Tho City's liability for compensated absences is recorded in various 
Governmental funds or Proprietary funds as appropriate. The liability for compensated absences 
is determined annually. Compensated absences are reported in governmental funds only if they 
have matured. For a11 governmental funds, amounts expected to be permanently liquidated are 
recorded as fund liabilities; the long-term portion is recorded in the Statement of Net Position. 
The changes of the compensated absences were as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities Business•T;tee Total 

Beginning Balance $1,907,248 $685,71!4 S2,S93,032 
Addillons 542,983 294,635 837,618 
Payments 11ml Adjustments '113031919~ (562,878) (l,8GG, 797) 

Ending 811l1mce $1,146,312 $417,S41 $1,563,853 

Current l'ortion $437,396 $41,460 $4781856 • 

Compensated absences are liquidated by the fund that has recorded the liability. The long-term 
portion of governmental activities compensated absences is liquidated primarily by the General 
Fund. 

G. Use of Estimates 

The accompanying basic financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accow1ting principles. This requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the 
reporting period. Actual results could dLffer from those estimates. 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Y car Ended June 30, 2013 

J NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTJNG POLie .ms (Continued) I 
I , 

H. Cash and Cash Equivale11fs 

The City considers pooled cash and investment amounts, with maturities of three months or less, 
to be cash equivalents. 

L New Fmufs and Closed Fu11ds 

The 2004 Pension Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund was established to account for payment of 
principal and interest on the City's share of the 2004 California Statewide Communities 
Development Authority Capital Appreciation Bonds. 

The COPS & Other Grants Special Revenue Fund was closed during the fiscal year due to the City 
contracting its police services through the Sheriff's Office, 

J. lmpleme11tatio1t of Govemme11tal Accou1ttl1tg Standards Board Statements 

GASB Statement No. 60 - In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements. The objective of this Statement 
is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to servi~e concess ion arrangements 
(SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-public partnerships. The requirements of 
this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after Decemb er 15, 
2011. There was no impact on the City's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 61 - In Novembe r 2010, the GASB issued Statement No . 61, The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASE Statements No. J 4 and No. 34. 
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a govemmental financial 
reporting entity. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2012. There was no impact on the City's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 62 - In Dec ember 20 I 0, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification 
of Accounting and Financial Reporting guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB 
and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB's 
authoritative literahire certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the 
F ASB and AICP A pronouncements, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements . The requirements of this Statement are effective for fmancial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The City has implemented this statement in fiscal 
year 2013. 

GASB Statement No. 63 - In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No . 63, Financial 
Reporting of Deferred Ouiflows of Resources; Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. 
This Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The City has implemented this 
statement in fiscal year 2013. 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Yeal" Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 2-DUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

A. IJ11dgeti11g Procedures 

Every year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the 
next fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing t11em and is subject to public hearings where comments are obtained for consideration. 
Council adopts the budget through passage of a budget resolution at which time the proposed 
expenditures become appropriations to various Funds and City Departments. The budget is 
effective the following July I, and may be amended by subsequent City Council resolutions. 

The legal level of budgetary control is t11e fund level and tl1e Council must approve any revision 
of budget that increases the total expenditures of any fund. All appropriations remaining at year­
eud lapse, except for purchases in progress. With City Council approval, prior year unexpended 
and open project and grant appropriations will be rolled-over into the new fiscal year. 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generalty accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
for all funds except for Capital Projects Funds (which are budgeted on project length basis). 

B. E11cumbrances 

The City uses an encumbrance accounting system under which purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditure of moneys are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the 
applicable appropriation. Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary 
integration in a[I budgeted funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as 
reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities and are re~ 
appropriated in the following year. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end and must be re­
appropriated in the following year. Encumbrances outstanding as of Jw1e 30, 2013 were $203,355 
in the Genera] Fund, $74,395 in the Municipal Water System Enterprise Fund, $789,063 in the 
Municipal Waste Water Treatment Facility Enterprise Fund, and $128,162 in Other Governmental 
Funds. 

C Expe11dit11res ill Excess of Appropriatio11s 

The following funds incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in fiscal year 2013: 

Measure A Special Revenue Fund 
Sister City Special Revenue Fund 
Millbrae Station Area Developer Fee Operating Special Revenue Fu 
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Expenditures 
exceeded budget 

$217,235 
1,483 
2,834 



CITY OF Mll.LBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Foa· the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS I 
The City invests those funds not necessary for daily operations. except cash with fiscal agents. in 
investment options authorized by the City's investment policy. The goal is to invest at the 
maximum yield, consistent with safety and liquidity, while individual funds can process payments 
for expenditures at any time. The City's investments are carried at fair value, as required by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The City adjustq the carrying value of its investments to 
reflect their fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in 
income for that fiscal year. 

The City's cash and investments consist of the following at June 30, 2013: 

City Cash and Investments: 
Cash and investments available for operations 
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 

Total City Cash and Inve$tments 
Cash and investments in Fiducia,y Funds (Separate Statement): 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment 
Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund: 

Cash and investments available for operations 
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 
Total Cash and Investme.nts 

$41,864,615 
1,320,479 

43,185,094 

3,227,935 
551,463 

$46,964,492 

The City does not anocate investments by fund. Each proprietary fund's portion of Cash and 
Investments Available for Operations is in substance a demand deposit available to finance 
operations, and is considered a cash equivalent in preparing the statement of cash flows. 

A. A 11/horized Investme11ts by thf! City 

The City's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the City to invest in the 
following, provided the credit ratings are acceptable of the issuers are acceptable to the City. Any 
other investment not specified hereunder shall be made only upon prior approval by the City 
Council. This does not address the City's investments of debt proceeds held by fiscal agents that 
are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions 
of the California Government Code or the Entity's investment policy. 

When a percentage limitation for a particular security type is indicated, that percentage is 
applicable only on the date of purchase. Credit criteria listed in this section refers to the credit 
rating at the time the security is purchased. 

• Local government investment pools either state-administered or developed through joint 
powers statutes and other intergovernmental agreement legislation; 

• U.S. Treasury obligations which carry the full faith and credit guarantee of the United 
States government and are considered to be the most secured investments available; 

• U.S. government agency and instrumentality obligations that have a liquid market value 
with a readily determinable market value; 

• Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at financial institutions; 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCJAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

• Negotia ble Certificates of Deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank, a 
savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102 of the Financial 
Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federally - or state - licensed branch of a 
foreign battle No more than 3 0% of the City's portfolio may be invested in negotiable 
CD's. 

• Banlccrs' acceptances with a rating of the highest ranking or highest Jetter and number 
rating as provided for by a nationally recognized statisticalMrating organization 
(NRSRO) . Purchases of bankers' acceptances may not exceed 180 days. No more than 
40% of the City's portfolio may be invested in bankers' acceptances ; 

• Commercial paper, rated in the highest tier by an NRSRO. The entity that issues the 
comm,ercial paper must meet all the following conditions in either paragraph a or 
paragraph b: 
a) The entity meets the following criteria: (i) is organized and operating in th.e United 

States as a general corporation, (ii) has total assets in excess of five hundred million 
dollars ($500,000,000), and (iii) has debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is 
rated "A" or higher by an NRSRO . 

b) The entity meets the following criteria: (i) is organized in the United States as 
special purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company, (ii) has program­
wide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters 
of credit, or surety bond, and (iii) has commercial paper that is rated "A-1" or higher, 
or the equivalent by a NRSRO. 

Eligible commercial paper will have a maximum maturity of 270 days or less. No more 
than 25% of the City's portfolio may be invested in commercial paper. The City may 
purchase no more than l 0% of the outstanding commercial paper of any single issuer; 

• Investment-grade obligations of the State of California or any local agency whhin the 
state, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from a revenue producing property 
owned; controlled or operated by the state or any local agency, or by a department, 
board, agency or authority of the state or any local agency; 

• Investment-grade registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states in 
addition to California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a 
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state, or by a 
department, board, agency, or authority of any of these states; 

• Medium-Term Notes issued by corporations organized alld operating within the United 
States or by depository institutions licensed by the U.S. or any state and operating within 
the U.S. Medium-term corporate notes will be rated in a rating category "A" or its 
equivalent or better by a NRSRO. No more tl1au 30% of the City's portfolio may be 
invested in medium-term notes; and 

0 Money Market Mutual Funds are eligible for investment if the companies providing the 
mutual funds invest in only ln instruments authorized by Government Code, Sections 
53601 and/or 53635. Such companies shall have attained either the highest ranking or 
the highest letter and numerical rating provided by not less than two of the three largest 
nationally recognized rating services, or retain an investment advisor registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission with not less than five (5) years experience 
investing in securities and obligations authorized and whh assets under management in 
excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000). The purchase price of the share 
of beneficial interest shall not ioclude any commission that tl1ese companies charge . 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Fo1· the Fisca] Year Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

City did not enter into any reverse repurchase agreements during the year ended June 30, 2013. 

B. Autltorized Investments by Debt Agreements 

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents 
under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are uneXpended bond proceeds or are 
pledged reserves to be used if the City foils to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The 
California Government Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with City 
ordinances, bond indentures or State statutes , The following identifies the investment types that 
are authori zed for investments held by fiscal agents . The table also identifies certain provisions 
of these debt agreements: 

Authorized J.nvestment Type 

Local Agency Municipal Bonds 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 
State of California Obligations 
California Local Agency Obligations 
U.S. Agency Securities 
Bankers' Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Medium Term Notes 
Short-Term Certificates ofDeposit 
Repurchase Agreements 
Money Market Mutual Flll.lds 
Collaterali:zed Bank Deposits 
California Local Agency Investment Fund 
Unsecured CD's, deposit accounts, time 

deposil:S; bankers acceptances 
Special Revenue Bonds 
Prefunded Municipal Obligations 
FDIC insured deposit 

Maximum 
Maturity 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

I year 
270 days 

NIA 
1 year 

30 days 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

30 days 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

M.inimum 
Credit Quality 
Two highest 

rating category 
NIA 
A2IA 
NIA 
NIA 
Al 
Al 
A 

A-1 
A 

AA-M 
NIA 
NIA 

A-I 
AA 

AAA 
NIA 

There are no restrictions on the maximum amount invested in each security type or a maximum that 
can be invested in any one issuer. 

C. I11terest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment . Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment ; the greater the 
sensitivity of its fai.r value to changes in market interest rates. 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Yeru· Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) I 

D. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments to market interest 
rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution to the City's 
investments by maturity: 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 

or less Months Months Total 
Local Agency Investment Fund $6,325,339 $6,325,339 

San Mateo County Investment Fund 15,681,598 15,681,598 

Negotiable or Non-Negotiablo 

Certificates of Deposit 2,485,217 $995,925 $1,920,752 5,401,894 

Money Market Ftmds 131,464 131,464 

U.S. Government Agency Obligation 

CnlJable 982,050 982,050 

Municipal Bonds 291,488 2,194,138 1,686,860 4,172,486 

Medium Tenn Notes 
Non-CaUable 593,108 497,608 104,386 t,195,102 

Petty Cash 1,480 1,480 
Cash in banks 13,073,079 13,073,079 

Total Cash and Investments $39,564,823 $3,687,671 $3,711,998 $46,964,492 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the miuimwn rating required by the Califomia 
Government Code t the City's investment policy, or debt agreements and the actual rating as of 
June 3 Ot 2013 for each investment type: 

ln~imon!Tl:J!C MAm M1 • AA· A A- OllB SP! Total 

Money Market Fwub $131,46'1 $131,464 
U.S. Govommool Aocncy Obligation 

Non Callabla S982,0S0 982,0S0 
Municipal Bonds S608,87S $92.3,983 $i,087,4i0 $291,488 $260,720 4,172:486 
Medium Tenn Noles 

Non-Callable s9b463 313,158 289.481 111951102 

$)31!464 $982,0S0 $608.875 $115)61446 $2140~,S.z! SSB0,%9 $260,720 6,4KJ,102 

Nolraltd: 
Lo,nl A8"'1<=Y lnvcslmcot l'uad 6,325,339 
San M•l•o CoWJty l.avast,neo1 Fund IS,681,S98 
Nc&otioblc or Non•Ncgolisblc 

Cor1lllcal~ or ,lepo$i( S,401,894 
Petty Cash 1,480 
CA$h i!l bool.$ 13,073,079 

Tolnl Cash and Investments $46,964,4!12 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended Jmle 30, 2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) I 
E. Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Under California Government 
Code Section 53651, depending on specific types of eligible securities, a bank must deposit 
eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent having a fair value of 105% to 150% of the 
City's cash on deposit. AU of the City's deposits are either insured by the Federal Depository 
Insurance Coq,oration (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged securities held in the trust 
department of the financial institutions in the City's name. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty ( e.g. broker~dealer) to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of 
its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The City's 
Investment Policy limits it~ exposure to custodial credit risk by requiring that all security 
transactions entered into by the City, including coUateral for repurchase agreements, be 
conducted on a delivery-versus-payment basis. Securities are to be held by a third party 
custodian. 

F. Co11ce11tratlo11 Risk 

Significant investments in the securities of any individual issuers, other than U. S. Treasury 
securities, mutual funds, arc set forth below: 

Rcponing Unit 

Major Fund: 
Gener11I Fund 

Muaioipal Waste Weier Trcatmcot 
Facility Enterprise Fund 

Issuer 

llllnois Slnlc Bonds 

Mullllll Securities 

Federal HomeLoa11 Mortgage 
Corpomtloa 

BP Capi!Pl Markets PLC 
Golclman Sachs Group lnc. 
Hewlet~•Pa.ckard Company 
Wells FBfgo Company 

G. Local Agellcy l1tvestme1tt F1111d 

Invc~tuic11t 
Type 

Municipal Bonds 

Certificates of Deposits 

United States Government Agenoy 
Obligations 

Medium Term Notes 
Medium Tern, Notes 
Medium Term Notes 
Medi.Wll Tc:rm Notes 

Reported 
Amount 

$2,087,420 

1,233,968 

98.?,050 

288,836 
313,l58 
289,481 
303,627 

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated 
by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State 
of California. The City reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by 
LAIF. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by 
LAIi\ which ate recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF's investment portfolio 
are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed 
securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, 
government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. At June 30, 2013, these investments 
mat11red in an average of278 days. 
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

!NOTE 3-CASHAND INVF.-STMENTS (Continued) 

H. Sa,i Mateo Cormty Investment Fund 

The City is a voluntary participant in the San Mateo County Investment Fund (SMCIF) that is 
regulated by California Government Code Section 53600 under the oversight of the Treasurer of 
tho County of San Mateo. The City reports its investment in SMCJF at the fair value amount 
provided by SMCIF. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by SMCIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in SMCIF's 
investment portfolio are U.S. Treasury Notes, obligations issued by agencies of the U.S. 
Government, LAJF, corporate notes, commercial paper, collateralized mortgage obligations, 
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating rate secudties issued by 
federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. At June 30, 2013, these 
investments matured in an average of719 days. 

I NOTE 4 -INTERFOND TRANSACTIONS. 

A. Tra11sf ers Between F1111ds 

With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another. Transfers 
between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 were as follows: 

Fund Receivi11g Tninsfers 

General Fund 

Waste Waler Enterprise fund 

Non-Major Govemmenlol Funds 

The reasons for these transfers aro sel forth below: 

A To fund lldminislrt1livc/maintr.nance expenditures 
B To fund debt service payments 
C Tox oUocalion end loan payment 

B. I11ternal Balance8 

Fund Making Tl'llosfcrs 

Internal Service Funds 
Non-Major Governmental funds 

Non-Mnjor Govonuncnlnl Funds 

GenemlFund 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 

Tr:nisrerrcd 

$138,320 B 
258,981 A, B 

76,115 A, B, C 

532,0;27 A.B 
49 004 A, B, C 

Total lntcrfund Tl'llllsfers ,_,,==$~1,=05=4=.44=7=; 

Internal balances are presented in the Entity-wide financial statements only. They represent the 
net interfund receivable s and payables remaining after the elimination of all such balances within 
governmental and business~type activities. 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 5- LOANS RECEIVABLE I 
Low and Moderate Income Housing Assets Fund Loans receivable as of June 30, 2013, comprised 
of the following: 

Project 

Low-and-Moderate First Time Home Buyer Program 
Dolores Lia Apartments Loan 
Below Market Rate Loan 

88 South Broadway 
1388 Broadway 

Total Loans Receivable 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
88 South Broadway 
1388 Broadway 

Total Collectible Loans Receivable 

A. Low-a11d-Moderate-I11come First Time Home B11yer Program 

Amount 

$497,132 
5,700,000 

4,143,040 
1,369,681 

$11,709,853 

($92,068) 
(30,437) 

$11,587,348 

The Low and Moderate Income First Time Home Buyer Program was established to provide 
mortgages for up to 20 employees of School Districts located within the City. In order to qualify 
participants must be employees of these Districts and they must be home buyers in low and 
moderate-income who do not qualify for a home purchase without down payment assistance. 
These loans bear no interest nor requ_ire payments for the first ten years of the loan or until the 
participant ceases employment with the District, which ever is earlier. After that date the loans 
bear a negotiated interest rate and require monthly interest payments. The loans are secured by 
second deeds of trust, require the principal balance to be paid at the end of the thirty year term 
and must be repaid in full if the property is sold to an unqualified buyer . 

B. Dolores Lia Apartm.e11ts Loan 

In June 2011~ the former Redevelopment Agency authorized the execution of a loan commitment 
agreement pursuant to which the Agency agreed to provide $5.7 million ofresidual receipts loan to 
Pacific West Communities, Inc. for the acquisition and rehabilitation/permanent fmancing of a 27-
unit affordable residential rental project located at 1275 El Camino Real (the Dolores Lia Project). 
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I NOTE s - LOANS RECEIVABLE I 
C. Belmv Market Rate Loa11 

The former Redevelopment Agency sponsors a program that provides homeownership 
opportunities to individuals at1d families of moderate-income by offering below-market rate 
deferred payment financing. The Agency provided below-market rate/deferred payment financing 
for ten (10) units located at 88 South Btoadway and eight (8) units located at 1388 Broadway. 
The loans have a term of forty-five ( 45) years, and provided the Owner is not in default, no 
interest shall accrue on the principal balance of the loan, Upon the expiration of the forty-five 
(45) year agreement, the Owner may renew for an additional forty-five (45) years. The loan, 
together with sale proceeds exceeding tho resale affordable price, is payable in full upon the sale, 
encumbrance or other transfer of property. 

I NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS j 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost 
is not available, Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the 
date contributed. The City defines capital assets as those assets with an initial lndjyjdual cost of 
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years, 

Durh,g the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 the City recorded the historical costs and depreciation of 
infrastructure assets to comply with the requirements of GASB 34. The results of this study were 
included iii the City's financial reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, and resulted in 
accounting adjustments in governmental activities. TI1e results of these accounting adjustments are 
reported as GASB 34 Implementation Adjustments. 

GASB Statement 34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be depreciated over 
their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, the "modified approach" may be used for certain 
capital assets. Depreciation is not provided under this approach, but all expenditures on these 
assets are expensed, unless they are additions or improvements. 

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equilabl:Y among all users over the 
life of those assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year's 
pro rata share of the cost of capital assets. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method which means the cost of the asset is divided 
by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the asset is 
folly depreciated. The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets: 

Water and Waste Water Mains, Lines and Tnmks 
Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 
Automobiles and Trncks 
Inftastructu('e 

15-20 years 
7-50 years 
5-20 years 
2-10 years 
20-65 years 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset 
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the sru11.e period. 
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I NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS {Contin~d) I 
Changes in capital assets during the yw ended June 30, 2013 comprise: 

Governmental nctlvltlcs 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in process 

Total capital us:;ets not being deprecinted 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Building and Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 

Automobiles and Trucks 
fnfra5tructure 

Tota.I cnpital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for. 

Building and Improvements 

Furniture, Fixtures nnd Equipment 

Automobiles and Trucks 

Infruslructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets 

Internal Service Fund Capital Assets 
Building and Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 

Automobiles and T.rucks 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Building and Improvements 

Furniture, Fixtures nnd Equipment 

Automobiles and Trucks 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Net Internal Service Capital Assets 
Being Depreciated 

Governmental activity capital assets, net 

Bnlnnce al 

. June 30, 2012 Increases Decreases 

$15,334,335 
$13,156 

15,334,335 13,156 

20,755,749 313,213 
4,335,886 1,007,842 ($26,064) 

344,655 

56,088,731 356,374 (45,687) 

81,525,021 1,677,429 (711751) 

4,946,946 422,935 

3,353,016 187,774 (7,062) 

325,056 6,172 

32,045,811 725,423 (19,053) 

40,670,829 1,342,304 (26,ll5) 

56,188,527 348,281 (45,636) 

80,065 
713,410 

2,304,056 (96,869) 

3,097,531 (96,869) 

44,091 1,301 

386,012 44,890 

1,874,800 114,215 (86,739) 

2,304,903 160,406 (86,739) 

792,628 (160,40§) (10,130) 

$56,981,155 187,875 ($55,766) 

53 

Balance at 
June 301 2013 

$15,334,335 
13,156 

15,347,491 

21,068,962 

5,317,664 
344,655 

56,399,418 

83,130,699 

5,369,881 

3,533,728 

331,228 

32,752,181 

41,987,018 

56,491,172 

80,065 
713,410 

2,207,187 

3,000,662 

45,392 

430,902 

1,902,276 

2,378,570 

622,092 

$57,113,264 
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I NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) I 

Business-type activities 
Capital ossets not being depreciated: 

Land 
CoJ1struction in Progress 

Tole! capitol ru;selS not being dcpreeMed 

Copltal assets, being depreciated; 

Building and Improvements. 

r:umilurc, fixtures and Bquipment 

Automobiles nnd Trucks 

lnfill$lructJJrc 

Totnl c:.ipl!nl ns~ets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for. 

Lnnd Improvements 

Building and Improvements 

Furniture, Fixtures ~nd Equipment 

Automobiles and Trucks 

lnfrastrncturo 

Total nfturnulnted dcp.rcciation 

Depreciable ~pital assots 

Business-type activity capitol nssets, net 

A. Capital Asset Contributio11s 

Bahmcaal 
June 30, 2012 

$1,785,218 
31,604,158 

33,389,376 

5,877,357 

15,879,541 

70,367 
14,392,694 

36,219,959 

3,281,702 

10,053,0lS 

59,960 
7,166,449 

20,561.126 

15,658,833 

$49,048,20!) 

lncrcnscs Decreases 

.$14,399 

14 3911 

Z,107,177 

330,305 ($105,Sl.iO) 

1,315,863 (25,845) 

3,753,345 (131,405) 

183,651 

831,290 (38,624) 

2,543 

213,172 (13,28.5) 

1.230,6S6 (51,909) 

2,522,689 (79,496) 

.$2,537,088 ($79.496) 

Transfers 

($183,948) 
(3 I ,594,068} 

(31,778,016) 

31,594,068 

183,948 

Jl,778,016 

31,778,016 

Balance at 
June 30,20 1.3 

$1,601,270 
24,489 

1,625,759 

39,578,602 

16,104,286 

70,367 

15,866,660 

71,619,915 

3,465,353 

10,845,681 

62,503 

7,366,336 

21,739,873 

49,880,042 

$51,505,801 

Some capital assets may be acquired using Federa l and State grant fundsi or lhey may be 
contributed by developers or other governments. OASB Statement 34 requires that these 
contributions be accounted for as revenues at the time the capital assets are contributed. 
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!NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

B. Depreciation Allocatio11 

Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the related 
assets. The amounts allocated to each function or program are as follows: 

Govornmentnl Activities 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Highways nnd Streets 

CuHure and Recreation 

Community Development 

Subtotal 

Capital assets held by the City's Internal Service Funds 

Business-Type Activities 

Municipal Water System 

Toto! Governmont:d Activities 

Municipal Wastewater Trentrnenl Facility 

StormDraln 

Total Business-Type Actlvlllcs 

!NOTE 7 - PROPERTY HELD FOR RESALE 

$195,503 

94,106 

721,462 

37,431 

293,802 

1,342,304 

160,406 

$1,502,710 

$318,267 

869,412 

42,973 

$1,230,652 

During fiscal year 2013, the Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency transferred 
land held for resale back to the Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Special Revenue Fund 
in the amount of $587,223. Such laud parcels are accounted for at the lower of cost or net 
realizable value or agreed,upon sales price if a disposition agreement has been made with a 
developer. 
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I NOTE 8-LONG-TERMDEBT I 
The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have 
useful lives equal to or greater than the related debt. 

The City>s debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter. 

Current Year Transactio11s and Bala11ces 

Go•'"'""""lo/ ,1.ct,"vfly D!lbt: 
l00 l Pobllo Ub111ry Geno111I Obllg•llon Jlonds 

Public Llbtaty Ptojret 
U2¾•U¼. duo 8/112036 

2004 l'onslon Obllcotion Bonds Scriu A,2 
4.l S%·6.58V., duo 6/l/i!Ol4 

Dlr.,ct LondcrTax Elrnmpl Lonn 
4.2..5%, duoJl!/2024 

Toiill Oovmuntntal AdMty Oobt 

Dusf tttsr"l)'PC ,lclivl()' Pebt: 
Ent"'Jldso Funds! 

2009 Sl•I• Wotor Rc,ourcc, 13o•rd 
\V&!.tt Pollution Conltol Pinnt Ro0ovmlon 
1%. duo◄/1/2032 
2009A Wut•mt•r Rol1'nue 

C•rlil'ir.ttu of Purliclpotlon 
7.423¾, duo 121112039 
20091! Wutcwolcr Rc,-cnuc 

Ccrtlneatu or P..-1lelpallon 
2.0-S.125%, duo 1211/2034 
Premium, Mt orzlinottbtlon 

·rota! Bu,ins,s-Typc Activity Debt 

Original laaue 
Amount 

SI0,600,000 

I l.5°21.630 

2,SSS,000 

S28,J97,l BO 

$.$60.0"00 

10,iso,oqo 
12J,n4 

Balance 
Juno 30, 2012 

$10,045,000 

11,889.318 

2,426.000 

$27,360,318 

5,560,000 

7,020,000 
110,914 

$40,096,659 

A. 2001 - General Obligation Bonds - Public Library 

Additions 

$935,157 

S93S,157 

$1,196,751 

ltedrrment:s 

S130,000 

890,000 

163,000 

SI.M.ooo 

Sl.308.041 

150,000 
<l,9SI 

Sl.462,992 

Ba!enoc 
Jpr.o 30, 201) 

S?,91S.OOO 

14,93◄.m 

2,l6MOO 

$27,112,475 

$27.29~.JSS 

~.560,000 

6,870,000 
!o6,033 

119,810,418 

Cumnt 
Portion 

$145,000 

'llS,000 

166.000 

$1,236,000 

SJ,311,914 

155,000 

$1,466,914 

On August 7, 2001, the City issued 2001 General Obligation Boncls in the amount of $10,600,000. 
The Bond proceeds were used to renovate, and construct an expansion area of the Millbrae Public 
Library. Semi-annual interest payments are due each February 1 and August 1, and principal js due 
on August 1 repayable from General Fund revenues until August 1, 2036. These bonds are 
repayable from a voter-approved tax levied for that purpose. The City has covenanted to direct the 
County to levy ad valorem taxes upon all property within the City subject to taxation, The total 
principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $17)595,660. Principal and interest paid 
for the current year was $632,674. 

On August 1, 2013 the City issued 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds iu the amount of 
$9,745,000 for the purpose to refinance all of the City's outstanding 2001 General Obligation 
Bonds (Millbrae Public Library Project). The net proceeds of the Bonds were used to def ease and 
refund all of the 2001 Bonds. The 2001 Bond Redemption effective date was August 1, 2013 and 
did not have impact on the current year fmancial statements. However, the refmancing resulted in a 
net present value savings of$1.26 million over the remaining life of the bonds. 
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I NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

B. 2004 Pe11sioll Ohligatio11 Bonds 

On June 29, 2004, the California Statewide Communities Development Authority issued the 
2004 Series A•2 Capital Appreciation Bonds in the amount of $18,529,195, of which 
$11,521,630 was the Cjty's poi:tion. The bond proceeds were used to prepay the unfunded 
liabiUty of the Miscellaneous and Safety Pension Plans through the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System. As of June 30, 2013, prepaid pension obligations amounted to $6,623,487. 

The Bonds unaccreted discount totaled $13,845,525 at June 30, 2013. The Bonds do not pay 
periodic interest. Interest on the Bonds will accrete in value at the rates of 4.35% to 6.58%. 
Repayments of the accreted principal commenced June 1, 2008. 

C. 2009 Stale Water Resources Co11trol Boan/ Loa,i 

On October 1, 2009 the City of Millbrae entered into a loan agreement with the State Water 
Resources Control Board, to fund the Water Pollution Control Plant Renovation Project. Under 
the agreement, the State Water Board agrees to provide project funds in the maximum amout1t of 
$28,397,180. The project funds will be repaid at an interest rate of one percent (1 %) per annum. 
Repayment of project funds together with all interest accruing will be repaid in annual 
installments, beginning one year after the completion of the Water Pollution Control Plant. 
Annual principal and interest payments are due each November 30 until November 30, 2031. The 
total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the loan is $30,104,822. Principal and interest 
paid for the cwrent year was $1,563,965. 

D. 2009 - Certificates of Participation - Wastewater 

On December 15, 2009, the City, under an installment sale agreement with the Millbrae Financing 
Authority, issued 2009 Wastewater Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series A and Series B, to 
fmance a portion of the renovation and modernization of the City's wastewater treatment facilities. 

Series A COP were issued in the principal amount of $5,560,000 to finance the acquisition and 
construction of improvements to the wastewater collection and treatment enterprise of the City. 
Principal payments commence on December 1, 2035, are due annually on December 1, 
commencing. Interest payments are due semiannually on June 1 and December I, through 
December 1, 2039. Debt service is payable from net revenue of municipal waste water treatment 
faciHty enterprise Fund. Interest rate is 7.423% per annum. 

Series B COP were issued in the principal amount of $10,250,000 to refinance the City's 
outstanding 2008 Subordinate Notes and 2005 bank note instalhnent sale agreement. Principal 
payments are due annually on December 1 and interest payments are due semiannually on June 1 
and December 1, through December 1, 2034. Debt service is payable from net revenue of 
municipal waste water treatment facility enterprise Fund. Interest ranges from 2.0% to 5.125%. 
The remaining debt service for the bank note installment sale agreement was $7,842,269 while the 
net debt service for the 2009 Series B COl' related portion was $6,151,290; resulting in the 
aggregate difference in debt service amount of $1,690,978. The remaining debt service for the 2008 
Subordinate Notes was $4,034,388 while the debt service for the 2009 Series B COP related portion 
was $4,007,789; resulting in the aggregate difference in debt service amount of $26,599. The 
economic gain on the transaction was a net present value benefit in the amount of $278,948. 
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I NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

E. 2012 Direct Lellder Tax Exempt Lease 

On August 25, 2011; the City entered into a lease agreement with Municipal Finance Corporation in 
the amount of $2;555,000 to provide funds for the refunding on a current basis of the outstanding 
debt the City issued with its 1999 Certificates of Participation (COPs). The outstanding principal 
amount of the COPs was $2,850,000 was paid off in full on September 1, 2012. The City refunded 
the COPs in order to generate an economic gain based on interest rate savings. The economic gain 
on the transaction was a net present value benefit in the amount of$634,477. 

Interest paym.ents due on March 1 and September I of each year and principal due on March 1 are 
repayable from General Fund revenue. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the 
loan is $2,879,078. Principal and interest paid for the current year was $266,105. 

F. Debt Service Reqttil'ements 

Annual debt service requirements are shown below: 

Governmental Activities 
Year ending 

June 30: Principal (A) Interest Total 

2014 $1,236,000 $590,351 $1,826,351 
2015 1,289,000 575,797 1,864,797 
2016 1.350,000 560,414 1,910,414 
2017 1,407,000 544,091 1,951,091 
2018 1,472,000 526,613 1,998,613 

2019-2023 8,431,000 2,321,980 10,752,980 
2024-2028 9,408,000 1,728,070 11,136,070 
2029-2033 I 1,445,000 1,131,030 12,576,030 
2034-2038 4,920,000 318,392 5,238,392 
2039-2040 

Total $401958!000 $81296!738 $49,254,738 

Premium, net ofamortiz.ation 

(A) Includes unaccreted discount totaling $13,845,525 

G. Debt witl,0111 City Commitme11t 

Business-Type Activities 

Principal 

$1,466,914 
1,484,640 

1,502,886 
1,526,265 
1,544,778 
8,066,3:55 
7,885,022 
7,607,525 
6,255,000 
2,385,000 

39,724,385 

106,033 

$39,830,418 

Interest 

$1,018,675 
1,001,2:25 

982,278 
962,099 
941,487 

4,366,142 
3,775,422 
3,336,819 
1,877,398 

1791080 

$18,440,625 

Total 

$2,485,589 
2,485,865 
2,485,164 
2,488,364 
2,486,265 

12,432,497 
11,660,444 
l0,944,344 
8,132,398 
2,564,080 

$58,165,010 

On September 1, 1997 the City sponsored the issuance of the City of Millbrae Residential Facility 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A which were issued in the aggregate principal amount of$30,000,000 
to assist a developer in fmancing the cost of site acquisition, demolition and coustmction of a 158 
unit assisted Jiving facility and parking garage. The Bonds are payable solely out of the revenues 
from operating the facility and the project is pledged as security for the Bonds. The City has no 
legal or moral liability with respect to the payment of this debt. The outstanding principal balance 
at June 30, 2013 was $23,315,000. 
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I NOTE 9-NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES 

A. Net Positio11 

Net Position is the excess of all the City's assets and deferred outflow of resources over all its 
HabUities and deferred inflows of resources , regardless of fund. Net Position is divided into 
three captions tmder GASB Statement 34. These captions apply only to Net Position, which is 
determined only at the Government-wide and proprietary funds level, and are descr ibed below: 

Net investment in capital assets, describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the 
current net book value oflhe City's capital assets, less the outstanding balance of nny debt issued to 
finance these assets. 

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and 
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions 
which the City cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include developer fees received for use 
on capital projects, debt service requirements, and redevelopment funds restricted to low and 
moderate-income purposes. 

Unresb'icted describes the portion of Net Position whJch is not restricted to use. 

B. F1111d Balance 

Governmental fund balances represent the net current asset'3 of each fund. Net current assets 
generally represent a fund's cash and receivables, less its liabilities. 

The City's fund balances are classified in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement Number 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, which requires the City to classify its fund balances based on spending constraints 
imposed on the use of resources. For programs with multiple funding sources, the City 
prioritizes and expends funds in the following order: Restricted , Committed, Assigned, and 
Unassigned . The City Council, through resolution , is able to restrict funds for specific purposes, 
thus creating assigned balances. Each category in the following hierarchy is ranked according to 
the degree of spe,nding constraint: 

Nonspendables represents balnnces set aside to indicate items do not represent available, spendable 
resources even though they are a c-0tnponent of assets. Fund balances requfred to be maintained 
intact, such as Permanent Funds, and assets not expected to be converted to cash, such as 
prepaids, notes receivable, and land held for redevelopment are included . However, if proceeds 
realized from the sale or collection of nonspendable assets are restricted, committed or assigned, 
then Nonspendable amounts are required to be presented as a component of the applicable category. 

Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, 
laws, regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used only for a 
specific purpose. Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are included 
along with spendable resources. 
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I NOTE 9-NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continue_d) _ 

Committed fund balances have constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council which 
may be altered only by formal action by Resolution of the City Collllc.il. Encumbrances and 
nonspendable amounts subject to Council commitments are included along with spendable 
resources. 

Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the City's intent to be used for a specific 
purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed . The City Council expressed its intent to 
cJassify certain fund balances "assigned" through resolutions. This category includes 
encumbrances; Nonspendables> when it is the City's intent to use proceeds or collections for a 
specific purpose, and residual fund balances, if any, of Special Revenue, Capital Projects and 
Debt Service Funds which have not been restricted or committed. 

Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, 
or assigned. This includes the residual general fund balance and residual fund deficits, if any, of 
other governmeotal funds. 

60 



CITY OF Mll,LBRAE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Y ca1· Ended June 30, 2013 

I NOTE 9 -NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued) 

Detailed classifications of the City's fund balances as of June 30, 2013, are below: 

Low Md 
Moderate 

Income Housing 
Asset Other 

General Special Revenue Governmental 
Fund Balance Classifications Fund fund Funds l'otnl 

Nonspendnble: 
Advances to other funds $298,057 $298,057 

Totnl Nonspendnble Fund Balances 298,057 298,057 

Restricted for: 
Low and Moderate Income .Housing $1,228,639 I.228,639 
Measure A $1,428,966 1,428,966 
Gas Tax 654,129 654,129 
AB2928 Grant 1,552,946 1,552,946 
Special Recreation 172,238 172,238 
Integrated Waste Management 229,134 229,134 
Other 3,992,863 3,992,863 
Sister City 10,585 10,585 
Joint Pire Training 143,953 143,953 
Millbrae Station Area Developer Fee 3,194,653 3,194,653 
1999 COPs Debt Service 105,867 l05,867 
Librozy Bonds Debt Service 791,811 791,811 
2004 General Obligation Bonds Debt 933 933 
Developer Fee Capital Projects 244,526 244,526 

Total .Restr icted Fund Balances 1,228,639 12,522,604 13:7511243 

Assigned for: 
O1ber purposes 51205,122 512051122 

Total Assigned Fund Balancos 5,205,122 5,205,122 

Unassigned 510571221 510571221 

Total Fund Balances $10,560,400 $1,228,639 $12,522!604 . $24,311,643 

At June 30, 2013, the City assigned $2,817,305 of the General Fund's fund balance for unforeseen 
events and economic downturn reserve. The amount is determined by multiplying next fiscal year's 
projected expenditures by 15%. 

C. Deficit F11nd Bala11ce 

At June 30, 2013, the Workers• Compensation Internal Service Fund has a deficit fund balance in 
the amount of $864,847 which will be eliminated with future revenue s. 
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I NOTE 10 ~ RETIREMENT BENEFITS I 
A. CALPERS Safely and Mlscellaneotb' Employees Plm,s 

Substantially all City employees are eligible to participate in pension plans offered by California 
Public Employees Retirement System (CALPERS) an agent multiple employer defined benefit 
pension plan which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating 
member employers. CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. 
The City's employees participate in the separate Safety (police and fire) and Miscellaneo·us (all 
other) Employee Plans. Benefit provisions under both Plans are established by State statute and 
City resolution. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time 
employment. Funding contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as 
of June 30 by CAI.PERS; the City must contribute these amounts. The Plans' provisions and 
benefits in effect at June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows: 

Hire Date 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payments 
Retirement age 
Monthly benefits, as a% of annual salary 
Required employee contribution rates 
Required employer contribution rates 

Hire Date 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payments 
Retirement age 
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 
Required employee contribution rates 
Required employer contribution rates 

. Safety 
Prior to January 1, 2013 

5 years service 
monthly for life 

55 
3% 
9% 

Fire: 25.808% 

Safety 
On or after January 1, 2013 

5 years service 
monthly for life 

57 
2.7% 

1225% 
1225% 

Miscellaneous 
Prior to January 1, 2013 

5 years service 
monthly for life 

55 
2.7% 

8% 
16,233% 

Miscellaneous 
On or after January 1, 2013 

5 years service 
monthly for lifo 

62 
2.0% 

6.50% 
6.70% 

CALPERS detennines contrjbution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Normal 
Method. Under this method, the City's total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of 
hire to date of retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the reJated total payroll cost. Normal 
benefit cost under this Method is the level amount the employer must pay annually to fund an 
employee's projected retirement benefit. This level percentage of payroll method is used to 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution 
requirements are also used to compute the actuarial accrued liability. 
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I NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) I 
The City uses the actuarially determined percentages of payroll to calculate and pay contributions to 
CALPERS. This results in no net pension obligations or unpaid contributions. Annual Pension 
Costs, representing the payment of aU contributions required by CALPERS, for the last three fiscal 
years were as follows: 

Annunl Percentage Net 
Fiscal Year Pension of A.PC Pension 

Ending Cost (APC) Coutribuied Obligation 
Safety Pla11 

June 30, 2011 $871,159 100% $0 
June 30, 2012 917,081 100% 0 
June 30, 2013 625,615 100% 0 

Misce/la11eous Pla11 

June 30, 2011 $721,219 100% $0 
June 30, 2012 866,708 100% 0 
June 30, 2013 858,114 100% 0 

CALPERS uses the market related value method of valuing the Plan's assets. An investment rate of 
return of 7.50% is assumed, including inflation at 2.75%. Annual salary increases are assuined to 
vary by duration of service. Changes in liability due to plan amendments, changes in act\larial 
assumptions, or changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a 
closed basis over twenty years. Gain and losses that occur in the operation of risk pool are 
amortized over a rolling thirty year period. 

The City prepaid its pension contributions with proceeds from the Pension Obligation Bonds 
(See Note 8). These prepaid contributions arc reflected in the accompanying fmancial statements 
as Prepaid Pension Obligations which amounted to $6,623,487 at June 30, 2013. During fiscal 
2012-2013, the amortization of the prepayment decreased the actuarially required contributions 
by $490,892 to arrive at Annual Pension Costs of $1,483,729. 

As required by new State law, effect ive July 1, 2005, the City's Safety and Miscellaneous Plan 
was terminated, and the employees in the plan were required by CALPERs to join a new State­
wide pool. One of the conditions of entry to these pools was that the City true~up any unfunded 
liability in the former Plan, either by paying cash or by increasing its future contribution rates 
through a Side Fund offered by CALPERs. 
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I NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS {Continued) I 
The schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial 
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability 
for be11efits, CALPERS' latest actuarial value (which differs from market value) and funding 
progress for the State~wide pools are shown below: 

Stale-wide _pool Safety P{a11: 

Valuation 
Dale 

2009 
201D 
2011 

Entry Age 

Accrued 
Liability 

$1,802,88-2,330 
l,91S,09S,B26 
2,061,923,933 

Actuarial 

Vulue of 
A:sscls 

Sl,S20,081,328 
1,628,915,283 
1,759,289,797 

Unfunded 
(Ovcrfundcd) 

Liability 
$282,801,00;2 
286,180,543 
302,634,136 

Funded 

84.3% 
85.1% 
85.3% 

AMunl 
Covered 
Pnyroll 

$221,600,192 
224,562,008 
225,026,216 

Unfunded 
(Ovorlunded) 

as ¾ of Payroll 
m .6% 
127.4% 
134.5% 

The City's Safety Plan represents approximately 2%, 2%, and 2% of the State-wide pool for the 
years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively, based on covered payroll of $5,095,266, 
$4,569,531 and $4,364,942 for those years. 

State-wide pool Mlscelftmcous Plan, 

Aciull!ial 

Entry Age 
Valuation AccnJccl Value of 

Onie liability Assets 
2009 $2,140,438,884 $ I ,674,260,302 
20)0 2,297,871.345 1,815,671,616 
2011 2,486,708,579 1,981,073,089 

Unfunded 
{Overl\mded) 
_ Ljabilltz: 
$466,178,582 
482,199,7:29 
505,635,490 

Funded 
Ratio 
78.2% 
79.0% 
79.7¾ 

Annual 
Covered 
Pl\yroll 

$440,071,499 
434,023,381 
427,300,410 

Unfunded 
(Overfltndcd) 

115 % of l>ayroll _ 
I0S.9% 
111.1% 
118.3% 

The City's Miscellaneous Plan represents approximately 1.7%, 2%, and 1% of the State-wide pool 
for the years ended Juno 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively, based on covered payroll of 
$7,133,741, $6,843,349 and $5,878,750 for those years. 

Audited annual financial statements and ten year statistical comparison are available from 
CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709. 

B. Deferred Competts(l.f./Qtl Plan 

City employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a City sponsored Deferred 
Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under this 
Plan, participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until distributed to 
them; distributions may be made only at termination, retirement, death or in an emergency as 
defined by the Plao. 

The laws governing defen-ed compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for 
the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these 
plans are not the City's property and are not subject to City control, they have been excluded from 
these financial statements. 
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I NOTE 11-POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFlTS ] 

By Council resolution and through agreements with its 1ahor units, the City provides certain 
health care benefits for retired employees (spouse and dependents are included) under third-party 
insurance plans. The City participates in the CalPERS health care plan, an agent multiple 
employer plan, which is governed under the California Public Employees Health and Medical 
Care Act (PEMCHA), however the City contributes to the plan on a pay-as-you go basis. 
Required retiree medical plan contributions are also governed by PEMCHA for member 
agencies. The City's OPEB Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. 

A summary of eligibility and retiree contribution requirements are shown below by bargainiog 
unit: 
Eligibility • Service (50 & 5 years CalPERS service) or 

Disability retirement 

• Retite directly frotn City under CalPERS 
Management PEMHCA Unequal Method: 
& 
Confidential • Actives: City contributes premium up $1,385.62 

• Retirees: City contribution equal to 5% of active 
contribution times years of participation in 

PE:MHCA (max $100/month annual increase) 
• Management & Confidential joined PEMHCA in 

1986 
• City pays premium and reimburses Medicare Parts 

A,B&D 

• Total City payments not to exceed unequal method 
benefit caps: 

Cap 
2013: $1,207.50 
2014: $ 1,307.50 
2015+: $1,385.62 

Sanitation • PEMHCA minimum 
Firefighter • City contributes maximum monthly amount of 

$221.50, reduced by PEMHCA minimum, if 
applicable 

Teamsters • Teamsters Local 856 Health & Welfare Trust 
• Retiree pays full premium 
• Not included in valuation 

Surviving • 100% of retiree benefit continues to surviving 
Spouse spouse if retiree elects CalPERS survivor annuity 
Benefit 

As of June 30, 2013, approximately 47 participants were eligible to receive benefits. 
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[NOTE 11-POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFI1'S (Continued) 

Healthcare cost trend rate assumptions are as follows : 

Increase from Prior Year 
Non-Medicare Medicare 

Year HMO & PPO HMO & PPO 
2014 8.5% 8.9% 
2015 8.0% 8.3% 
2016 7.5% 7.8% 
2017 7.0% 7.2% 
2018 6.5% 6.7% 
2019 6.0% 6.1% 
2020 5.5% 5.6% 

2021+ 5.0% 5.0% 

A. F1111dl11g Policy a11d Actuarial A.ss11mptio11.v 

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a January 1, 2012 actuarial 
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost 
method, which takes into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well 
as those akeady accrued. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 4.25% investment rate of return, 
(b) 3.25% projected annual salazy increase, and (c) 3% general inflation increases. The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial calculations reflect a long­
term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are 
subject to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future. The City's OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll over fixed 30 year closed amorti.zation period. 
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I NOTE 11- POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) I 
B. F11ndi11g Progress and F1mded Status 

Generally accepted accounting principles permits contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and 
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) when such contributions are placed in an 
irrevocable trust or equivalent arrangement. In fiscal year 2013, the City made contribution in 
excess of the ARC and amortized its net OPEB obligation as presented below: 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 
foterest on net OPEB obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPEB cost 

Contributions made: 
City portion of current year premiums paid 

Change in net OPEB obligation 

Net OPEB Obligatio11 at June 30, 2012 

Net OPEB Obligation at June 30, 2013 

$1,121,000 
130,000 

(281,000) 
970,000 

624,363 

345,637 

$3,248,033 

$3,593,670 

The Plan's annual required contributions and actual contributions for the years ended June 30, 
2013 are set forth below (in thousands): 

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Actual APC NetOPEB 

Fiscal Year Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation 
6/30/2011 $1,433,755 $440,952 30.76% $2,789,658 
6/30/2012 953,000 494,625 Sl.90% 3,248,033 
6/30/2013 970,000 624,363 64.37% 3,593,670 
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(NoTE 11- POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) I 
The Schedule of Funding Progress presents trend infonnation about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to ·the actuarial accrued liabil.ity for benefits. 
Trend data from the actuarial studies are presented below: 

(in Thousands) 

Overfunded 
Overfunded (Under fonded) 

Entry Age (Underfunded) Actuarial 
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as 

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of 
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll 

Date {Al (B) {A-B) {A/Bl (C} [(A-B)/C] 
1/1/2009 $0 $14,171 ($14,171) 0.00% $8,602 {164.7%) 
1/1/2012 0 14,385 (14,385) 0.00% 5,549 (259.2%) 

At June 30, 2013, the City assigned $2,184,462 of General Fund's fond balance for this 
postemp.loyment benefit 

I NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT I 
A. Jn.,;11rmice Coverage 

The City participates in Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) Plan Corporation, a non 
profit benefit corporation established to provide liability insurance coverage, claims and risk 
management, and legal defense to its participating members. ABAG Plan provides $15,000,000 of 
general liability coverage per occurrence and is responsible for paying claims in excess oftl1e City's 
$100,000 deductible. ABAG Plan also provides $1,000,000 of employee theft coverage in the 
excess of the city's $5,000 deductible, For the year ended June 30, 2013, tl1e City paid ABAG Piao 
$245,751 in premiums and did not receive a refund of premiums paid in prior years. Financial 
statements may be obtained from ABAG Services, P.O. Box 2050, Oakland, CA 94694ft2050. 

The City has also purchased excess coverage insurance for worker's compensation claims from an 
independent commercial insurance company with $500,000 self"insured retention. For the past 
three fiscal years, tl1e amount of settlements did not exceed insurance coverage. 

B. Liability for U11i11sured Claims 

The City provides for the uninsured portion of claims and judgments in the Workers' Compensation 
and General Liability Internal Service Funds. Claims and judgments, including a provision for 
claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a loss is deemed probable of assertion and the 
arnou.nt of the loss is reasonably determinable. As discussed above, the City has coverage for such 
claims, but it has retained the risk for the deductible, or uninsured portion of these clain1s, 
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I NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) I 
The City's liability for uninsured claims is limited to workers' compensation and general liability 
claims, as discussed above, and was estimated by management based on prior years claims 
experience as follows: 

Fiscal 2012-2013 
Workers' Fiscal 

Compensation General 2011-2012 
Claims Liabili!X Claims Total Totals 

Balances, beginning of year $1,408,181 $180,404 $1,588,585 $1,236,249 
Net change in: 

Liability fo.r current fiscal year claims 39,724 29,360 69,084 I 79,393 
Claims incull'ed but not reported (IBNR) 

and adjustments 2,553,417 (150,821) 2,402,596 1,246,578 
Claims paid (1,541,322) (12,325) (1,553,647) (1,073,635) 

Balances, end of year $21460,000 $46,618 $2,506,618 $1,588,585 

Current portion $621,429 $41,956 $663,385 $930,18] 

I NOTE 13 -JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS 

The City participates in the joint ventures discussed below through formally organized and separate 
entities established under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California. As separate 
legal entities, these entities exercise foll powers and authorities within the scope of the related Joint 
Powers Agreements including the pre,l)aration of annual budget~, accountability for all ftmds, the 
power to make and execute contracts and the right to sue and be sued. Each joint venture is 
governed by a board consisting of representatives from member municipalities. Each board controls 
the operations of the respective joint venture, including selection of managoment and approval of 
operating budgets, independent of any influence by member municipalities beyond their 
representation on that board. Obligations and liabilities of these joint ventures are not the Citi s 
responsibility and the City does not have an equity interest in the assets of each joint venture except 
upon dissolution of the joint venture. 

A. City/Coullty AssociaJ/011 ofGoverm,zents of San Mateo Comity (CIC4G) 

City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County was fonned in 1990 between the 
County and various cities in San Mateo County to prepare, adopt, monitor and enforce state 
mandated plans for the management of traffic congestion, integrated solid waste, airport land use 
and hazardous waste. Tbe City's contribution to C/CAG was $78,773 for the year ended June 30, 
2013. Financial statements may be obtained by mailing a request to the City of San Carlos, 666 
Elm Street., San Carlos, CA 94070. 
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I NOTE 13 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS (Continued) I 
B. Tra11sporlalio1t System Ma,tageme,,t 

Transportation Systems Management (TSM) was estab]ished in 1991 by the Cities of South San 
Francisco, Brisbane, Colma, Daly City, Half Moon Bay, Millbrae, Pacifica and Saa Bruno for the 
purpose of mitigating traffic congestion, Financial statements for TSM may be obtained from 
SamTrans, 401 Marina Boulevardi South San Francisco, CA 94080. 

I NOTE 14- CONTINGENT LIABilJTIES AND COMMITMENTS 

A. Continge11t Liabilities 

The City is subject to litigation arising in the notmal course of business. In the opinion of the City 
Attorney there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the City. 

The City participates in Federal and State grant progra!lls. These programs have been audited by 
the City's independent auditors in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act 
as amended and applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of 
these audits; however, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and 
the amount, if any, of expenditures whlch may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be 
determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

NOTE 15 - RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT TRUST FUND (SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
ACTIVITIES 

A. Redevelopme11t Dissol11tioll 

In an effort to balance its budget, the State of California adopted ABxJ 26 on June 28, 2011, 
amended by AB1484 on June 27, 2012, which suspended all new redevelopment activities except 
for limited specified activities as of that date and dissolved redevelopment agencies as of January 
31, 2012. 

The suspension provisions prohibited all redevelopment agencies from a wide range of activities, 
including incurring new indebtedness or obligations, entering into or modifying agreements or 
contracts, acquiring or disposing of real property, ta1<lng actions to adopt or amend redevelopment 
plans and other siniilar actions, except actions required by law or to cany out existing enforceable 
obligations, as defined in ABxl 26. 

ABxl 26 and AB1484 allowed three regulatory oversight authorities, the Successor Authority's 
Oversight Boa.rd, State Controller and Department of Finance (DOF), to review the former 
Authority's asset transfer, obligation payments and wind down activities. ABxl 26 specifically 
directs the State Controller to review the activities of all redevelopment agencies to dctennine 
whether an asset transfer between an agency and any public agency occurred on or after January l, 
2011. If an asset transfer did occur and the public agency that received the asset is not contractually 
committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of the asset, the legislation purports 
to require the State Controller to order the asset returned to the redevelopment agency. As of June 
30, 2013 the State Controller's Office has yet to complete its asset transfer review. 
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NOTE 15 - RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT TRUST FUND (SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
ACTMTillS (Continued) 

ln May 2013, the DOF completed its Due Diligence Review (DDR) of the Low and Moderate 
Housing Fund's cash balance available for allocation to the affected taxing entities. The Successor 
Agency complied with the DOF,s dete1mination by transmitting the payment of $21,442 to the 
County Auditor-Controller in May 2013. 

In July 2013, the DOF completed its Due Diligence Review (DDR) for the other funds of the 
Successor Agency and detennined that the cash balance available for allocation to the affected 
taxing entities are $2,331,079 million. The Successor Agency complied with the DOF's 
determination by transmttting the payments of $2,331,079 to the County Auditor-Controller in July 
2013. This amount was recorded as an extraordinary item. 

Effective January 31, 2012, all CaJifornia redevelopment agencies were dissolved, Certain assets of 
the Authority's Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund were distributed to a Housing Successor; 
and all remaining Authority assets and liabilities were distributed to a Suc<:essor Agency. 

Under the provisions of AB 1484, the City could elect to become the Housing Successor and retain 
the housing assets. The City elected to become the Housing Successor and on January 24, 2012, and 
on Febmazy 1, 2012 certain housing assets were transferred to the City' s Housing Successor 
Special Revenue Fund. 

Cash and investments of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2012 are discussed in Note 3 above. 
Information presented in the following footnotes represents other assets and liabilities of the 
Successor Agency as ofJune 30, 2013, 

B. Property Held/or Resale 

As of Jwie 30, 2013, the property held for resale was recorded in the amount of $1,324,591. The 
Redevelopment Agency had purchased parcels of land as part of its efforts to develop or 
redevelop blighted properties within the Redevelopment areas. Such land parcels are accounted 
for at the lower of cost or net realizable value or agreed-upon sales price if a disposition 
agreement has been made with a developer. · 
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NOTE 1S - RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT TRUST FUND (SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
ACTlVITIES (Continued) 

C Capital Assets 

The Successor Agency assumed the capital assets of the Redevelopment Agency as of February 
1, 2012. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual 
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair 
market value on the date contributed . The Successor Agency's policy is to capitali ze all assets 
with costs exceeding certain minimum thresholds and with useful lives ex,ceeding two years. 

All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The 
purpose of deprec iation is to spread the cost of capital asset~ equitably among all users over the life 
of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro 
rata share of the cost of capital assets. 

Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the total 
amow1t of depreciation taken over the years, called accumulated depreciatior1; is reported on the 
bala1,1ce sheet as a reduction in the book valuo of capital assets. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method, which means the cost of the asset is divided 
by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the asset is 
fully depreciated. The Successor Agency has assigned the useful lives and capitalization thresholds 
listed below to capital assets. 

Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 
Automo biles and Trucks 
Infrastructure 

7-50 yea.rs 
5-20 years 
2-10 years 
20-65 years 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in tbe capitalized value of the asset 
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period . 
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NOTE 15 - RDA OBLIGATION RETmEMENT TRUST FUND (SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
ACTMTJES (Continued) 

Capital assets recorded at June 30 comprise: 

Capitol assets not being depreciated: 

Lnnd 

Totill capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Building and Improvements 

Furniture, Fixtures a_nd Equipment 

Automobiles and Trucks 

Infrastructure 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated deprecintion fi>r. 

Building and lmprovemehts 
Furniture, Fixtures Md Equipment 
Automobiles and Trucks 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets being depreciated 

Capital Assets, net 
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Ba.lance nt 

June30,2012 

$587,223 

587,223 

3,608 

41,391 

11,754 

475,320 

532,073 

1,904 
12,399 
11,754 
63,047 

89,104 

442,969 

$1,030,192 

Retireme11ts/ 

Adjustments 

($587,223) 

(587,223) 

($762) 
1,533 

13,751 

14,522 

(14,522) 

($601,745) 

BaJancG at 

June 30, 2013 

$3,608 

41,391 

11,754 

475,320 

532,073 

1,142 
13,932 
11,754 
76,798 

103,626 

428,447 

$428,447 
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NOTE 15 - RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT TRUST FUND (SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
ACTIVITIES (Continued) 

D. Lo11g-TermDebt 

The Successor Agency assumed the long~tenn debt, loans and interest rate swap agreement of the 
Redevelopment Agency as of February 1, 2012. 

J. Tax:Allocntio11s Bonds attd LO(lJIS 

All of the long-term debt of the Successor Agency is comprised of Tax Allocation Bonds 
and loans issued by the Redevelopment Agency. The Bonds and Loans are special 
obligations of the Agency and are secured only by the Agency's tax increment revenues. 
Tax Allocation Bond and loan transactions were as follows: 

2005 Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds 
3.0-4.5%, due 8/1/2035 

Less current portion 

Portion due in more than one year 

2. Debt Service Requirements 

Balance at 
June 30, 2012 

$7,800,000 

Debt service requirements are as follows: 

Year ending 
June 30: Prlnclenl Interest 

2014 $200,000 $333,650 
2015 205,000 326,563 
2016 210,000 319,038 
2017 225,000 310,882 
2018 235,000 302,110 

2019.20;23 1,330,000 1,356,229 
2024-2028 J,650,000 1,031,170 
2029-2033 2,065,000 601,094 
2034-2036 11490,000 107,157 

Total $7,610,000 $4,687,893 
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Retirements 

$190,000 

Total 

$533,650 
531,563 
529,038 
535,882 
537,110 

2,686,229 
2,681,170 
2,666,094 
1,597,157 

$121297!893 

Balance at 
June 30, 2013 

$7,610,000 

(200,000) 

$7,410,000 
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NOTE 15 - RDA OBLIGATION RET.mEMENT TRUST FUND (SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
ACTIVITIES (Continued) 

3. 2005 Redevelopm.e11iAgency Ta.xAllocatio11 Bonds 

On January 13, 2005, the Redevelopment Agency issued 2005 Redevelopment Agency 
Tax Allocation Bonds in the original principal amount of $8,590,000. The proceeds were 
used to repay the 1993 Tax Allocation Bonds and to finance redevelopment activities in 
the project area. As a rcsplt, the 1993 Bonds were called on March 1, 2005. Interest 
payments are due each Febrnary 1 and August 1 and principal payments are due each 
August 1. These debt service payments are pledged by a security interest in and lien on 
Tax Revenues, as defined by the bond Indentures, which excludes 20% of set-aside 
deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund; and pass through payments 
which are required to be paid to other public agencies under the tax sharing agreements 
unless subordinated . With the dissolution of the former Redevelopment Agency 
discussed above, tax Increment is no longer distributed, and instead the Successor 
Agency receives payments from the County's Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 
(RPITF) that are to be used to fund debt service on the Bonds, with no distinction 
between housing and non-housing revenues. 

The total principal and Lutercst remaining to be paid on the bonds is $12,297,893. 
Principal and interest paid for the current year was $530,475. 

E. Commitments and Co11ti11ge11cies 

4. State Approval of E1iforceahle Obligations 

The Successor Agency prepares a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule CROPS) semi­
annually that contains all proposed expenditures for the subsequent six-month period. The 
ROPS is subject to the review and approval of the Oversight Board as well as the State 
Department of Finance. Although the State Department of Finance ma:y not question items 
included on the ROPS in one period, they may question the same items in a future period 
and disallow associated activities. The amount, if any, of Cl1rrent obligations that may be 
denied by the State Department of Finance cannot be detem1ined at this time. The City 
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

5. State A~iset Tra11sfer Review 

The activities of the former Redevelopment Agency and the Successor Agency are subject 
to further examination by the State of California and the amount, if any, of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the State cannot be detennined at this time. In addition, the 
State Controller's Office will be conducting a review of the propriety of asset transfers 
between the former Redevelopment Agency or the Successor Agency and any public 
agency that occurred on or after January 1, 2011 and the amount, if any, of assets that may 
be required to be retumed to the Successor Agency cannot be detennined at this time. The 
City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
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NOTE 15 - RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT TRUST FUND (SUCCESSOR AGENCY) 
ACTIVITIES (Continued 

The activities of the former Redevelopment Agency and the Successor Agency are subject 
to fiuiher exrunination by the State of California and the amount, if any, of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the State cannot be determined at this time. The City's 
position on this issue is not a position of settled law and there is considerable legal 
uncertainty regarding this issue. It is reasonably possible that a legal detennination may be 
made at a later date by an appropriate judicial autl1ority that would resolve this issue 
unfavorably to the City. 

!NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS ! 
A. 2013 - General Obligation Bonds - Public Library Bo11ds Refi11mzci11g 

On August 1, 2013 the City issued 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds in the amount of 
$9,745,000 for the purpose to refinance all of the City's outstru1ding 2001 General ObUgation 
Bonds (Millbrae Publ1c Library Project). The net proceeds of the Bonds were used to defease and 
refund all of the 2001 Bonds . The 2001 Bond Redemption effective date was August 1, 2013 and 
did not have impact on the current year financial statements. 
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, BUDGET VERSUS ACTUAL-GENERAL FUND AND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Genera] Fund - The General Fund is established to account for the revenues and expenditures to 
carry out basic governmental activities of the City such as general government, public safety, highway 
and street, culture and recreation, and community development This fund accounts for all financial 
transactions not accounted for in the other funds. 
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CllY OF MILLBRAE 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVEl'ruES, EXPENDI'llJRES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTIJAL 
FOR THE YEAR BNDED JlJNB 30, 2013 

Vs.riance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

REVENUES: 
Property true $7,993,590 $7,993,590 $8,538,919 $545,329 
Sales tax 2,072,000 2,072,000 2,162,011 90,01 J 
Tninsicnt occupancy tax 3,733,827 3,733,827 4,985,527 1,251,700 
Franchise true 981,000 981,000 858,986 (122,014) 
Other truces 195,400 19S,400 194,493 (907) 
Licenses and pemtlts 790,000 790,000 865,298 75,298 
Charges tor services 793,544 765,98'1 793,515 27,531 
Fines and forfeitures 1,314,500 1,314,500 1,165,881 (148,619) 
Use of money nnd propeny 323,594 323,594 439,237 115,643 
Gronts and Intergovernmental 101,724 101,724 
Miscellaneous 447,052 4471052 4241012 (23,040) 

Total Revenues 18,644,507 18,616,947 20,5291603 1,912,656 

EXP.ENDITIJRES: 
Current: 

General government: 
City council 87,010 87,010 100,127 (13,117) 
City cleric 175,646 175,646 156,078 19,568 
Administration 259,446 1&8,831 160,076 28,755 
Attorney 343,000 343,000 118,793 224,207 

General sc.rvi~s: 
Firumoe 1,141,831 I, 141,831 1,077,684 64,147 
Humon resource 298,801 298,801 273,699 25,102 
Gcnoral government b11ilding 156,500 156,500 132,056 24,444 
Non-departmental 1,170,910 1,110.910 S951743 S75,167 

Total general government 3,633,144 315611S29 2,614?256 948,273 

Public safety; 
PolJce 6,378,611 6,378,61 l 5,568,884 809,727 
Fire 4,855,722 4,855,722 4z325,046 530,676 

Total public safety 11,234,333 l l,234z333 918931930 11340,403 

Highways and SITeets: 
Engineering 829,141 829,S81 679,517 150,064 
Mainteruinee 247,037 247037 233,727 13,310 

Total highways and streets 1,076,178 1,0761618 913 244 163,374 

Culture and recreation 9,294 9,294 3,283 6,011 
Com_munity development 1,859,730 1,930,346 1,861,261 69,08S 
Capital outlay 250,000 41 705 (41,705} 

Total Expenditures 18,062,679 17,8131120 15,327,679 2!485,441 

EXCESS (DEFJCIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDTI1JRES S811828 803,827 5,201,924 4,3981097 

OTHER FJNANCJNG SOURCES (USBS) 
'I'ramfers in 339,240 397,301 58,061 
Transfers (out) (828,928} (909,432} (532,027) 377.405 

Total other financing sources (uses) (828,928) (570,192) (134,726} 435,466 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ($247,100) $233,635 S,067,198 $4,833,563 

BEGINNJNG FUND BALANCE S,493~02 

ENDING FUND BALANCE $10,560,400 
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Every year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the next fiscal 
year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them and is 
subject to public hearings where comments are obtained for consideration. Council adopts the budget 
through passage of a budget resolution at which time the proposed expenditures become appropriations 
to various Funds and City Depar!.monts. The budget is effective the following July 1, and may be 
amended by subsequent City Council resolutions. 

The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level and the Council must approve any revision of 
budget that increases the total expenditures of any fund. All appropriations remaining at year-end lapse, 
except for purchases in progress. With City Council approval, prior year unexpended and open project 
and grant appropriations will be rolledpover into the new fiscal year. 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for all 
funds except for Capital Projects Funds (which are budgeted on project length basis). 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Fonds 

COPS & Other Gmnts - To accow1t for federal moneys received for public safety programs. 

Measure A - To account for additional sales tax imposed to provide resources for stroot and highway 
improvements. 

Gas Tax - To account for gasoline tax allocated by State for street· and highway maintenance and 
improvements. 

AB2928 Grant - To account for grants received from AB2928. 

Special Recreation - To account for fees and charges and expenditures for recreation and leisure 
programs. 

Integrated Waste Management - To account for moneys to be reimbursed by f oo charges for 
integrated waste management program. 

Other - To account for moneys received from the Asset Forfeitures Grants, 

Sister City - To accmmt for resources received from two sister cities, Malta and La Serena, which are 
used for activities relation to these two sister cities. 

Joint Fire Training - To account for joint training services between the City of San Bruno, City of 
San Mateo, and the Central County Fire Department. 

Millbrae Station Area Developer Fee - Ope1·ating - To account for the fees collected from the 
developers for the operation of the MiJlbrae Station Area development project. 

Debt Service Funds 

1999 Certificates of Participation (COPS) - - To account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
payment of the 1999 Certificates of Participation principal and interest. 

Library Bonds - To account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of principal and 
interest on, the City's 2001 general obligation bond issued for the Millbrae Public Library Project. 

2004 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds - To account for payment of principal and interest on the 
City's share of the 2004 California Statewide Communities Development Authority Capital 
Appreciation Bonds. 

Capital Project Fonds 

Developer Fee - To account for the fees collected from the developors for the capital activities of 
the Millbrae Station Area development project. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash with fiscal agents 
Receivables: 

Truces 
Accounts - net 

Due from other governmental agencies 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued payroll 
Deposits 
Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund balances; 
Restricted 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2013 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COPsand 
Other Oas 
Grants Measure A Tnx 

$1,385,736 $658,948 

46,283 

$1-,4321019 $6581948 

$:3,053 $4,819 

3,053 4,819 

1,428,966 654,129 

1,4281966 654=!29 

$1,432,019 $658,948 
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A62928 
Grant 

$1.567.165 

$1,5671165 

$14,219 

14,219 

1,552,946 

1,5521946 

$1,567,165 



Special 
Recreation 

$376,461 

23,545 

$400,006 

$43,149 
39,571 

145,048 

227,768 

172,238 

172,238 

$400,006 

Integrated 
Waste 

Management 

$261,898 

6,212 

$268,110 

$2,726 
36,250 

38 976 

229,134 

229,134 

$268,110 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Other 

$3,787,062 

361,210 

$4,148,272 

$114,142 
17,500 
23,767 

155,409 

3,992,863 

3,992,863 

$4,148,272 

Sister City 

$10,585 

$10,585 

$10,585 

10,585 

$10,585 
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Joint Fire 
Training 

$147,524 

$147,524 

$3,571 

3,571 

143,953 

143,953 

$147,524 

Millbrae 
Station Area 
Developer 

Fee - Opemting 

$3,195,653 

$3,195,653 

$1,000 

1,000 

3,194,653 

3,194,653 

$3,195,653 
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ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash with fiscal agents 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Accounts - net 

Due from other governmental agencies 

Total Assets 

LIABll.,lTIES 

Acoount.q payable Md accrued. payroll 
Dep0slts 
Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund balances: 
Restricted 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CITY OF MD..LBRAE 
NON-MAfOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2013 

DEBT SERvtCE FUNDS 

1999 COPS 
Library 
Bonds 

2004 .Pe11sion 
Obligation 

Bonds 

$105,867 $791,811 $461 
,in 

$1051867 $791,811 $933 

$105,867 $791,811 $933 

105,867 791,811 933 

$105,867 $791,811 $933 
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CAPITAL 
PROJECT 

FUND 

Developer 
Fee 

$295,513 

$2951513 

$4,769 
46,218 

50,987 

244,526 

2441526 

$295.513 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

$12,584,684 
472 

46,283 
23,545 

367,422 

$13,022,406 

$190,448 
140,539 
168,815 

499,802 

121s221604 

12,522,604 

$13,022,406 



CITY OF Mn,LBRAE 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMBN'f AL FUNDS 

COMBlNrNG SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COPs and 
Other Gas 
Grants Measure A Tax 

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 
Property tax 
Other taxes $469,522 
License and permits 
Charges for services 
Use of money and property 16,787 $6,855 
Grants and intergovernmental 342,510 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 4861309 349,365 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General govemment 
Public safety 
Hjghways nnd streets 67,759 270,143 
Cu!tute and recreation 
Community development 

Capital outlay 485,544 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and .fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 553,303 270,143 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDrrUREs !661994) 79,222 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In · 
Transfers (out) {$5013982 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (50!3982 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (50,398) (66,994) 79,222 

BEGINNJNG FUND BALANCES 50,398 l,4951960 574!907 

ENDJNO FUND BALANCES $11428,966 $654,129 
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AB2928 
Grant 

$13,386 
191,928 

2051314 

53,818 

33,556 

87,374 

1171940 

117,940 

l,4351006 

$11552,946 



Special 
Recreation 

$751,442 
271,641 

9,552 

1,032,635 

927,432 

927,432 

105,203 

2,000 

2,000 

107,203 

65,035 

$172,238 

Jntegrated 
Waste 

Management 

$240,756 
2,364 
6,212 

249,332 

168,017 

168,017 

81,315 

81,315 

147,819 

$229,134 

SPECrAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Other 

$41,474 
484,559 

33,727 
431,314 

14,739 

1,005,813 

576 

481,514 

421,082 

903,172 

102,641 

176,921 
(9,550) 

167,371 

270,012 

3,722,851 

$3,992.863 

Sister City 

$136 

2,112 

2,248 

3,483 

3,483 . 

(l,235) 

(1,235) 

. 11,820 

$10,585 
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Joint Fire 
Training 

$89,429 

89,429 

92,908 

92,908 

(3,479) 

135,710 

1351710 

132,23 I 

11,722 

$143,953 

Millbrae 
Station Area 
Developer 

Fee • Operating 

$726,300 
64,456 

790,756 

14,167 
120,000 

134,167 

656,589 

(34,103) 

(34,103) 

622,486 

2,572,167 

$3,194,653 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN fUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

CAPITAL 
PROJECT 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS FUND 

Total 
2004 Pension Nonmajor ' Library Obligation Developer Governmental 

1999 COPS Bonds Bonds Fee Funds 

GOVt;:R.NMENTAl REVENUES 
Property tll.x $670,325 $670,325 
Othertnxes 469,522 
License nnd permils $391 768,165 
Charges for services 8,782 1,639,424 
Use of money nnd properly $666 345,562 
Grants 11nd intergovemrnentnl 895,000 1,866,964 
Miscellaneous 26,403 

Total Revenues 670,325 8951666 9,173 5,786,365 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 576 
Public safety 92,908 
Highways and streets l,041,251 
Culture and recreation 930,915 
Commu11ity development 10,935 446,184 

Capital outlay 1,042,137 1,681,237 
Debt service: 

Principal $163,000 130,000 890,000 1,183,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 1031105 503,469 4,733 611;307 

Total Expenditures 266,105 633.469 894,733 1,053,072 5,987,378 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDYflJRES (266,1osl 36,856 933 (1,043,899} (201,013} 

Ol'HER.FINANClNG SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 266,400 581,031 
Transfers ( oul) (2901049} p84,1002 

Total Other Flouncing Sources (Uses) 2661400 (29010492 196,931 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 295 36,856 933 (1,333,948) (4,082) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 105,572 754,955 1,578,474 12,526,686 

ENDING FUND BALANCES $105,867 $7911811 $933 $244,526 $12:522,604 
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CITY OF M11LORAE 
BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENPED JUNE 30, 2013 

SPECrAL REVENUE FUNDS 

MBASUREA GAS1'AX 
Variance Variance 
Positive Positive 

Budget Actual (Ne~ative l .Bud~et Actual (Ne~tive} 

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 
Properly tax 
Other taxes $380,000 $469,522 $89,522 
License and permits 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Use of money and property 6,000 16,787 10,787 $2,000 $6,855 $4,855 
Grants a11d intergovernmental 339,385 342,510 3,125 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenue.s 386,000 486,309 100,309 341,385 349,36S 7,980 

EXPENDlruRES 
Current: 

General government: 
Non-Departmental 

Public safety: 
Fire 

Highways and streets 
Engineering 
Maintenance 314,252 67,759 246,493 343,148 270, 143 73,005 

Culture nnd recreation 
Community development 

Capital outlay 21,816 485,544 (463,728) 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 336,068 553,303 (217,235} 343,148 270,143 73,005 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 491932 !6619942 !116,9262 !1,7632 791222 80,985 

OT.HER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers ( out) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

NET CH.ANOE IN FUND BALANCES $491932 (66,994) !$1161926} !$11763} 79,222 $801985 

BEGINNING FUND 13ALANCES (DEFICITS) 1,495,960 574,907 

ENDlNO FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $1J428,966 $6541129 
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AB2928 GRANT 

Budget Actual 

$2,000 $13,386 
238,455 191,928 

240,455 205,314 

253,616 53,818 

267,900 33,556 

521,516 87,374 

(281,061) 117,940 

{$28),061} II?,940 

1,435,006 

$1,552,946 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$11,386 
(46,527) 

. (35,141) 

199,798 

234,344 

434;142 

399,001 

$399,001 

SPEC.JAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Budget 

$688,500 

220,000 

908,500 

1,017,091 

1,017,091 

(108,591) 

90,389 

90,389 

{$18,202) 

SPECIAL 
RECREATION 

Aotunl 

$751,442 

271,641 

9,552 

1,032,635 

927,432 

927,432 

105,203 

2,000 

2,000 

107,203 

65,035 

$172,238 
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Variance 
Positive 

(!'iegative) 

$62,942 

51,641 

9,552 

1241135 

89,659 

89,659 

213,794 

(88,389) 

(88,389) 

$125,405 

INTEGRATED 
WASTE MANAGEMENT 

Budget Actual 

$245,566 $240,756 

500 2,364 
5,500 6,212 

251,566 249,332 

218,353 168,017 

218,353 168,017 

33,213 81,315 

$33,213 81,315 

147,819 

$229,134 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

($4,810) 

1,864 
712 

(2,234) 

50,336 

50,336 

48,)02 

$48,102 
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CITY OF MJLLBRAE 

BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FtJNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDUrn OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENT)~D JUNE 30, 2013 

SPECIAL REVENtffi FUNDS 

OTHER SISTER CITY 
Variance Variance 
Positive Positive 

Budget Actual (Nea!!ti vcl Budget Actual (NeS!!tiYcl 

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 
Property tax 
Other truces 
License and permits $24,474 $41,474 
Charges for services 490,362 484,559 ($5,803) 
Fines and forfeitures 
Use of money and property 23,100 33,727 10,627 $136 $136 
Grants and intergovernmentnl 157,111 431,314 274,203 
Miscellaneous 14,739 141739 $2,000 2,112 112 

Total Revenues 695,047 1,005,813 310p66 2,000 2,248 248 

EXI1ENDITlJRES 
Current: 

General government: 
Non-Departmental 576 576 

PubUc safety: 
Fire 

Highways and streets 
Engineering 16,022 31,799 (15,777) 
Maintenance 93,867 449,715 (355,848) 

Culture and recreation 2,000 3,483 (1,483) 
Community development 677,027 421,082 255,945 
Capital outlay 467,325 467,325 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total 6'¢penditurcs 1,2541817 903,172 351,645 2,000 3,483 (1,483) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES {559,770} 102,641 662,41 l {I ,235l (1,235} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 235,81:Z 176,921 (58,89 I) 
Transfers ( out) {2,oool (9,550) (71550l 

Total Other f'i11nnoing Sources (Uses) :233,812 167,371 (66,44]2 

NET CHANGE Il'l FUND SA.LANCES {$325,958) 270,012 $595,970 (1,235) {$1,235} 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 3,722,85) 11,820 

ENDING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $3£992,863 $10,585 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

JOINT FIRE TRAINING 
· · Variance 

Positive 
Budget Actual (Negative) 

$110,778 $89,429 ($21,349) 

110,778 89,429 (21,349) 

246,488 92,908 153,580 

246,488 92,908 153,580 

(135,710) (3,479) 132,231 

135,710 135,710 

135,710 135,710 

132,231 $132,231 

11,722 

$143,953 

MILLBRAE STATION AREA 
DEVELOPER FEE - OPERATING 

Budget 

$726,300 
64,456 

790,756 

11,333 
120,000 

131,333 

659,423 

{34,l03) 

(34,103} 

$625,320 

Actual 

$726,300 
64,456 

790,?56 

14,167 
120,000 

134,167 

656,589 

(34,103) 

p4,103) 

622,486 

2,572.167 

$3,194,653 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

($2,834) 

(2,834) 

(2,834) 

($2,834) 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Budget 

$163,000 
103,400 

266,400 

(266,400) 

266,400 

266,400 

1999 COPS 
Variance 
Positive 

Actunl (Negative) 

$163,000 
103,105 $295 

266,105 295 

(266,105) 295 

266,400 

266,400 

295 $2.95 

105,572 

$105,867 
(Continued) 



CITY 01~ MILLBRAE 

BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEbULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR TI-IE YEAR ENPED JUNE 30, 2013 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

LIBRARY BONDS 2004 PENSION OBLIGATION BONDS 
Variance Variance 
Positive Positive 

Bud~ct Actual (Negativcl Bud111et Aclual (Ne~ative} 

GOVEllNMENTAL REVENUES 
Property tax $634,775 $670,325 $35,550 
Other tnxes 
License nnd permits 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Use of money and property $666 $666 
Grants and intergovommental $895,000 895,000 
Mlscellancous 

Total Revenues 6341775 670,325 351550 895,000 895,666 666 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government: 
Non-Dcpnrlluental 

Publ.ic safety 
Fire 

Highways and streets 
Engineering 
Maintenance 

Culture and recreation 
Community development 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 130,000 130,000 890,000 890,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 504,031 503,469 562 5,000 41733 'J.67 

Total Expenditures 634,031 6331469 562 895,000 894,733 ').67 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 744 361856 36,lli 933 933 

OTHER FlNANClNG SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers (out) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

NET CHANGE lN FUND BALANCES $744 36,856 $36,112 933 $933 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 754,955 

ENDING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $791,811 $933 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

lntemal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
department or agency to other departmen ts or agencie.5 of the City on a cost.reimbw-sement basis . 

The City's Internal Service Funds are as follows: 

Municipal Garage - To account for the purchase and maintenance of all motor vehicles. 

Unemployment Insurance - To account for the accumulation of the payment of resources for 
unemployment claims against the City. 

Workers' Compensation - To account for the resources and uses for the payment of workers' 
compensation clairns against the City. 

General Liability - To account for resources and uses for the payment of liability insurance 
premiums and claims against the City. 

Compensated Absenc~ - To account for accumulation of earned compensation. 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2013 

Municipal Unomploymcnl Workers' General Leave 
Garasp Insurance Comeensation Liabilill'. Accrual Total 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and investments $1,186,092 $21,800 $1,582,945 $323,028 $1,143,242 $4,257,107 
Receivable: 

Accounts - net 14,565 524 12,208 27,297 
Due from other governmental agencies 21468 2.468 

Total Current Assets 112031125 22,324 1,595,153 323,028 1.1431242 41286,872 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital assets 

Depreciable capital assets, net 6221092 6221092 

Total Assets 118251217 221324 115951153 323,028 111431242 419081964 

LIABILITIDS 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 18,881 107 18,988 
Compensated absences 307 437,089 437,396 
Accrued self-insurance (Note 12) 621,429 41,956 663,385 

Total Current Liabilities 19,188 621,429 42,063 437,089 1,119,769 

Noncnmmt Liabilities: 
Compensated absences 2,763 706,153 708,916 
Accrued self-insurance (Note 12) 1,838,571 4,662 1,843,233 

Total Liabilities 211951 2,460,000 46,725 1,143,242 3,6711918 

NET POSITION 
Net investment~ in capital assets 622,092 622,092 
Unrest.rioted 1,181!174 221324 {86418472 2761303 6141954 

Total Net Position (Deficits) $1:803J266 $22,324 {$8641847} $276,303 $1,237,046 
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CITY OF Mll,LBRAE 

lNTERNALSERVICBFUNDS 

COMB1N1NG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES 1N FUND NET POSlTION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Municipal Unemployment Workers' General Leave 
Garaie Insurance Com12ensntion Llubililx Ac<:rual Total 

OPERA TINO REVENUHS 
Equipment rental $646,921 $646,921 
Interdepartmental charges 57,256 $27,377 $812,394 $467,666 1,364,693 
Miscellnneous 13,186 79,389 92,575 

Totnl Operating Revenues 7171363 271377 891,783 467,666 21104,189 

OP8RATINO EXPENSES 
Personnel services 88,688 70,379 55,686 214,753 
Contractual services 127,896 IJ7,566 12,018 257,480 
Materials, supplies and other services 147,150 147,150 
Depreciation 160,406 l60,406 
Insurance premiums and elaims 10,627 5,053 1,584,443 129,963 1,730,086 

Total Operating Exponsos 534,767 $5,053 I, 772,388 1971667 2,509,875 

Operating Income (Loss) 182,596 :22,324 (880,6052 269,999 {405,6861 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Loss on disposal of capital assets (10,129) (10,129) 
Interest revenue 606 81 687 

Total Nonopcrating Revenues (Expenses) (9,523) 81 (91442) 

EXCESS (DEPlCIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENSES 173,073 2i,324 (880,524) 269,999 (415!128) 

Transfers in 
Transfers (out) !}38,320} (138,320} 

Transfers (138,320t (138,320} 

Change in Net Position 34,753 22,324 (880,524) 269,999 (553,448) 

BEGINNING NET POSITION 1,768,513 1.51677 6,304 1,7901494 

ENDING NET POSITION (DEFICIT) $1,803,266 $22,324 {$8641847} $276l303 $1,237,046 
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CTIY0FMillBRAE 
JNTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

C0MB1N1NGSTATEMENtOFC ASHFL0WS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Municipal Unemployment Workers' 
Oarase Insurance Com~ensntion 

CASJi FLOWS FROM 0PERAT.IN'G ACI'fVlTillS 
Receipt.s from customers $719,281 $26,853 $879,575 
l'nyments to suppliers {285,748) (117,566) 
Pnyments to employees (109,382) (70,379) 
Clairns paid {5,0532 {532,624) 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 324,151 21:800 159,006 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL 
FJNANCING ACTIVITIES 

Transfera (out) {138,3202 

Cash Flows from Noncapita.l Financing Activities {138,3202 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTJNG ACTlvtTIES 
Interest income 607 81 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 607 81 

Net Cash Flows 186,438 21,800 159,087 

Cash and investments at beginning of period 999,654 1,423:858 

Cash and investments at end of period $1,186,092 $21,800 $1,582,945 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
net cash flows from operating activities: 

0perntlng income (loss) $182,596 $22,324 (.$880,605) 
Adjustments 10 reconcile operating income to 

net cash flows from operating activities: 
Depreciation 160,406 

Chango in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable (14,565) (524) (12,208) 
Due from other governmeJ}ta.1 ngencies 16,483 
Accounts pnyable (75) 
Compensated absences (20,694) 
Accrued self-insurance 1,0511819 

Gash Flows from Operating Activities $324,151 $21,800 $159,006 
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General Leave 
Liabilil1 Accrual Total 

$474,012 ($740,242) $1,359,479 
(21,877) (425,191) 
(55,686) (235,447) 

{263,7492 (801,426} 

132,700 {7401242} (102,585) 

{138,320} 

{138,320) 

688 

688 

132,700 (740,242) (240,217) 

190,328 $1,883,484 4.497!324 

$323,028 $1,143,242 $412571107 

$269,999 ($405,686) 

160,406 

6,346 (20,951) 
16,483 

(9,859) (9,934) 
(740,242) (760,936) 

(133,786) 918,033 

$132,700 ($740,241) {$102,585} 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed infonuation as a contc:xt for understanding 
what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplemcntl:Uy infom1ation says about the City's 
overall :fin11.Dcial health. In contrast to the financial section, the statistical section infonnation is not subject to independent 
audit. 

Fi11a11cial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial performance and well being 
have changed over time: 

1. Net Position by Component 
2. Changes in Net Position 
3. Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
4. Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds 

Re11em1e Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue source, lhe property tax: 

1. Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
2. Property Tax Rates, All Overlapping Governments 
3. Principal Property Taxpayers 
4. Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present infmmation to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt 
and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future: 

1. Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type 
2. Ratio ofBonded Debt Outstanding 
3. Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 
4. Computation of Legal Bonded Debt Margin 
5. Sewer Fund Revenue Bond and Loan Coverage 
6. Bonded Debt Pledged Revenue Coverage, Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds 

Demographic am/ Economic Informatio11 
These scheduJes offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the 
City's financial activities take place; 

1. Demographic and Economic Statistics 
2. Principal Employers 

Operatilig l11formatio11 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to l1elp the reader understand how the information in the City's financial 
report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs: 

1. Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Fuoction 
2. Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
3. Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 
4. Taxable Sales by Category 
5. Property Tax Dollar Breakdown 
6. Sales Tax Percentage Breakdown 

Sources 
Unless otherwise noted, the infor:mation in these schedules is den'ved from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the 
relevantyear. The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include 
information beginning in that year. 
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CITY OF MU,LBRAE 
Net [1osltion by Component 

Last Ten .Fiscal Ycar11 
(nccrunl b:isis of nccounting) 

(Dollars in millions) 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Dln••••rl in 011rJffll •~..i.. nttofrcl,.tod d,ot lll{eaJric.lcd ■ L'11:01nc.t:cd 

,June 30, 
2004 2005 2006 24107 2008 2009 :mo 2011 

$7.9 $8.8 $8.7 S49.6 $49.0 $48.8 $'17.2 S46.4 
12.5 ll.8 16.0 18.7 17,(i 15.1 13.2 14.7 
{8,6) {H.6) {10.3} oo.1i {8.?) (4.8) (3.7l 0.1 

Sll.8 Sl2.0 $14.11 SS1.6 S57.9 $59.1 $56.7 S61.2 

$11.0 Sll.2 $16.7 SI0A $12.1 $10.9 $11.S Sll.l 
4.2 4.0 (0.6} 4.0 4.1 8.5 9.1 13.,1 

$IS.2 $1S.2 $16.I Sl4..t Sl6.2 $19..1 $20,6 $24.5 

$18.9 $20.0 S25.4 S60.0 SGl.l $59.7 $58.7 $51.S 
12.5 11.8 16.0 19 LS IS 13.2 14,7 
(4.'I) (4.6) OM} (6.7) (5.0) 3.7 5.4 13.3 

$27.0 $27.2 S30.:i 1172.0 $74.1 $78.5 ~'77,3 $85.S 
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1012 2013 

$44.5 S47.2 
(i.9 13.l 

12.6 8.6 

S64.0 $6!).0 

$ 10.2 $13.0 
16.il 16.2 

S2G.6 $2?,2 

$54.7 $60,2 
6,9 13.2 

29.0 24.8 

,$90.6 $?11.2 



CITY OF MILLBRAE 
Changes in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Bnsis of AccQunting) 

(Doll a rs in millions) 

2004 2005 2006 2007 
For Ifie :rear ended June 30, 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

ExpcnsCll 
Oovenunentlll Activities: 

General Government $1.3 $1.4 $1.8 $).9 $2.l $2.l $2.2 $2.3 $4.1 $3.2 
Public Safety 9.0 8.8 8.8 6.4 10.0 1 J.7 12.S ll .7 12.1 J0.8 
Hlghway and Streets J.8 1.6 1.5 5.6 4.3 4.1 3,6 :2.4 I.I 2.1 
Culiurc and Recn:ation 2.G 3.1 2.1 LS 1.5 1.5 1.4 l,2 l.t 1.0 
Community Development 1.3 2.0 3.0 S.3 S.l 6.9 8.6 6.3 2.9 2.7 
lriterest on Long~Term Debt 1,6 u 2,9 2.0 2.5 . 2.J 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.5 

Totnl Govemmentnl AoUvitie.s Expenses 17.6 18.4 20.l 22.1 25.5 28.4 30.4 26.0 233 21.!) 
Busincss-Ty11e Activities: 

Municipal Water System 3.6 3.5 'l5 3.8 4.2 4.4 4.9 5.1 5.9 6.4 
Municipal Wastewater 

Treatmcbt FaciUty 3.7 3.9 4.4 5.2 S.l 5.G Ci.I 5.4 6.7 6.6 
S1om1Drain 0.3 0.3 0.4 0,4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 7.6 7.7 8.3 9.4 9.8 10,4 I l.5 n.o 13.1 13.4 
Total Primary Government Expenses 2~.2 26.1 28.4 32.1 35.3 38.8 41.9 37.0 36.4 35.3 

Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities; 

Charges for Services; 
Gc11er11l Government O.t 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.7 0.7 I.I 1,2 1.5 2.4 
Public Safety 0.7 0.S 0.7 1.1 1.2 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 0.8 
Highway and Strcels 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.8 0.4 1.9 0.4 0.4 0.4 1.1 
Culture 11nd Recreation 0.8 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.9 0.9 LO 1.0 1.0 
Community Development 1.8 0.5 0.6 2.0 I.I 3.3 2.0 3.S 1.0 I.I 

Operi!ling Grnnts 0rtd Contributions 1.3 1.3 2.8 1.8 1.2 1.7 1.1 1.1 0.8 1.6 
Total Oovemmcnt Activities 

Progr11m Revenues 4.9 3.3 5.6 6.8 5.3 10.3 7.4 9.1 6.5 8.0 
Business-Type Activities: 

Chnrges for Services: 
Municipal Water System 4.0 3.6 3.9 4.4 4.9 5.7 5,4 5.8 6.:l 6.7 

Municipal Wastewater 
Treatment Facility 3.8 3.8 4.5 5.0 S.8 6.5 7.6 8.5 8.4 8.S 
Storm Drain 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 

Capital Grants and Contributions 0.2 
Total Business-Type Activitios 

Program Revenue 8.2 7.6 8.6 9.6 10.9 12.4 13.2 14.6 14.9 15.5 
Total Primary Government 

Program Revenues 13.l 10.9 14.2 1.6.4 16.2 22.7 20.6 23.? 21.4 23.5 

Net (Expense)/Revenue 
Govcmmen~l Activities (l:i!.7) (IS.l) (14.5) (15.9) (20.2) (18.1) (23.0) (15.9) {16.8) (13.9) 
Business-Type Activities 0.6 (0.1) 0.3 0.2 1.1 2.0 1.7 3.6 1.8 2,1 
Total Primary Government Net Expense ~12.l~ ~s15,2i !$14.2} {SJ5.7l {$19.l) {5:16.12 {$21.3) {$13.3} {$1 S.O} {$11.8} 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
Changes in Net Position 
Lnst Ten Fisca l Yeats 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Dollars in millions) 

(cootioued) 
For lhc :i:cnr ended June 30, 

:2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 :2011 2012 2013 

General Revenues and Other Changes 
in Net Position 

Oovcmmcnt;al Activities: 
Toxc:s: 

Property Taxes $5.6 $8.5 $9.6 $10.9 $11.9 $13.I $!3 .4 $13.4 $10.9 $9.2 
Sales Truces 2.0 l.9 2.2 2.4 2.2 2.4 2.0 u 2.2 2.2 
Motor Vehicle In-Lieu 1.0 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 O.l 
Transient Occupnncy True 2,2 '.l.3 2.6 2.9 3.3 2.8 2.9 3,7 3.9 5.0 
OihcrTaxcs 1.0 1.2 1.7 J.4 1.S 1.4 1.6 1.6 J.7 1.5 

Interest &mings 03 0.7 0.5 1.2 1.0 (0.2) 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.4 
Olher 2.5 0.?. 0.2 0.4 0.7 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.8 
Transfer.; (0.1) (0.3) (0.5) 0.4 (0.J) (0.2) (0.1) 
Extn1ordimuy item 0.8 

Total Government Activities 14.6 15.2 16.8 19.3 20.4 19.4 21.0 21.2 19.7 18.9 
Business•TyPe Activities; 

Interest Enmlngs 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 OJ 0.2 
Mlscellnneous 03 0.3 0.1 0.8 (0.3) 0.1 
Transfers and Other (O.J} 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.5 (0.4} 0,3 0.1 

Total Business-Type Activities 0.2 O.l 0.2 0.6 0.8 0.7 J.3 (0.6} 0.4 o.s 
Total Primary aovenimcnt 14.8 15.3 17.0 19.9 21.2 20.1 22.J 20.6 20.l 19.4 

Chongc In Net Position 
Governmental Activilies 1.9 0.1 2.3 3.4 0.2 0.2 l.3 (2.0) 4.3 5.0 
Business-Type Activitios 0.8 0.0 0.5 0.8 1.9 1.8 3.3 I , I 4.0 2.6 
Touil Primary Govc:mmont $2.1 $0.1 si.8 $4.2 $2.1 $2.0 $4.6 (S0.9} $8.3 $7.6 
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CITY mr l\ULLB~\E 
1~uml Bnlnnccs ofGovc:rumc:ntal Funds 

l ... "lst Ten Fiscal Year$ 
(i\fodiJfod Acerunl Dnsis or Aceou11ting) 

2005 2006 2.001 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

■Un,~<td 

., ... 1i:,:,J 
Ctkxi;p:r.~•b~ 

01r...,,.1:u1 

Juo~JO 
2004 2-005 2006 2007 

Gcr.,m1l Fund 
Roi:erved Sl,DSCi,073 :6 l,•135,0117 SI,305,552 $1,714,02.1 
Unre.iervcd (GG5,81G) 117,878 1,399,190 2,9~2,238 
Nans;,cmi:.ble 
~ii:m:d 
Un!!SsisNd 

1'olnl Gonnml Fund S42fl
1
1S? $11$S2.%5 S2.704 ,,12 S4.696..259 

All Other Gommncnlnl Jl1111ds 
Rc&ei"''CU 
Umeservetl, rcparlctl in: 

S'l,094,675 54,920,1}51 $5,994,916 S 14,623,~M 

Spcclnl rC\il:nuc llrn:ls 6,827,715 '1,l<IS,428 6,575,77B 4,04l,'J08 
Cuphal prQj~-ci funds S19,S09 5,iM6,761 l,3S9,947 (362,503) 

NollSJlcndablc 
ltMtrldcd 
Ullll,gliwicd 

Totol all olhcr gr,vcmmcntal fuod$ SM15011829 Sl4i'Jl31M!l SIS,9)0.MI $I-R.;!04,013 

2009 20m 2011 1012 
(h) 

Gcnuro.l Fund 
Rcwved .51,131,922 $1,186,935 
Unre.~crvod 1,567,041\ 1,675,398 
Notl:ij)<lndublc $1,0,10,IIJO $29,860 
Assigned 2)64,5GS 2,17J.4S4 
UMJJigncd 2!!11,9.!JI 3,Wl.888 

TQtel GD1111t:1I Fund $2,7,18.9(,(i U,862.333 $4,0~>J.656 S5,493,202 

All Ollrnr Go"~nun~rUul Funds 
~C$crvc<! SI0,174,-196 l!l,253,79R 
Unrcscrv.-id, ropnrtl!d 111; 

Spccinl rownuu funds 6,267,513 4,914,750 
Cupital JJ!'Qil!Ct fl!!lds 1,922,889 1,07!,?80 

ll{Qnspcndplifc 
Rc:;tticwd Sl0,860,686 $13,174,286 
l,Jr.n,,;sil!Jlcd (1,228,417) (23,248) 

'fohll nil ollict govcmml!llU\I fund.i $ 18.364,898 :i;l6,M01J2S S IM3 2.2G!l S13.ISI.0J8 

(o) Thcchilngc in l!>UII fund bnlnnco for lhc Ocncr:11 Fund ruld Mhcr soventni¢lll41 runds 
Is cxplnlncd In Maimgcinc.'11's Di:lemsion nnd Annly:ils. 

(b) The City impl~mcnlc<l OASB No. S4 iu Fisclll 2011. 
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2.0118 

Sl,216,:113 
l,684,il76 

$212201789 (n) 

$11,2.IG,2!10 

5,-111,0!16 
1,010,3!17 

S17,637,7113 

ZOil 

$'l98,057 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
Changes in Ftmd Balance of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Y cnrs 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Fi5cal Yc11r Ended June 30 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

J{cvcnues 
'faxes $11,338,355 $14,291,554 $16,191,092 $17,815,200 $19,167,621 
Licenses, pom1its and files 565,594 349,179 474,612 1,044,495 S30,799 
Charges for services 2,674,024 1,379,653 1,840,334 2,957,931 2,275,0ll 
Fines and forfeitures 291,095 203,2:23 358,782 700,717 592,195 
Use of money and property 426,685 807,830 763,161 1,562,303 l,443,506 
Grants and lntergovemmcntol 1,940,142 2,004,196 1,129,260 1,271,907 1,295,216 
Miscelln.neous 1,958,367 369,532 229,921 406,?38 792,893 

Total Revenues 19,433,725 19,194,262 19,405,167 20,987,162 25,759,291 

E:rpcnditun~., 

Current'. 
General government $1,216,074 $1,162,097 $1,475,679 $1,731.518 $1,846,271 
Public safety 8,333,506 8,346,122 8,414,172 8,758,410 9,851,524 
Highways and streets 1,575,042 1,336,SGO 1,430,631 1,803,807 2,175,594 
Culture n.nd recreation 1,497,215 1,695,953 2,057,200 1,306,120 1,456.488 
Community development 2,205,659 3,0l7,17S 3,391,00S 4,373,645 5,071,248 

Copi!iil outlay 7,767,178 3,909,191 663,204 2,157,024 1,666,662 
Debt serviec: 

Principal rcpaymcat 420,000 S,330,000 807,350 379,928 1,150,376 
.Interest and fiscal charges 1,510,795 l~OS,110 l,23l.034 J,238,788 1~27,636 

Total Expenditures 21,930,137 24,S2St469 26,012,208 19,470,27$ 21,7491240 

Excess (deflcicnoy) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (5,331,207) (6,607,041) 1,516 887 4,010,051 1,65),443 

Other Finandng Sourtes (Uses) 
Transfers in 904,673 1,515,967 2,696,763 2,081,633 3,461,056 
Tronsfcrs (out) (1,207,173) (1,954,977) (2,232..446) (2,21$,841) (4,0ll,12S) 
Proceeds from lon&-tcnn debt 11,521,630 8,590,000 lSS,074 489,046 25,000 
Payment to retirement plan (I 1,200,000) 
Payment 1o escrow ogont 
Snle of capital as:icl5 604,7SS 

Total other financing sources (uses) 623,88S 8,150,990 652,:391 354,838 (5i5,069) 

Net chansc in fund balances before 
extraordinwy item (4,707,322) 1,543,949 2,169,278 4,364,889 1,126,374 

Bxtraordimuy item 

Net ch1111sc in fund balances ($4;707,322) $1,543,949 $2,169,278 $4,364,889 $1,126,374 

Debt service os o percentage of 
aoncapitnl expenditures 11.5% 29.6% 11.4% 8.4% 10.4% 

Note: (A) Irtformatlon not available. 
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Fiscal Vear £Qdi:!I June 30, 
2009 20l0 2011 201:l 2013 

SW,081,107 $19,922,116 $20,876,S 11 $18,724,073 $17,879,783 
629,695 787,170 665,289 998,214 1,633,463 

6,219,277 2,169,540 4,205,335 2,462,577 2,432,939 
854,587 1,097,610 1,313,498 l,223,209 1,16S,881 
302,045 805,476 724,554 781,252 787,221 

1,802,482 2,300,750 1,798,705 808.281 1,968,688 
239,237 672,299 834,417 665,205 1,063,882 

26,097,242 30,128,1130 271754,961 ' 25,G62,811 261931,857 

$1,80I,58S $1,690,298 $1,796,972 $2,160,416 $2,614,832 
10,668,650 11,159,828 10,712,547 11,665,202 9,986,838 
1,995,038 2,070,733 1,620,416 1,780,137 1,954,495 
1,442,001 1,296,878 1,105,SSS l,055,993 934,198 
5,207,855 9,669,345 S,862,770 4,234,460 2,319,047 
S,647,530 906,073 297,200 760,286 1,722,942 

1,124,366 1,176,898 1,295,105 1,289,000 1,183,000 
l,194,519 1,176 578 1,158,685 11102,398 6ll 307 

24 445, 799 29,081,544 29,146,631 24,047,892 21,326,659 

1,046,886 (1,391,670) 6,569,029 1,614,919 5,6051198 

7,930,991 4,892,099 3,049,536 1,6SS,279 978,332 
(8,403,585) (5,229,632) (4,895,301) (2,006,475) (916,127) 

2,555,000 

{2,850,000) 
1,000 25 221 

(471,594) ~337,533) {1,845,765) (617,975) 62,205 

575292 (l.7.!9,203) 4!723,264 996,944 5,667,403 

$515,292 ($1,729,203) $4,723,264 ($5,081,685) $5,667,403 

8.5% 8.6% 10.4% 10.9% 9.1% 
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C1T'° OF MLLLnRAE 
STATISTCCS 

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROJ>ERTY 

LAST TltN FISCAL Yl!:ARS 

-c- Secured Property ---:i--- Unsecured PrDperty I 
4.0 

3.5 

3.0 

Ill 
2.6 

c:: 

~J--" i- :J -
l.--"f 

:.,..,--

_u--
__..., 

~ ---n----
,g 
al 2.0 

1.5 

1.0 

0.5 

0.0 - - - - - - - -
2004 200G 2006 2007 2008 2000 2010 20 11 2012 

Rul~oal!al C\Ju1m'1d•I ludQ,lfJal 
Olhw-

TOTAL ·rc,rnl E1Ullll ltd 
PropHly J'ropc,rl)' l'mp~l)' li=ml l •ropqty Au .. ud (o) t • lt M~rl,~t (a) 

1,~9S,001,S 13 2U,600,948 23,896,936 S3,4GB,932 2,286,968,329 S1,S86,S38 2,338,SS4,lt67 2,l )K,55,1,867 

2.140,-11"-555 224,8)2,7'1<) l6,822.12S 56,068,678 2,448,138,098 ,l ,210,888 2,,ot,3'i8,98Q 2,$PJ,l4S,980 

2,ns,m,,o 1 233,,ISO,m :!7,468,7(13 $9,S~B,IU :2,649,032,SS.S 61.636,73(, 2,7l0 ,669,67J 2,710.669.671 

2,~30,573,6~9 261,/jM,654 J6.210,8~2 78,013,790 2,906,402,9!\5 S7,S31,l74 2,963,934, IS!) :2J63,!)).1, 159 

2,733,074,818 263,281,2?? 36,695..559 92,843,377 J,J2j ,895,0J I S5,607,J24 3,182,502.)55 J, 182,502,Jjj 

i .966,830,89/i l05)8 0,93(i J6,9~7,380 117,992,u) 3,.127,061,4Q$ 7-i,'T.12,21.12 l,501 ,793.697 3,.501,793.697 

3,106,361.~05 JJ0,025,176 37,896,181 37,660,549 3,561,943,711 S9,707,61!> 3,621,651 ,lJO 3,621,65 I ,3)0 

3, 121i..S~6,?S5 368,011&,716 36.480.m S7,4S3,767 3..58S~n9.-195 58,876/126 :l,647,455,92.1 3,647_45j,921 

3,lli2,3!1t909 380,230,791 J7,6i0,90G l 8,93(i,21S 3,639,192,881 6'1.m.111 J ,703,969,9:12 3,703,969,992 

3,2~l,9lft,9.1S 348,lM,~75 42,036,033 I 0;),222,251 :l,785,:i29.Sl•I S9,Co6,096 J,S~•l,595,910 3,8~1,59!1,9 I 0 

(a) '111~ C:tlilbmfo Slate Co1t!litUtilJII 11:11ul:e, prar,crty ltl l;o 1;;;1:is :A ooe li1a1:IA:J 11:1 ... 'lll ( I 00'#.) or1he llii.'i>l tmall J<ill;/11:i>G 1111,1-j,hi! "" !n.:rmi lCI ur nu ijlliiV ti,"'! 
I"!> p~n:131I (i¾) !OIUM !lly, plm ;uiy loci I ovc1,ri1_1-!$. '11\Qo wh1o.i nro c~dQ1cd IC ha fr~I 1n,1tkot , •nl\101 

(b) C,,lil'cll~iA ci!lc:o ,In""' Jli!t lh•lr 01v• ~ir~d lnx 111!!'. TM Collfomio iitrno Coni!ltuUon ~1abll~1~s U1c rafo 01 ono p~~cn[ (1%) ond ollocmc3 n portfon or1h~c tuuoun:. 

So~,-; lldl Comp111,IC$ 

Srut t.fatoo Caunly A<ti""'i.- Curu!Jlr.al ·ru Roll, fron, 20021100]. 1012/Wll 
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TutnlDir....:.l 

Tu Ratc(b} 

0,240~ % 

0.2•1040% 

D.24339¾ 

o.im~~ 

0.25739% 

0.27805% 

O.l il047¾ 

0.27861'/4 

0.28125% 

u.w1,w. 



crn:· otr M11 .. LnltAE 
STATISTICS 

J>ROl,ERTY TAX RATES ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERN.MENTS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

DOthor aCJty DTot:il Direct Rate DRcdevclopmenl aTolal Direct& Ovotlapplng Tax Rau~ 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

7.008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

1.2 

1.0 

O.G 

0.4 

0.2 

0.0 

1.0000 

1.0000 

1.0000 

1.0000 

1.0000 

1.0000 

1.000() 

1.0000 

1.0000 

1.0000 

2004 2005 2005 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Sdioolt C:unbl)' ell\' (C) OU•«: RcUtvtlopllffl (d} 

0.022/i 0.0264 1.0490 0.1579 0.026'1 1.0015 

0.0239 0.0244 1.0483 0.157!) 0.0244 l..0007 

0.0239 ().0224 1.0463 0.1579 0.02.2•1 LOOOO 

0.0340 0.0215 I.OSSS 0.1579 0.0215 1.0000 

0.0321 0.01% 1m11 0.1579 0.01!)6 1.0000 

0.0463 O.OH!l 1.0644 0.1579 0.0181 1.0000 

()_(l(,86 0,0174 1.08(,0 0,1579 0.0)7,t J,0000 

0.0769 0.0176 1.094S 0.1579 0.0176 1.0000 

0.0877 0.0175 1.1052 0.1579 0.0175 1.0000 

0,0930 0.0169 1,1099 0.1579 0.0169 

(n) In 1978, Call Cumin l'Clors piill:lild Pmpa&itlo11 JJ wWclt s~I 1ho Jlf()IIOny 1:ix nne ~, n 1.00"1, ru:cd 11mo1.J111. 111111.00¼ Is !h!l./'Cd by all 
l:u<ifl[I. ui;=i« lilr whit:11 d.: i ubjcs:t 111opoty rclidl'S "W1i11, I.fl pll;Ji\[on I~ Ill< I .Q0'/2 liJ«d ron<11ml, GICP;~ Qw1ier1 .:re cll/1111ed 
lnl(e1 Qj n ~-•ng11 ol'i>i$wC<l pr<>r,c,ty y.;luc,; ror p,~•cht ortny ,'QI.,,. ,wro ,·i:<t bond.s. 

(b) Ovclf"l'PUlll f41CS ore 11!0.Se oflcool nnd toullly govrmmcnt lhlll npply to proporty owner• wld1i11 d10 Chy. N<>t all o~o,lopping ratu 
a11ply 10 oil Cily Jii'!lltt11Y owr.tts 

(o) 1110 City's IDll(o Of the 1.0~~ IC")' is b1i,~ OD Uio City's 50011: of I'-: OCl!crnl r, md tlt.1 r,10 Ill.:& will, fh~ hugCl!I DCI li!>mb!c v&Joo 
wl~1in lb<: City. EJU<;:allunul Ra,'lllma ,\111:rmmtntioo (!m,\ 11) Gi:rn:rnl l'uml lax i;hiflJI may not b~ i~l'luded in fn!I mlio li~ml'I. 

(~) 111• Rcdm:lop,n:nl A~..:IK)' (RD,\) rol; I, bmJ <:ti lb,: lnfijcst RDA lll.:t rate nrca and inthide! ooly CJ.le (s) from indcbtcdnc,s ndoplcd 
prlor to 1989 p( r California Sfnlo slotl!I~ RDA di~l !l!ld o~c,[l,wi"S role! aro llJlrlicd only lo Ille in~tt1~n1ql propc11y vnlucl. Tb.: 
gllj>fOVal or Allx! 26 eliminated RD,\& lium Calit1mti11 lbr liEl:UI yw 201 l'I 3 1111d yct111 lhcrc.ilk r. 

(c) io t~I Oirca Ratu ill lh~ w~irJt!ctl D\'Cl~~~ or all indlvidui!l dil'll~I mtCJ npplied b),' Ille O0fflDnlC!!I ptcpltrillC Ille tllnli!llcllt !cctiCU 
infOlllYllion. 

Sonr@J: Hdl Comp1111ic1 

Si1n M4'<l) ('.(>UlilY An~ior An1111cl TllX lnCt'L111anl 1'llblc$ 
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TIIIAI 
Jllttd: Rat~ (e) 

0.24089 

0.24040 

0.24339 

0.25359 

0.25739 

0,2iR05 

0.28047 

0.27861 

0.28t29 

0.29759 



0\,11a I Tmp!i}'U 

Westin Bay Hotel Company 

OR Property Holdings 

Mngnolin of Millbrae, Inc. 

Mnryrnount Greenhills LLC 

Srnrwood S r, Clarion Realty LLC 

Simeon SP.FY.BF LLC 

Friend Friend and Friend 

Tvfrl !brae J>aradise 

Wilson Plaza LLC 

Real Propcrt}' Storage LLC 

Green HiJls Coua(ry Club 

EQR Sl.-yli11e Terrace LP 

John and Susan C Williams Trus1 

Bcmard nnd Lisu Corry Trust 

Cooper SP Rcnlty LLC 

ThnkorB. Dc!Slli Trust 

MIiibrae Square Company LP 

TOTAL TOP TEN 

Total Secured A~csscd VnJunlion: 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

TOP TENPROPElll'V TAXPAYERS 

Top Properly Owners Il:ued on Nel V11lucs 

Fi;.c:il Yl!llr 2002 -2003 

I T:u:.Llo TotlllPtromt 
Am :•<<d at>· Tnrn~le 
VJlluo Am,ucJl'alilo 

391722,474 1.83% 

24,223,575 1.12% 

18,337,802 0.85% 

8,120,731 0.37% 

90,4041582 4.17% 

2,167,967,092 
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Fiscal Yc~r l0Jl..:2013 

TIWlhl.t Tot«! l'crctnl 
Am,md Ql)•Taulile 

ValYe i.J•fflfAV1,hif 

46,132,106 122% 

34,738,320 0.92% 

28,013,871 0.74% 

21,805,693 0.5&% 

l7,300,000 0.46% 

15,398,829 0.4]% 

14,935,242 0.3~/o 

14,445,532 0.38% 

12,064,559 0.32% 

11,652,,154 0.31% 

11,650,920 031% 

9,858,300 0,26% 

9,551,136 0.25% 

9,277,985 0.25% 

8,428,275 0.22% 

7,000,000 0.18% 

6,637,794 0.l8% 

278,891,016 7.37% 

J,78S,529,81-1 



I!! 
~ 
~ 

Fhcnl TOTAi.. 
Ye:ir JA.1( LEVY {/!) 

2004 3,182,&27 

200S 3,408,01.5 

2006 3,6112,039 

2007 3,980.05°1 

2008 4,251,621 

200~ 4,630,356 

20IO 4,692.,363 

2011 4,7'10,41~ 

2012 5,430,0RK 

2013 il,%5,353 

6.0 _/ 

5.0 .V 

CITY OF MJLLBRAR 
STATISTICS 

PROPERTY TAX Lll:VIES AND COLLECTCONS 

LAS1' TEN FISCAL Yr:!ARS 

l!TAX COLLeCTe0 CHAX Ll:VY (a} 

.c::: 
-

~ -= .::;: ~ • c:: 

4.0 

3,0 

2.0 

1.0 

.V -- ;Ill ,.c:: ·- .. 1.·i 
«::: ,.. " ~ ' ' .:::: .. -' 

. / .,:: .. ; 
.J.' 'e ', I I; .. ,.. ', { . •' i; . -... ' .. 

·' 
:, 

/ -· t{ ', ,, ";\ 'I 

•: ' ,'.,' . -
' ; .·• :· ,, ; 

L - / _,,,,1, 
. 1/ 

>; ·-' lj 
< -" ., Ir_,,. 2003 

2004 2005 2006 
- .,.,, 

~ ii_,,. yl •:• '-...? 2007 20oa 2009 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

C■n·rotTn Saa Malco Counfy P•r .. nl of D•llnqotnt 
C0Urdla111 Coll•cllon l'or (l•) Lm')' CoU,dtd Tns Cob,alm, mi 

2,623,965 82.4•113% 165,925 2,789,890 

2,812,2110 82 . .5184% J 14,656 2,926,896 

2,952,070 80.17•19% 2S8,862 3,210.912. 

3,242,096 81.4586% 360,S52 3,602,(148 

3,461,893 41,329 823973% 37S,4S7 3,8711,679 

3,665,930 38,03& 79.9932% 40.,.,021 4,108,995 

3,~26,720 49,131 82 . .5991% 541},3S2 4,,J2J,203 

3,H) !>,805 54,2H!l 82.1•165¾ ~!)7,119 4,'.391,2.M 

~.517,H~ 52,5()1 a-1.1591% ;iJJ,21)7 5,103,i!Oll 

•1,071.419 42,975 82.8<i2lo/o 670,991 4,785,386 

Note: Uurinl! 11ml )"w'lir 1995, ihc County b~gnn providinu the City I 00% nf its Scc1tred 'l'a.-c l~vy per ~n a~rol:mc"t 
whicll oll(l\\'3 ll1e C-011n1y 10 keep oU irtlctesr nrtd delir.iQUcncy chnrgcs collec1cd. 

(u) 111 risen I YIU'.:r 2ill 1-lDI' ttcd~olop1r.e11t WPS dls:.'!Oi\~d nnd Jl111'il11nnt Cnliromln Hc11llh nncl Soll!!)' Code Sc.;l[on 3•1 I 83 .Rcdcvolopm•nl 
n.1n<L~ 1= ret!iSl"llU!cd rn nll tnxlns ~nlitfes 

~ouroc; Cc11111y <l S:111 Mnlco Conlroll~(s Ollkc 

Ci1y of Millbrae F1Moelal Ro:or<l~ 

1 JS 

P..-tttt ll>f iH 

CoUnlrd foT■sl.67 

8?.6541% 

85.Hll27% 

872 053% 

90.5176% 

91,:2282¾ 

8il.7110il¾ 

9-1.3065% 

?l .6333% 

93.9802% 

96.3755% 



CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

l.AST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

a Businoar; Type Activity BGovernm~nt;;iI AcUvity 

50 .0 

J 40 .0 

.:.30.0 

20.0 

10.0 

0.0 
2004 2006 2005 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Governmental Activity 
Fi~CIII G•1111rP! l'onwlCIO TaK CctilOtotoa of Sp~i~I 
Year Obllpall an Band, obllontlon Bonds Allocndan Bon(b Plllticlpallan Assossmo~t Debi 

2004 
2005 

2008 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

10,610 ,000 

10.555,000 

10,520 ,000 

10.475,000 

10,41!5,000 

10,345 ,000 

10,260,000 

10,160,000 

10,04 5,000 

9,9 ·15,000 

11,521,830 

11,657,290 

11,802 ,393 

13,658,604 

14,521,489 

14,633,198 

14,731.266 

14,819,005 

14,889 ,318 

14,934,475 

Fiscal Cortlf[cntn of scat" 
Yoar Partlclp11do11 R~vol\iing Lonn (bl 

2004 
2005 

2006 
2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 
2013 

15,931,367 
14,325,935 

12,690,984 
12,536,033 

1,361,700 

6,466,209 

6,286 ,001 

6,076,171 

9,793,026 

9,504,218 
7,382,051 

17,738,215 
27,405,675 

27,294,385 

5,015,000 

8,590,000 

8,540,000 

8,465,000 

8,370,000 
8,270 ,000 

8,165,000 

7,985,000 

3,745,000 

3 ,635 ,000 

3,~o.ooo 
3,400,000 

3,270,000 

3,135,000 
2,995,000 

2,850,000 

Business Type Ai;livity 

1,361,700 

6,486,209 

6,286,001 

6,076,171 

9,793,026 

9,564,218 
23,313,418 

32,064,150 

40,096,659 

39,830,418 

150,000 

Total P1lm11ry 
Oo\/ltmment 

34,952,773 

43,610,357 

41,849,118 

43,540,11'1 

47,446,237 

46,657,680 
69,7,99,947 
67,878,245 

67,467,53 2 

66,942,893 

Note: Debt amounts eltclude any premiums, discounts, or other amortization amounts. 

2012 2013 

L.onn5 (II) 

2,649,443 

2,686,858 

1,180,724 

1,435,338 

1,076,722 

710 ,184 

335,283 

2,426,555 
2,263,000 

Pel'flol'!nl lneomo 
Pereonu1go (o) 

0.09% 
0.11% 

0.10% 
0.10% 
0.11% 
0 .11% 

0 .15% 

0.18% 

0 .19% 

0.19% 

(a) In 20!2, tho 1009 Cartilioatas or Par11clpeUon wore refinanced Will\ a direct lender l3JC exempt lo,m 
(b) The 200.5 Wactewater Bank Loan and lhe 2008 SubOrdinato Wastewaler Revenue Note In lhe tot.ii amount of 

S0,564,218 were p11id In full wllh lho lirnuance of lhe 2009 Certification of Participation Bonds (Series A & B). In 
2010, the Slate RevoMng Loan lleblllly began , 

(c) Demographic S1aUslics ror San Mateo County Poruonal Income and Olly of Mlllbroe populatlon data. 

sources: CityofM ltlbme Ftnanaiol Reoordii 
State of California, Dep:irtmenl or !=inanca (popul;illon) 
U.S. Oepurtmont o: eomme<ee, 8urePl.i cl the Census (ineomo) 
Hdl Comp~niOD 
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. - ,,.. .- -- -, 
I ~c ~.,\ ~ j -- ) 

- - • - _1 

33,591,073 

37,124,148 

35,563,117 

37,463.940 
37,653;211 

37,093,362 
36,486,529 

35,814,095 
27 ,360 ,873 

27 ,112,475 

rar 
CiiplLl (c) 

1,693 

2,113 
2,021 

2,092 
2,220 

2,167 

2,710 

3,090 

3,057 

3,012 



Fiscal Yeni• 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Lib1•A1')' Bonds 
Pc1"cent11gc ofTotoJ City 
Tnxable Assessed Vnlue 

10,610,000 0.45% 

10,555,000 0.42% 

10,520,000 0.39% 

10,475,000 0.35% 

10,415,000 0.33% 

10,345,000 0.30% 

10,260,000 0.28% 

10,160,000 0.28% 

10,045,000 0.27% 

9,915,000 0.26% 

SoutCG$: St~I• oCCiilitcrnio, Department ofFinoocc 

California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 
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Pet·Capita 

513.98 

5ll.48 

508.14 

503.36 

488.71 

480.47 

467.04 

462.49 

455.16 

446.06 



CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

STATEMENT OF DmECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT 

June 30, 2013 

2012 / 2013 Assessed Valuo.lion: 

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 

Snn Mateo Co111munity Col lcgc District 

San Mateo Union High School District 

Millbrae School Dlstrlot 

City of MIUbr11e 

3,844,595,910 

California Statewide Communities Development Authority 

Assessment District No. 03·1, Olenbrough/Pouls Project Area 

Culifomia Slnlcwide Communities Ocvclopmcnl Authority 

Assessment District No. 06-1, Park Broadway Project Arca 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVEIU.APPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL l:YNQ R,RRT 

Snn Mateo County· Ocnernl F1ind Obligations 

San Mateo County Board ofEducatiou - Certificates of Participation 

City of Millbrae • l'e11sion Obligations 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT 

OVERLAPPING 'f AX INCREMENT OBBT: 

COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 

¾ I AppllCRb!c_ Debt 

2.594% 15,062,320 

7.513% 34,064,865 

59.491% 29,159,232 

100.00% 9,915,000 

100.00% 1,581,141 

100.00% 1,542,321 

S91,324,879 

2.594% 8,086,271 

2.594% 297,143 

100.00% 8,009,440 

S l 6,3!12,854 

7,610,000 

ll 5,327,733 

(1) 6lCcludcs tax end revenue ~nticipHlcd notes, enterprise rcvonue, mortgage revenues and non-bonded capital lease obligatlons. 

RATIOS TO 2011-12 ASSESSED VALUATION: 

Direct Debt (?,9 lS,000) 

Total Dircci and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 

Combined Direct Debt (517,924,440) 

Combined Tot~I Debt 

Ratios to Redevelopment Incremental Valuation ($603,141,653): 

Tot.nl Overlapping Tnx lncn:menl Debi 
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0.26% 

2.38% 

0.47% 

3.00% 

l.2Go/o 

I 

(I) 



CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATJSTICS 

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL BONDED DEBT MARGIN 

June 30, 2013 

ASSESSED VALUATION: 

Secured Property Assessed Value 

BONDED DEBT LIMIT (3.75% OF ASSESSED VALUE) (a) 

AMOUNT OF DEBT SUBIBCT TO LIMIT: 

$3,800,240,986 

TotaJ Bonded Debt 24,849,475 

Less Pension Obligation Bonds (14,934,475) 

$142,509,037 

Amount of debt subject to the limit 9,915,000 

LEGAL BONDED DEBT MARGIN $132,594,037 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

CE] Debt I Total Debt L~g4l 
Ltm1t SubJed lo LUnlt D~bt Mnrgln r 

2004 88,115,231 21,715,716 66,399,515 

2005 94,117,856 10,097,935 84,019,921 

2006 100,459,141 10,520,000 89,939,141 

2007 111,147,531 10.475,000 I 00,672,531 

2008 119,343,838 10,4l5,000 108,928,838 

2009 lJJ,317,264 10,345,000 120,972,264 

2010 133,572,889 10,260,000 123,312,889 

2011 134,571,731 10,160,000 124,411,731 

2012 136,469,733 10,045,000 126,424,733 

2013 142,509,037 9,915,000 132,.594,037 

(a) California Oovenunenl Code, Section 43605 sets the Debt Limit nl 15%. 

Section 43605 was enacted prior to !110 change of basing assessed value ~l full mn.rkct 
rate, wWcb was previously 25% of tho market rate. TI1erefore, the limit is shown as 
3. 75% to account for the full market rate of assessed valuation. 
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I'•t<.enlA&C or 
Total Debi to Debt MnrGfn 

32.70% 

12.02% 

11.70% 

IQ.41% 

9.56% 

8.55% 

8.32% 

8J7% 

7.95% 

7.48% 



6.00 

5.00 

(1, 4.00 
Ol 

"' ! 3.00 (.) 

0 
12 
~ 
~ 

2.00 

1.00 

0.00 

Fhc:i l Gron 
V1!3r nl!Varn~ (nl 

2.00,1 3,840,71i 

2005 3,8-1,1,013 

2006 ,1,700,I 14 

200? 5,385.044 

2008 6,003,855 

2009 7.,282.428 

:2010 7,697,278 

2011 8,4•19,800 

2012 8,496,612 

2013 8,730.438 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

SEWER FUND REVENUE BOND AND L OAN COVERAG E 
SEW.ER AUTHORITY 
LAS'I' TEN J<'lSCAL YEARS 

tlBOND & LOAN COVER.A.OE RATIO 

2011 

011•1'11tu,11 Fo•d• /w11JI.ibl• OcllC Scrrftt Rcq11lrrn1t'III! 

r:.,1,o•Hurn (b) tor Drbt s .. ,1.., Pl·lndpal I l tt t trst I Totnl 

3.166;,274 674,44J 230,900 77,85U JOS,750 

~,362,695 481,318 1,361,700 IQil,717 1,466,417 

3_638,729 1,061,385 200,lOS J0S,745 505,9.53 

•1.oiG,C-40 1,358,i\(M 209,830 2% ,123 505,953 

4,056:182 1,935,]73 219,91(, 286,037 505,953 

4,482,654 2,7iJ9,774 229,JOS 3!1l,8H'1 621,189 

•l,984,139 2,71:3,13<) 4,2D(l,564 l3J,777 4,540,340 

4,732,lil 3,717,•11.9 1,<if.0,000 6S7,0~8 2,257,098 

5,302,86J 3,193,749 1,630,000 <il-1,798 2,254,798 

4.7i4,S22 :l,9~5,91/j IS0,000 612,m 756,248 

Nute. 111 2010, Ilic finul principle puymcml ror Suhnnlinntu War.luwntur Revenue Bond~ fasucd In 2.00R in the 1Qlal nm011nt of 
$3,965,000 W!U r,aid oa: 

(a) lnclu~e,; all W~ tc•Y~lut Opu1111ing Rcvunue, , Non-upuruting rn,~rnst RLn.,muo, nnd Connct !ion f'cc:; 

{b} mctudas V,'n:;11,w:iicr Opo1oling [l~~ 1Jilu.re.s cliclurivc ordcprc~iulion 

SmllOl: City of Millbmc l'innncinl llctollU 
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llOND&LOAN 
COVl!R AGJ: RATIO 

2. 18 

0.33 

2.1() 

2..6R 

3.83 

4.51 

0.60 

l. (iS 

1.42 

5.2:l 



l'bt1l 
Y'1ir 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

Note: 

"' C 

~ 
~ 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 

STATISTlCS 

l\lULLBRAE REDEVEWPMENT SUCCESSOR AGILNCY 
BONDED DEBT PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 

TAX ALLOCATION BONDS 

LAST TEN ll'ISCAb YEARS 

ti Debi Sel\/iel;J Payment II TBJ< lnc;:rernent Revenue 

6,0 

5.0 

4.0 

3.0 

2.0 

1.0 

0.0 

- - - - - --

DobC Stni<c Rtqulr=l'llh 

J'rllldplll lolertai tOI.4 

2,251,228 l L.5,000 399,030 514,030 

2,573,324 5,015,000 439,472 5,454.472 

3,123,608 50,000 474,287 524,287 

3,751.214 75,000 364,875 439,875 

4,607,427 95,000 362,325 457,325 

5,426,628 100,000 359,400 459,400 

5,430,198 105,000 3.56,325 461,325 

5,353,259 180,000 352,050 532,050 

531,575 (A) 185,000 346,575 531,S"lS 

53 !;575 (A) 190,000 340,475 531,575 

2005 Mlllbrnc Redc1•clopmc111 Agency lm 1ed TAB for $8,S~0.000 nnd paid offlhe 1993 TAB outstnndin{: 
Liebl 

In f.liM1I Yc;ir 2011-2012 Redevclopmcnl wn; dissol\·cd: Pursuant Caliromi:i lloalth nnd Safety Code 
Section J4J83 R.cdevclopmcot funds arc rcdisiribulcd 10 nll caxin!l cntilies, except bond liabililics, 

(A) Cuunty Rc,lcvo!opmcnt Ptopcrty Tux Trust Fuml (l<.f"nr) dis1ribtttion 
Sourc.:: Cily ofMifl~m.; Filtbuc&it Rtoo,ds 
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Bmtd C01·er•i:e 
RIICIO 

4.38 

0.47 

5.96 

8.53 

10.07 

IJ.81 

11.77 

10.06 

1.00 

1.00 
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3.00% -
2.5D% · ~ 
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CITY OF MlLLIJUAE 
STA'J'JSTJCS 

DEIVIOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST Tf!.N CALENDAR YEARS 

aCHy PopulnUon a11 11 % ol County Populallon 
-o----Pernonol lncoma 

- -- ,_ 
- ... 

-fl• 
,... - -

I•~ - I• -- -

21103 .oot 200s 21100 2011 ~::,oo 20D!J ano 2v11 2012 2(03 201M 2005 2005 2CD7 2000 2009 2010 ~11 2012 

--:,...-. Per C~plta Person~l lnccme AUnomploymeni Rat0 ('1i) 

$70 ,000 

■ 
.,.-

$60 ,000 4.00¾ - -. 
-

1, . 
$50.000 8.00o/, 

$40,-000 

fA"". ~-. r"-\ Lh' ,....., I',.:,.. ,,..r .! 

~ 
1,--'Y 

2.00% 

r ~ 

-u ~ H 
-

11 

$:!0,000 . 
2003 ~) 1 0005 2C-06 ~007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

2Ql)3 200-1 ~C6 2005 2007 2000 ,009 2010 2011 2012 

CRltndnr 

'!ttnr 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

Clly ,P,,pnl~Uon 

20,657 

20,643 

W,636 

20,703 

20,810 

21,311 

21,531 

21,968 

22,069 

22,228 

SaQ MQl<il COilllb' 
Clly .Poµubuoo l-·--1 l'orC'upfl• 

l'ogalntlon 
% orco ... ty 

l'tn~uul l11,0111" Popwlallan 

720,630 2.87% $722,449 $34,974 

712,400 2.90% $767,D57 $37,158 

723,453 2.85% $810,273 $39,265 

724,104 2.86% $877,713 $~1,39S 

733,496 2.84% $925,544 $44,1176 

739,116!) 2.88% $958,075 $44,957 

711,5,858 2.89"/2 $935,529 :IMJ,,150 

7111,451 3.06% $807,:.90 $36,753 

7').2,372 3.06% $851,952 $38,604, 

735,678 3,02% $883,iJ0 $39,735 

SotL't(;i: S101c ofC~lifnmla, !'.><!romnonl of Plnar.oo 
S11tlc ofCnlirumlJ Ernploymonl Dc,•clopmi:nl Dcttrulmcut 
US Census Durc~u 
Complied lly I ltll.. CQll'l!l!!U"1l! 

Sl!n M~l~\l COUil!}' Co11t:olle!'s OIJi<c 
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E!J ) 

3.3% 

2.i% 

2-2% 

1.9% 

1.9% 

2.5% 

4.5% 

4.6% 

4.1% 

2.6% 



2006 

Princlp~I Employ~r Numbi:r ., 
or a 

Employtu 

Wosl!n Hotel 

MUll,r.10 School District 225 2 

A & C HcalU1 Caro (I) 

Snn Fmnoi~co l'UC (2) 300 

Best Wcsicm•l!I R1uicho 168 -4 

City of Millbrae 133 s 

Mills High School (3) )JO 6 

MaBJlolla of Millbrae 130 7 

M•rymolllll Grccnhills Retirement 
Center 

Green liills ColllltlY Chili 

Lucky 

Kohl's Department Store 

Walgrcons 

$1;;twood Rosorts 200 3 

M'.illbis10 Serro Sanitarium 12S 8 

Orchard Supply 1-lardwam 

Safeway 

World JoWDai Ino 

Morvyn's LLC 112 9 

Sprint Comn1wtlc:itions 

Albertson's LLC 100 10 

TOTAL l,623 

ToW City Labor Force (4) 9,600 

CITY OF MILLBRAE 

STATISTICS 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(JnfonnaUon prior to 2006 is not nvailoble) 

2007 

Percent at N•;t' l!I Putent vf Nynabft 
Gf1L11:inr City Labor or 

Force &".111p1!1~ i'~rta i;:.,i,1,y ... 

2.J'¼ :m 2 2.3% ll~ 

m 
3.1% 300 3.1% 300 

1.8% 168 4 1.7% 168 

IA% 135 5 1.4% l3S 

1.3% 130 6 1.3% 130 

1.4% 130 7 1.3% 130 

2.1% 200 3 2.1% 200 

1.3% !2S 8 1.3% 121 

1.2¾ 112 9 1.2% 112 

100 10 1.0% 

LO% 

16.9% J,625 J6,S¼ 1,660 

9,700 9,700 

(I) A & C :m,allh Cars includos employees et two locatioo.s in tho City of MlUb!'llo 

2008 

Iii rcttu! ar 
Ci<, Labor 

tort.II!: 

2 2.3% 

6 1.4% 

3.1% 

4 1.7% 

1.4% 

7 1.,% 

8 1.3% 

2.1% 

9 1.3% 

IO 1.2% 

17.1¾ 

(2) SBJ1 Francisco PUC (Publio Uli)ities Com111!~$lon) ls a division of San Francisco Co1D1ty. Count is for employees onl,v at the MiUbrn~ location 

(3) Mills High School is ln the San Mateo Union High School Oisfriot. Couol is fot employees ooly al Mills High School in Millbrae 

(4) Total City Labor Force provided by St~t,:, of~llfQtlllaEmployment Development Department Lebor Force Dala 

(5) 2013 results b~l•d on dlroet CQtr"-'pondllllcc with cilys local businesses. 

Sources; MuniS:rvieos, U.C 

Sclcctlll}' I e D & B Product 

J,!d!Comp:in!~s 

Stnlc of California Employment Dcv,olopm~ol Do])llttme111 
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2009 
Nuntbt.t 

111 
Pc:rc:ent ar 

or CilyLabor 
£mploy,a Poree 

221 2 2.3% 

135 6 1.4% 

300 3.1¾ 

168 4 !JI¾ 

144 s LS% 

130 7 IA% 

130 7 1.4% 

200 3 2.1% 

125 8 1.3% 

100 9 LO% 

100 9 1.0¾ 

98 10 1.0% 

100 9 1.0% 

J,9SS 20.4% 

9.600 



lOlO 2011 2012 l 013 
Number 1 runntar Nurubtl" 

1
1

1 

.ft r«1titor r,l1,1i"l!ltUr' 

al 
Percent of Numbu .,. Putt:utqr 

or ii! Cilf LAbor ol Cil)' Labor or Cl')' Llbot or ! City Labor 
Employ«s Force !mplO)'"' Forte :Eni~Jti)'ta Fon:-11 Bmpfoyf6 l'oru, 

160 2 1.7% 164 3 1,6¾ 188 1.8% 

173 3 1.8% 185 1.9% 188 1.9% 186 2 1.8% 

m 6 1.4% 158 3 1.6% l6S 2 1.7% 165 3 1.6% 

300 2 3.1% ISO 1.6% 150 4 1.5% 156 4 1.5% 

ISO 4 1.6% l3S 6 1.4% 147 s 1.5% 143 s 1.4% 

Ml s I.S% 143 s 1.5% IOS 8 1.1% 119 6 1.2% 

m 7 1.3% 113 7 1.2% 114 6 1.1% 114 7 1.1% 

101 9 1.1% 108 8 1.1% 110 7 I.I¾ 110 8 1.1% 

85 9 0.8% 

ll5 8 12% 12 10 7l.0¾ 

92 9 0.9% 

92 9 1.0% 78 ID 0.8% 

86 10 0.9% 

440 4.6% 

135 6 1.4% 

IOO IO 1.0% 

100 10 1,0% 

100 10 1.0% 

2,Us 22.0% 1,170 11.7% 1,149 11.5% 1,338 13.1% 

9,600 9,600 10,000 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/ PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

CIGanerat Gov1;1mment 

■Cullure / Recreation 

180.00 

160.0D 

140.00 

120.00 

100.00 

80.00 

80.00 

40. 00 

20.00 

i::iPubllc Sorely 

a\l'/atar 

aPub!Jc Worr<s 

CISanllallon 

■Community Deveh)Pmenl 

■Solid Weste 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Fund lou I l'l•acra111 l004 l005 ~001, 2007 20()8 lOO~ mo 2011 1012 

General Uon,111munl 15.00 12.0() 12/1;?. 12.62 10.00 18.78 19.50 17.SO J8J5 

Public sor~ty 70.SO S9.50 SJ.SO SJ.SO 53.SD 53.50 58,63 54.7S 26.00 

Public Wmks 27.SO 19.SO ,A.00 26.0D 19.00 19.00 19.00 16.SO 9,G, 

Cotnmurtlty Development 7.00 S.SO IS.OD lS.00 16.0U 16.00 16.BO 13.00 13.25 

Culluro I Rocrcution 19.25 12.75 S.:SO 6.SO Ii.SO 6.50 18.<18 12.G6 12.79 

Wnter ID.SO 10.Sfl 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 R.7S 12.39 

lOiJ 

18. IS 

22.00 

ll.6~ 

13.25 

12.79 

12,39 

SMimlo11 14.00 14.00 14.00 J) .00 21.00 21.00 23.00 18,75 22.45 :1.2,45 

SolidWnsta 0 . .50 0.50 0.60 1.25 I.GO I.GO I.GO 1.60 I.I.I 1.11 

TOTAL 164~5 J34.25 UJ .U'? 135.87 135,GO 144,38 165.01 143.51 114.7!1 IJD.79 

Note: liffcctivc March 2012, U1u Polioo D~-purlmcnt w1d Police ForL-c wcru dissolved; 
'1110 Son Malm, Cuunly Slu:riO's ()fficu providos lnwcnrarccmcnl services. 

Source: Cily of Milllima U11~1;~1 ['01iliun Allocalioa 
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CITY OF MfLU3RAE 
S1'ATJSTICS 

OPERATlNG lNl>ICATORS BY FUNCTION I fROGRAM 

LAST EIGHT FJSCAL YEARS 
(Information prior lo 2006 i, not !IVilifoblc} 

Function / Prognun :zooc; 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Publlc Safety 

Fire 

Emergeney Responses 2,SOS 2,620 2,620 2,567 2,554 2,764 2,683 2,135 
Prirnll1)' Fire lospcclfons 214 284 261 321 410 527 639 60.2 

Police 

Police Calls for Snrvice 13,074 19,159 20,175 19,554 20,944 20,706 11,876 14,837 
Part I and Part IT Crimes 1,524 1,219 1,271 1,353 J,369 1,273 1,151 1,367 
Physical Arrests (1duh !111dJ1M11iloJ 691 627 699 732 189 677 $76 445 
Traffic Violntions 1,744 2,376 1.,248 1,817 2,12J 2,139 1,834 1,932 
Pnrking Violations 5,252 4,391 7,842 8,603 11,154 9,030 S,562 6,707 

Publlc Work., 

Strccl Resurfacing (mil"') O,ua Noc A\'lli!able: 2 0 0 0 0 
Potholes Repaired (,quote mile,) Di11t.1 Nor. Anlflilblc 0.0000574 0.0000000 0.0000000 0.0007174 0.0009000 0.0008087 0.0004125 

Culture and necreatio11 

Col1ln\unity Services 

Re()rcntioa Clnss Participants 7,000 8,500 7,121 7,018 6,211 5,443 6,239 6,162 
Library 

Volumt:5 In Collection 71,000 100,000 110,876 111,447 109,241 109,595 110,550 113,345 
Toll!! Volumes Borrowed 446,700 503,000 577,350 616,145 633,241 578,739 550,956 548,010 

Water 

Waler Service Connections 6,200 6,437 6,435 6,459 6,474 6,499 6,546 M49 
Water Main Breaks 7 7 10 16 17 8 8 11 
Avcrnee Daily Consumption (gallon$) 2,725,000 2,367,000 2,337,811 2,762,618 2,197,884 2,07S,L49 2,024,473 2,110,022 

S~nilatlon 

Sower Service Connections 6,200 6,437 6,437 6,459 6,474 6,499 6,546 6,S49 
Slomi Drain Weis 700 700 700 700 700 700 700 868 
S~wer MQ!n Blockilges 62 51 34 10 19 8 6 2 
Avernee Daily Trcabncnt (&ollon,.) 2,200,000 1,700,000 1,614,0SS 1,540,800 1,497,600 1,560,602 1,481,000 1,610,000 

Solid Waste 

Reoyclnblcs Processed (tons p,r y•ar) 7,506 J,292 3, 153 2,954 2,900 2,831 2.681 2,817 

Soun:o: City of Millhrnc 
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CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

CAPITAI, ASSETS BY FUNCTION/ PROGRAM 

LAS'J.' EIGD1' FJSCAL YEARS 
(ln1bml8tlon prier le 2006 t. nol awilable) 

Functlo11 /rrogr:tm 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Publlc Safety 
Fire Sl.l!lon 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Police Station I I l l 

Polle~ ~ ltol Unit (Q) 17 17 17 17 17 17 

)'ul)lk Works 
)',,fjlos of Streets 110 11110 miJc, liOl,..miJc, 1101411emile, 110 Ion• miles 110 Lone miles I J01iu,,m11,. lt01 .. . .,;i., I IO Ion• mil0> 

Street Lights 1,2.50 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 

Trame Signals 5 5 5 5 5 5 s 5 

Roadway landscaping Acreage 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Culture and Recrcalion 

Community Services 

CilyPorks 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 

Ci!y Parle A,craago 104 104 104 104 104 I04 104 104 
Regional Pnrk Facilities: 

Clubhouse/ Banquet Fncllily 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Historic House 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Community Center I I 
Senior Center 

Comm\.lllity (lardcrni 

CityTmil I I I I I 

Clly 'froil MIies 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Playgrounds 6 G 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Tennis Court 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

BIISCbftil / Sol\b:111 Diamond s 5 5 5 5 s s s 
Soccsr { Football Field 1 

Library 

Cilylibrary 

WAier 
Miles of Woler Mains 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 
Fire l-{y,;lranl$ .'i45 S45 S4S 545 545 545 545 54S 
Storage Capacity (11.Uoru.) 2,360,000 2,360,000 2,360,000 :2,360,000 2,360,000 2.360,000 2,360,000 2,360,000 

Sanltalion 

Miles ofSnnitnry Sewers 56 56 S6 56 S6 56 56 56 

Miles ofSlorm Sewers 21 21 21 21 21 21 2 1 21 

1'realmeiil Plant J 1 I I I I 
Treatment Capacity (gollon,) 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 J,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 

(•) Effocti"" March 2012, tho Poli<• Depattllil!nl 11Dd Faroo wu-e dwalvcd; San M•••o Co~n!y Sherill's Ollioc provides law enforcement setVlces. 

Souroo: City of Millb"• / G!S S)'l!rnt 
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C'll'# ory 

l\ppnrcl Stoll!$ 

1:ood S@r\lS 

Lil,tL~g / t)rfllkini; Pim ,_.. 

Otdldln~ Mnltrlali 

,,mo Denfora / Suppllell 

S111Viee Statioi1' 

Other R~lnll Slol'C! 

,\II Other Outic~ 

'l'O'rAL 

250,000 

200 ,000 • 

150,000 

100,000 -

50,000 -

0 . 

ClTY OF l',,ffi,LlJRAE 
Sl'A'HSTICS 

TAXAnLE SALES BY CATEGORY 

J,A STTEN CJ\tENDAR YE,\RS 

Cl.p~ol Slcro• 

llB~il1lng l\f.i!leriPIS 

• All otnor ouuots 

t>Food Store• !1111:fl~ng / Orlnkil9 Pia= 

cAUlo De~J~ / Supp!lc~ a Sor.i ce 81aU0nn 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

I lO OJ lOOt lOOS Jll04 2007 211Cfl ii>O~ 20 10 2011 

3,299 3.1-12 3.110 3,362 3,326 l ,08? :2.,!)aa 2,9Si! 2,817 

l!l,li72 16,)l'n lli.830 I S,71>7 17,562 17,31,1 17,) 20 17,633 IK,242 

36,:iSJ 3$.889 .lJ,418 45 1~0& Sl ,SS9 53,888 52,22<1 H,313 SM~ 

25,067 21,~91 26,423 il,74 7 24,40-l W.74S 16,91.S 16,416 IS,Sli7 

17,'if,I 17,100 J~.()79 16,313 IS,S6-I 13,730 12,77:1 l"-7~0 11,431 

18,89<1 19,8$8 30.671 H,168 37,97J ~2,l26 J l.37li J.i ,7M •10,75& 

25,8.Sl 25,938 26,691 25,277 26,0";9 U ,1.~S 2•1,s->~ 2J ,631 24,899 

4,7,769 47,16j •19,220 SJ,SOO so.sos 4),S!)? •ll ,•138 45,0,10 116,130 

191,SSI 196,SB(l 21M'2 2H,G72 m,m 221,414 19?,jl5 208,4SS 211!,68! 

S<lAR»ll! l:ldl C01PP11nie1 
S111io ol'C.li(Qrni• Dir-•d or ll,l',l•lin:!i!>!1 

Nut~ Ow lo o~nGJc.,Ualhy IJ:i:L~, lho Oil."~' ord,: :M larant rownu• ptyl' 1S m.t1 JJOl :.-..aili1bla. 
Thi c:.1ou;;,ri1s (lflSIHLld , ,c inlan1kid lo r110Yid11 ol!atn .111.iva in(Qrmn.lion HiGJ!rJins l~C Jilur~,a.,c(l ~.c Cily'..l rovo.,~ \ 
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20ll ~ 
2, 160 

M;IJ07 

58,829 

l:l,N7 

5,381 

4), 995 

3-1,290 

48,911 

220,620 



CITY OF MILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

PROI>ERTY TAX DOLLAR BREAKDOWN 

+- $0.2817 

+- $0.2054 

~ $0.1716 

+-" S0.1579 

+- S0.0806 

◄- $0.0419 

+- $0.04 1 l 

1
- $0.01092 

-$0.0041 . 9 
-$0.00248 

-$0 .00228 

$1.0000 

San Mateo c,,un ly 

Sim Mt1leu County Uninn High Scl.1001 Dislricl 

Millbruc Elcmcntnry Gcncrul Public 

Millbrae General Fuad (o) 

Sun Muti;o Jtrniur Collcgi; Goncrnl Public 

County 6ducalion Tax 

Counly Libmry 

l'eninsuln Hospital Dislricl 
Counly Heruor Disi:rlct 

Bay Arca, Air Pollution 

Mo~quilo Abatement 

,,nnual nix [n~r~mcnl (A'J'I) llolioo lbr Tnx lln10 1\rcll O 14-0nl, rixcludine Rcdovclo(')lnc111 l'al'.lou nnd Addiliorutl Debt Service 

Suur<u; &rn M11lo:o County ~r 2012·13 Annlllll Till< lnon.'11'-"0t Tgblcs 

M<U Cf1J111}!1llil!c<I 
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CITY OF l.\1ILLBRAE 
STATISTICS 

SALES TAX PERCENTAGE BREAKDOWN 

SALES TAX ALLOCATION FOR ITEMS SO.LP IN THE CITY OF MILLBRAE 

The sales tax rate for the City of Millbrae is: 9.00% 

Listed below is the allocation of 9.00% Sales Tax: 

6.00% 

.50% 

.75% 

.50% 

.50% 

...1lli 

9.00% 

To put this is perspective: 

State of California 

State Local Public Safety Fund 

San Mateo County 

San Mateo Transportation Authority (SMTA) 

San Mateo County Transit District (SMCT) 

City of Millbrae 

Total Sales Tax Allocation 

If a taxable item purchased in the City of Millbrae is $100.00 the sales tax will be $9.00 rounded 

The allocation of the $9.00 will be: 

Eotity Receiving Allocat ion of Total 
The Salt$ Tax Snles Tax Sales Tax 

State of California 6.00% $ 6.00 

State Local Public Safety Fund .50% $ 0.50 

San Mateo County .75% $ 0.75 

San Mateo Transport.nl.ion AuUiority (SMTA) .50% $ 0.50 

San Mateo County Transit District (SMCl) .50% $ 0.50 

City of Millbrae .75% $ 0.75 

Total Sates Tax Allocation $9.00 

The City of Millbrae will receive$ 0.75 (seventy-five cents), from the total$ 9.00 paid in sales tax. 
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